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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ERHRSE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”), | am pleased to present the annual report of
Everbright Grand China Assets Limited (the “Company”, or
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2021 (the “Year”) for your review.

Looking back at 2021, the global economic situation remained
challenging and complex as the Coronavirus Disease 2019
(“COVID-19") pandemic continued to spread, coupled with
various uncertainties such as geopolitical tensions, rising global
inflation and supply chain imbalances. Facing a challenging and
complicated external environment, China’s precise prevention
and control efforts have led to effective control of the pandemic
and the production activities in mainland China have restored to
the pre-pandemic levels. With focus on “maintaining stability” for
its policies, China achieved steady growth of domestic demand
and continuous and stable recovery of its economy, making
an important contribution to global growth. According to the
National Bureau of Statistics, China’s gross domestic product
(“GDP”) grew by 81% year-on-year in 2021, and the GDP
per capita in China exceeded RMB80,000, or was equivalent
to approximately US$12,500 based on the annual average
exchange rate, surpassing the world’s GDP per capita level and
approaching the level of a high-income economy.

The year 2021 was the start of the “14th Five-Year” plan and
a critical year for recovery from COVID-19 and promotion of
high-quality economic development. For property management
industry, a series of supportive policies have been introduced in
China during the Year to support and promote the development
of property management industry, which has received
unprecedented attention in the country’s development. In the
first half of the Year, national policies were issued to clarify
the future development direction of the property management
industry, creating favourable conditions for the industry’s
rapid growth and regulated development. In the second half
of the Year, affected by the real estate market, the property
management industry gradually shifted its focus from listing to
mergers and acquisitions. The property management industry
expanded rapidly amidst a wave of mergers and acquisitions,
further increasing the concentration of the industry. At the same
time, the Group leveraged on its outstanding comprehensive
business strength and the strong Everbright brand to stride
forward in the development of the property management
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)
ETRHS (8)

industry. Providing high-quality service is always the backbone
of the Group’s development and the Group shall continuously
improve its competitiveness, and marches forward with firm and
steady steps to continuously facilitate the rapid development of
the property management industry in China.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue was RMB52.7
million, an increase of approximately 1.9% over the same
period last year, and the Group’s profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company amounted to RMB32.7 million, a
decrease of approximately 3.8% over the same period last year.
The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of
RMBO0.99 cents (equivalent to HK1.22 cents) per ordinary share
for the financial year ended 31 December 2021 as a token of
appreciation to its shareholders for their support and recognition
of the Company.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of RMB203.8 million and a gearing ratio of 19.4%.
Facing the opportunities and challenges ahead, in addition to
maintaining a strong capital position, the Group will actively
promote quality development and strengthen its foothold
in the property management industry by fully implementing
the concept of sustainable development through refined
management. In addition, the Group will take a prudent
approach in selecting overseas investment projects that are
suitable for the Group, with a view to maximising profits and
value for shareholders and investors.

Looking forward to 2022, COVID-19 is expected to be effectively
controlled with the successful development of vaccines and
drugs, and the Group believes that China’s economy will be
able to return to normal operation in a sustainable and stable
manner. Meanwhile, the property management industry in
China will continue to enjoy huge development opportunities
and the scope of services will be further extended. With
comprehensive national support for the development of the
property management industry, the Group expects the industry
to continue to grow rapidly. The Group will flexibly adjust its
business strategies, implement comprehensive risk control and
explore more high quality value-added services, while making
every effort to maintain stable relationships with its existing
customer base, and will identify acquisition projects to facilitate
potential future growth.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® KK EBR AT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT (Continued)
ITRHS(E)

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express my sincere gratitude to all the staff of the Group for
their hard work and contribution in the past year. Meanwhile,
the Group would like to express its sincere gratitude to its
shareholders, customers and business partners for their full
support. The Group will continue to promote the high-quality
development of the property management industry, in particular
to enhance the quality and standard of property management
services, thereby contributing to building a harmonious
and prosperous community with the “power of property
management”.

Chairman of the Board
LIU Jia

24 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIEBEYm RO

FINANCIAL RESULT

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s
revenue and profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB52.7 million (2020:
approximately RMB51.7 million) and approximately RMB32.7
million (2020: approximately RMB34.0 million), respectively.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the businesses of property
leasing, the provision of property management services and the
sale of properties held for sale.

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to approximately RMB52.7 million (2020:
approximately RMB51.7 million), which represented an increase
of approximately 1.9% as compared to last year, mainly because
of the rise in occupancy rate of the investment properties. Profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was approximately RMB32.7 million
(2020: approximately RMB34.0 million), which represented a
decline of approximately 3.8% as compared to last year. The
decrease in profit is mainly due to absence of gain on disposal
of investment properties during the year. The basic earnings per
share for the year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately
RMBO0.07 (2020: RMBO0.08). The review of the individual business
segment of the Group is set out below.

PROPERTY LEASING

The rental income from the Group’s property leasing business
was approximately RMB37.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: RMB36.7 million). The slight rise in the
occupancy rate resulted in the increase in total rental income.
The Group’s leasing properties are located in Chengdu, Sichuan
province and Kunming, Yunnan province in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”). As at 31 December 2021,
the Group’s property portfolio comprises three commercial
buildings, namely Everbright Financial Center, part of Everbright
International Mansion and Ming Chang Building, with a total
gross floor area (“GFA”) of approximately 89,507 (2020: 89,507)
square meters (“sq.m.”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEESwmRD I (§)

PROPERTY LEASING PORTFOLIO

MEHREAS

Average occupancy rate Rental income for the year

As at 31 December 2021  Average occupancy rate (Commercial use)® ended 31 December
BE12AMALEE
R2021%12731A RRZ FHRAZR(EERR) 0 fES KA
GFA Commercial
owned  use GFA® 2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
FikEE  HERE
BEEE 4BREER0 20215 20205 20215 2020F 20215 2020E
RMB RWB
(sq.m) (sqm) (million) (milior)
AR# ANEE
(Er#) (Eri) (%) (%) (%) %)  (EBx)  (B&ET)
Commercial Properties ~ H£#%
Everbright Financial Center? ¥ A2 @12 34,335 31,15 3% 60% 81% 67% 204 176
No. 9 Wenwu Road, Qingyang ~ BT E£E
District, Chengdlu RO
Everbright International Mansion? 3¢ A B £ B¢ 38,199 28,905 64% 75% 85% 99% 8.3 95
No. 2 Caoshi Stret, Qingyang ~ HHTEXEE
District, Chengdu iR
Ming Chang Bulding® YN 16,973 16,973 92% 88% 92% 93% 8.6 9.3
No. 28 Renmin Road Central, EBTRZEAR
Wuhua District, Kunming 085
89,507 77,031 37.3 36.4
Residential Properties frzhg
Dufu Garden? @ HEEReE - - NATER 100% NARER 100% - 03
10 Zu, 11 Zu, Long Zhua Cun, WuR B & BB
Hou District, Chengdu E 104 -
14
89,507 77,031 313 36.7
Notes: B 5
(1) Excluding warehouses and parking spaces which cannot be used as (1) HBETATARPAZE BEZHHEED
offices, commercial spaces or residence. BEREFHEZTRE -
(2)  All the properties are located in the PRC and held under medium- (2) FFAYEBNRTE  ZhEHEEEHR -
term lease.
(38)  The residential properties were disposed of as investment properties  (3) E =W ¥ DR E E2020F12A31H ILEE

during the year ended 31 December 2020.

EREREMENRS -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEESwmRD I (§)

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICE

In order to maximise the value of the Group’s properties,
the Group has a professional property management team
to provide property management services for its properties,
namely, Everbright Financial Center and Everbright International
Mansion. Revenue from the Group’s property management
services was approximately RMB15.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: RMB15.0 million). The increase in
revenue from property management services was resulted from
the rise in occupancy rate in Everbright Financial Center during
the Year. However, due to the termination of tenancy agreement
of an individual tenant in Everbright International Mansion near
the end of the reporting period, total GFA under the Group’s
management decreased 7.7% to approximately 65,037 sq.m. as
at 31 December 2021 (2020: 70,498 sg.m.).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s investment properties mainly consist of land and/
or buildings which are owned or held under leasehold interest
to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. As at 31
December 2021, the fair value of the investment properties
was RMB953.7 million (2020: RMB933.3 million). The valuation
gain on investment properties for the year ended 31 December
2021 amounted to approximately RMB17.5 million (2020:
approximately RMB17.2 million), representing an increase
of approximately RMBO0.3 million as compared to last year.
The slight increase indicated the property market in the PRC
gradually improved.

Y % E 2 R 1%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
EEREBNRRDN (&)

PROSPECTS

Looking forward to 2022, with the spread of COVID-19
pandemic in China becoming under control and pandemic
prevention and control remain buoyant, all regions of China are
actively promoting the resumption of business operation and
production. China will continue to lead the gradual recovery
of the global economy and make a substantial contribution
to the global economic recovery in the post-epidemic era.
As a developing country that maintains a globally leading
position in epidemic prevention and control, China continues
to optimise and upgrade its industrial structure, accelerates
the transformation from old to new economic drivers and gains
stronger momentum for high-quality development. To build
a moderately prosperous society, the Chinese government
has introduced a series of encouraging policies to support
and promote the development of the property management
industry, which is receiving unprecedented attention in national
development. In early 2021, after the Ministry of Housing and
Urban-Rural Development and other departments jointly issued
the Notice on Strengthening and Improving Residential Property
Management, local governments in various provinces and
cities have successively issued new regulations and policies
on property management, and a consensus has been reached
from the central to the local level to support and encourage the
development of the property management industry.

In addition, the property management industry plays an
important role in promoting the development of lifestyle services
with the rise of the community economy and the expansion and
increase of service offerings. In late May 2021, 12 departments,
including the Ministry of Commerce, issued the “Opinions on
Promoting the Construction of Urban 15-Minute Convenient
Living Circle”, which explicitly proposed to encourage eligible
property service enterprises to extend into the fields of
elderly care, childcare, housekeeping, courier services and
front warehouses, and to promote “property services + living
services”, and further proposed to introduce favourable policies
in terms of finance and taxation. This indicates that under
the market-oriented trend, continuous innovation in service
content and service mode is the main way to enhance the
competitiveness of property service enterprises. Therefore, with
the frequent release of abovementioned favourable policies,
the importance of property management industry is becoming
increasingly evident, and the long-term development trend of
the industry remains positive.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® KK EBR AT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEESwmRD I (§)

The Group has entered into a new framework agreement
with the China Everbright Group Limited (the “China
Everbright Group”) to further deepen their partnership and
achieve mutually beneficial and win-win situation, enabling
the continuous growth of the Group’s leasing business. In
addition, the synergy effect of the China Everbright Group and
the popularity of the “Everbright” brand will make it easier for
the Group to win the trust of its customers and the general
public, which will help enhancing its brand image and social
influence, equipping the Group with stronger bargaining power
in the capital market and creating more favourable conditions
for further unlocking potential of value-added services and
achieving sustainable growth.

At present, the property management industry in China is
still in its formative years and competition among enterprises
is becoming increasingly fierce. Facing the dual pressure
from the environment and the market, the Group is actively
identifying properties with investment potential, and it will also
continue to develop new value-added service business to
broaden its service boundary and business scope. In 2022,
with the development of smart cities, the Group will explore
the community value-added service sector of the property
management industry in order to promote customer-centric
and refined management services and facilitate diversification
of demand, products and channels to comprehensively
improve the quality of property management services and win
widespread recognition from residents and the community as a
whole.

Looking ahead, with the change in people’s living and
consumption patterns due to the ongoing pandemic, residents’
consumption needs will become more personalised, diversified
and quality-oriented. Therefore, it is inevitable that property
management services will be upgraded in terms of quality and
intelligence level, and the Group’s potential in value-added
services is expected to be further released. As the property
management industry continues to consolidate at a faster pace,
the Group will actively respond to market challenges and seize
opportunities amidst fierce competition to fully unleash the
Group’s growth potential in order to pursue a broader scope
of development. Meanwhile, the Group will also expand its
business scale, further develop the community value-added
services and optimise the structure of property management
services, thereby enhancing the profitability of the Company and
fully consolidating the Group’s market position. Going forward,
the Group will continue to provide outstanding property services
and facilitate the high-quality development of China’s property
management industry, thereby meeting people’ aspirations for a
better life with its best efforts.

AEBDEBEXKEB R D RE(H
BARKBEDAIZLAERWE  £—F
MRETWAIERE BERENERK
SENEHEXRBESAFELER - I
B e K SR B # H5 [R) AR A (D K & ke
MABREREERBEERIREEPRA
TEOELE BYREAGRBERNLE
TEN BREBAGBERNEANSZ
BN RE—TERUEERBNED
MERAUFEERAETESHMGMSE

BRl  BAMMEETETEDARARRK
EH CEZHOBRFABRZ -HY
REEMENEESR AEEEER
BREKREBINYWERE  TETH
FAERIMIEERBES HERKER
MEEEE - 2022F  BEESEWMTH
BE SEBERBERVETETENNE
BEEE KMESURE AP LG
MILERRE  YRFR - ER BB
L2t 2HEADEEERE
T BEERUNERENREZRA -

REAR BEERBEEREEAMNLE
EHEBBRANE ERMNEBEEFK
RE AR RN E L - ZEREMELEL -
Bt MEEERBASEEMEREL
THARR A s 8 - T & B AT IE B AR 7S B
BELRIE-—FSEN EVEEET
EBBEBRAOMENBRT  SEKHESE
BEMSRE  EANOREFPIMEH
B ANEREENREEN  ARKEK
FEMANERZM -RAE - SEITSE
REBRE - R/ RIEERBEEL
BIMERBER  KMERQREF
N 2EEBESENTHMMA - ET
X SEERBEERESENY RS -
WHBHEREDEEETEASEERRK
REFAARBEHAEENBEMER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3§

13



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
EEREBNRRDN (&)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The total equity of the Group as at 31 December 2021
was approximately RMB940.7 million (2020: approximately
RMB934.6 million). As at 31 December 2021, the Group
maintained cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB203.8 million (2020: approximately RMB217.8 million).
The Group’s net current assets was approximately RMB173.0
million as at 31 December 2021 (2020: approximately RMB187.8
million). The Group had current assets of approximately
RMB207.7 million as at 31 December 2021 (2020: approximately
RMB225.8 million). The decrease in current assets was mainly
due to the decrease in trade and other receivables and
prepayments and cash and cash equivalents during the year.
The Group had current liabilities of RMB34.7 million (2020:
approximately RMB38.1 million). The decrease in current
liabilities was mainly due to the decrease in tax payable.

The working capital and long-term funding required by the
Group are primarily derived from income generated from
core business operations and bank loan. The Group had an
outstanding bank loan of approximately RMB7.0 million (2020:
approximately RMB14.0 million) as at 31 December 2021. The
bank loan was secured by the Group’s investment properties.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s gearing ratio, being
measured by the Group’s total liabilities over its total assets,
was 19.4% (2020: 19.7%). The Group’s liquidity position was
well-managed in this year.

To manage the liquidity risk, an adequate level of cash and
cash equivalents that the Group considers sufficient to finance
its operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flow has been maintained. The net current assets position and
utilisation of borrowings are also regularly monitored to ensure
efficient use of the available banking facilities and compliance
with the loan covenants.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

The outstanding bank loan of RMB7.0 million was secured
by Everbright International Mansion with an aggregate GFA
of approximately 38,082 sgq.m. As at 31 December 2021, the
fair value of the pledged assets amounted to approximately
RMB366.5 million (2020: approximately RMB361.4 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEESwmRD I (§)

FOREIGN EXCHANGE

The Group’s transactions, monetary assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in RMB. The management of the
Group is of the opinion that the Group has not experienced any
material difficulties or effects on its operations or liquidity as a
result of the fluctuations in currency exchange rates during the
year ended 31 December 2021. Therefore, the Group did not
engage in any hedging activities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no contingent liability
(2020: Nil).

INFORMATION IN RESPECT OF MAJOR CUSTOMERS &
SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s revenue (excluding interest
and dividend incomes) for the year ended 31 December 2021
attributable to the major customers of the Group were as
follows:

Percentage of total
revenue of the Group
17.6%

53.8%

The largest customer
Five largest customers in aggregate

Saved as disclosed in this annual report, none of the Directors
or any of their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the major
customers noted above. Due to the nature of the business of
the Group, the Group does not have any major suppliers.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
There was no material change in the capital structure of the

Company during the year, and the Company’s capital included
ordinary shares and other reserves.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
EEESwmRD I (§)

PLANS FOR MATERIAL CAPITAL INVESTMENTS

The Group plans to invest in capacity expansion and pursue
suitable investment projects to capitalise the potential growth
of the Group’s business in the coming years in the manner set
out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
in the prospectus of the Company dated 29 December 2017
(“Prospectus”). Such source of funding would be primarily
from the external resources.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES

There was no significant investment held, nor was there any
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries during the
reporting period.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Save as disclosed elsewhere in this report, there was no

important event affecting the Group which occurred after the
reporting period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEESwmRD I (§)

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The net proceeds raised from the global offering on 16
January 2018 (the “Listing Date”), after deducting relevant
listing expenses, was approximately RMB116.1 million (“Net
Proceeds”). Up to 31 December 2021, the Group had used
approximately RMB13.0 million (2020: RMB12.6 million) of the
Net Proceeds for the purposes as set out in the section headed
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.

LR EREFEAR

B2018F1816H (£ B #]) %k B 2 Bk
BEMNMEREFEENBREBRALETH
I BARE16IEBE T MEBHREZR
) o AE2021F12A318 - REE D H)
FRETS 78 FEHOARE13.05 8 Tt (2020
F:ARKEI26BBT)BEARRBRE
BAKRGFERMERERAER|—FATEMN

A& -
Utilised Unutilised
Amount during the Amount Net Proceeds
utilisedupto  yearended utilised up to asat31 Expected timeline for
31 December 31 December 31 December December utilising the remaining
Net Proceeds 2020 2021 2021 2021  Net Proceeds®
#2021
BEZ2020%F BZE2021% BEZ2021% 12A318H BRABTHE
&R 123318 M 12A31A 1L 12A318H XBAME FEREN
BRE CBREGE FEBHA EBAEE RERE HERERY
RMB'000 RMB'000 AMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
ABETT  AREFT  ARETT  AREFT  ARETT
Acquisition of properties in 92,904 3,162 - 3,162 89,742  Expected to be fully utilised on or
the major cities of the before 31 December 2023
United Kingdom (UK. EEHBR2023512A318 % 2 7]
KEERFZHTHNZ Ta#A
Upgrade in building 11,613 5,249 497 5,746 5,867  Expected to be fully utilised on or
facilities and/ before 31 December 2023
or renovating the EHBR2023F12A318 % 2 71
properties of the Group wot EL
FREERER /B
AEEMNE
Working capital and 11,613 4,140 - 4,140 7,473 N/A
general corporate ~ER
purposes
BEEeR-—ROERE
Total &5t 116,130 12,551 497 13,048 103,082
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
EEREBNRRDN (&)

Note: The expected timeline for utilising the remaining Net Proceeds is
prepared based on the assumption of a continuing recovery from
the effects of COVID-19 taking into account, among others, the
prevailing and future market conditions and business developments
and need. The Group shall update and re-visit its plan continuously
based on market conditions and business developments and

therefore the expected timeline is subject to change.

As at 31 December 2021, the unutilised Net Proceeds was
approximately RMB103.1 million (2020: RMB103.6 million).

During the reporting period, the Group did not acquire
properties in the U.K. since it was unable to conduct site visits
on properties in London because of the COVID-19 pandemic
and the travel and quarantine restrictions. As COVID-19
becomes less serious, the Group will resume its plan to conduct
site visits to acquire properties that fit the Group’s selection
criteria or development strategies. Subject to the developments
of the COVID-19 pandemic, after taking into account of the
time required to identify potential targets which fit the property
selection criteria or development strategies of the Group and
time required to complete the acquisition, it is expected that the
remaining amount allocated for acquisition of properties in the
major cities of U.K. will be fully utilised by the end of 2023.

In response to the outbreak, in order to ensure the safety
of tenants, the property management company has taken
necessary measures to restrict the entry of engineering
personnel into the building to reduce the risk of infection.
Therefore, non-essential reconstruction or renovation works
are postponed. When the pandemic subsides, necessary
improvements and upgrades will be gradually made to the
properties. Taking into account of the current situation of
the COVID-19 and the time required to undergo upgrades
and renovation, it is expected that the remaining amount of
the unutilised Net Proceeds allocated for upgrading building
facilities and/or renovating the properties of the Group could be
fully utilised by the end of 2023.

Going forward in 2022, the Directors will closely monitor the
development of the COVID-19 epidemic situation and its impact
on the global economy to evaluate its business objectives and
to apply the unutilised Net Proceeds according to the changing
market condition to create greater value for the Shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

EEESwmRD I (§)

The unutilised Net Proceeds will be applied according to the
purposes set out in the section headed “Future Plans and Use
of Proceeds” of the Prospectus. The Directors considered that it
would be in the best interest of the Group to deposit such funds
temporarily in the bank accounts to earn interest income and
are not aware of any material change to the proposed use of the
proceeds as at the date of this annual report.

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of 141
employees (2020: 143 employees) and appointed 8 Directors.
Total staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments, of the Group
were approximately RMB15.8 million (2020: RMB14.9 million).
The Group reviews the remuneration policies and packages on
a regular basis and makes necessary adjustment commensurate
with the remuneration level in the industry. In addition to a
basic monthly salary, discretionary bonuses are offered to staff
with outstanding performance. The Group also provides other
benefits such as medical insurance and mandatory provident
fund scheme to employees in Hong Kong.

The same remuneration policy is applicable to the fixing of
Directors’ remuneration. Apart from market benchmarks, the
Group considers individual performance and contributions and
the affordability of the Group in determining the remuneration
for each Director.

The Group has not experienced any significant problems with
its employees or disruption to its operations due to labour
disputes nor has it experienced any difficulty in the recruitment
and retention of experienced staff. The Group maintains a good
relationship with its employees.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEEBER

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. LIU Jia

Aged 57, is an executive Director, chairman of the Board
and chief executive officer, the chairman of the investment
committee and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company. Mr. Liu joined the Group in November 1991
and is acting as the director and chairman of two Company’s
subsidiaries, namely Growing China Limited (“Growing China”)
and Metallic Field Limited (“Metallic Field”). He is also the
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company, including
Square Field Limited (“Square Field”), First Step Corporation
Limited (“First Step”) and Everbright Grand China Assets
Management Limited (‘EGCAM?”). Mr. Liu is currently a director
of China Everbright Holdings Company Limited (“CE Hong
Kong”).

Mr. Liu joined Capital Century Company Limited (“Capital
Century”) in 1988. He served as the director and deputy
general manager of Capital Century in 1991, mainly responsible
for the day-to-day operations and property investment and
management of investment projects. Since Capital Century
is a subsidiary of CE Hong Kong, Mr. Liu acted as its deputy
general manager in the real estate department during the period
from August 1997 to March 2000, mainly responsible for the
investment and business operations of real estate. At the end
of 1998, Mr. Liu served as the director and general manager
of China Everbright Financial Assets Management (HK) Limited
(“China EB Financial Assets”), responsible for receiving and
disposing of overseas investment assets entrusted by domestic
financial management departments. China EB Financial Assets
is the initial company of Huida Asset Management Ltd. Co.*(E#E
BEFZEAREMELT) In 2000, Mr. Liu was appointed as the
assistant president in the head office of China Everbright Bank
Company Limited (“CE Bank”) and was responsible for related
work matters. He was promoted as the general manager of
Capital Century in 2004, upon which he became responsible for
the overall operational management and strategic development.
Since August 2014, Mr. Liu has been appointed and served as
an executive director and deputy general manager of CE Hong
Kong, as well as the chairman of Capital Century (the parent
company of the Company).

* for identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

ESRkEREEBER(8)

Mr. Liu graduated from the Civil Engineering Department of
Nanjing Jinling Vocational University (& P& B % KX £), majoring
in the industrial and civil architecture, with a diploma in July
1986, and a postgraduate certificate of architecture, economics
and management in Southeast University (3 & A ) in August
1992. Since July 2016, he has become a fellow of the Hong
Kong Institute of Directors and was hired as an off-campus
master’s Supervisor in the School of International Business
of Southwestern University of Finance and Economics in
September 2021 for a period of one year.

Mr. MA Heming

Aged 53, is an executive Director, a member of the nomination
committee and investment committee of the Company. He
also acts as the director of several major subsidiaries of the
Company.

Mr. Ma is experienced in real estate, international trade and
public relations. From August 1990 to February 1992, Mr. Ma
worked at Beijing First Construction Engineering Co., Ltd. (dt
RHME-REELETREARALQA). From March 1992 to September
1999, Mr. Ma worked at China Far East International Trading
Corporation* (R RERE 5 @ Q7). From October 1999
to January 2006, Mr. Ma worked at China Public Relations
Association (FEI A EHE) (the “Association”). Mr. Ma
was appointed as the deputy director of the Association in
February 2002. From April 2011 to August 2014, Mr. Ma was
appointed as the director of the Association. From February
2006 to March 2011, Mr. Ma worked at Liaison Office of
the Central People’s Government in the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (&R A R T 5 & 8 55 Bl 17 B B 4%
#ANE) (the “Liaison Office”). Mr. Ma was appointed as a
director of the Liaison Office in May 2009. Mr. Ma has served
as the deputy secretary general of Mainland, Hong Kong and
Macao Trade Promotion Association* (91 B A b B2 7 8 & 5 32
mAIT#E ) since September 2014. Mr. Ma was also appointed
as a director of Capital Century, a controlling shareholder of the
Company, in April 2021.

Mr. Ma received a certificate in Economics and Management
from Beijing Youth Politics College* (It XM & FHBA£F) in
July 1990 and a post-graduate certificate in Economics and
Management from National Academy of Governance* (B & 17 I
EFx) in July 2000.

* for identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued])

ESREREEBEBER(8)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. WANG Yun

Aged 53, is a non-executive Director of the Company. Ms Wang
has joined the Group since 26 August 2021, and is experienced
in accounting, auditing and financing.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Wang worked at the National
Planning Commission of the PRC* (F # A R XTI Bl B K 71 &1 &
8 @) (currently known as the National Development and Reform
Commission of the PRC (FEA R EMEIHRERMNNIELZE®))
from September 1991 to April 1992. From April 1992 to February
1993, Ms. Wang worked as the finance manager at Beijing
Fulanka Digital System Co., Ltd* (Jt R #E FHFEEZHREBER A
A]). From February 1993 to May 1998, Ms. Wang worked as the
finance supervisor at China Everbright International Economic
and Technical Cooperation Corporation* (7 B 3¢ K B B 4% 5
K fii & e R]). From May 1998 to October 1999, Ms. Wang
worked as the financial manager at China Everbright (South
Africa) Company (Proprietary) Limited * (/B3¢ A (55 JF) #5 A%
EMRET A7) (“Everbright South Africa”’) and Everbright
International Engineering (Proprietary) Limited (J¢ KB T2
BBR/AF]) (“Everbright International Engineering”). From
October 1999 to September 2007, Ms. Wang worked as the
chief financial officer of Everbright South Africa and Everbright
International Engineering. From September 2007 to October
2012, Ms. Wang worked as the senior manager of insurance
and non-financial audit division of the audit department at China
Everbright (Group) Limited * (B K (£ E) 82 7)) (currently
known as China Everbright Group). From October 2012 to April
2014, Ms. Wang was appointed as the division chief of banking
division of the audit department at the China Everbright Group.
From April 2014 to June 2016, Ms. Wang worked as the division
chief of insurance and non-financial audit division and the senior
deputy manager of audit department at China Everbright Group.
From April 2016 to November 2017, Ms. Wang worked as the
deputy general manager of the audit department at China
Everbright Group. Ms. Wang has been the general manager
of the financial management department and a director at CE
Hong Kong, a controlling shareholder of the Company since
November 2017. Ms. Wang has been a director of Capital
Century, a controlling shareholder of the Company since August
2021.

* for identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

ESRkEREEBER(8)

Ms. Wang has been the chairman of the Financial & Accounting
Affairs Steering Committee of the Hong Kong Chinese
Enterprises Association (&8 H Bt %1 €) since December
2019.

Ms. Wang received a bachelor’'s degree of economics,
accounting department from Central University of Finance
and Economics (B R B4 KE8) in June 1991 and a Master of
Business Administration from De Montfort University in March
2006. Ms. Wang is a non-practicing member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. ZHUANG Minrong

Aged 48, is a non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
Zhuang has joined the Group since 26 August 2021, and is
experienced in banking, finance and risk management.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Zhuang worked as an operation
manager at Fujian Huagiao Trust Investment Company* ({8 & &
(B 5518 B A 7)) from September 1996 to March 2001. From
March 2001 to August 2007, Mr. Zhuang worked as a corporate
account manager at China Everbright Bank Fuzhou Branch (&
Bl 3t KSR 1718 M 9 77) (the “Bank”). Mr. Zhuang worked as the
general manager’s assistant of the 1st business department
from August 2007 to February 2009 and the general manager
of the 5th business department and department of small and
medium-sized enterprises at the Bank from February 2009
to December 2014. From December 2014 to April 2021, Mr.
Zhuang worked as the general manager of the risk management
department and credit approval department at the Bank. He has
been the assistant general manager of the risk management,
internal control and compliance department at CE Hong Kong,
a controlling shareholder of the Company, since May 2021. Mr.
Zhuang has been a director of Capital Century, a controlling
shareholder of the Company, since August 2021.

Mr. Zhuang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in economics from
Zhongnan University of Finance and Economics* (7 87 4% K &)
(now known as Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (#
B & BUE K E)) in July 1996.

* for identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued])
ESRERE

BEERE(E)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TSOI David

Aged 74, is an independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of the audit committee and a member of the investment
committee of the Company.

Mr. Tsoi has been a Director of Alliott, Tsoi CPA Limited since
January 2006. He has been a certified public accountant since
September 1981 with over 30 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and financial management. He is also qualified as and
has been:

(@)

a certified public accountant registered at the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”);

a certified tax advisor registered at the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong;

a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since September 1981;

a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales since May 2015;

a member of the Society of Chinese Accountants and
Auditors since April 1987 and a fellow since December
2015;

a fellow of the CPA Australia since November 2009; and

a member of the Chartered Professional Accountants of
British Columbia, Canada since June 2015.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

ESRkEREEBER(8)

He has also been the independent non-executive director of the
following listed companies, all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”):

(@)

Loto Interactive Limited (formerly known as “Melcolot
Limited”) (stock code: 8198) from October 2001 to July
2017;

Enviro Energy International Holdings Ltd (stock code: 1102)
from July 2008 to June 2017;

Universal Technologies Holdings Limited (stock code: 1026)
since June 2013;

Guru Online (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 8121) since
May 2014;

VPower Group International Holdings Limited (stock code:
1608) since October 2016;

Anxin-China Holdings Limited (stock code: 1149) from
February 2017 to May 2017;

Green International Holdings Limited (stock code: 2700)
since June 2017;

Tianli Holdings Group Limited (stock code: 0117) since
August 2017; and

InvesTech Holdings Limited (stock code: 1087) since May
2021.

Mr. Tsoi obtained a master degree of business administration in
the University of East Asia, Macau in October 1986.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued])

ESREREEBEBER(8)

Mr. SHEK Lai Him Abraham (formerly Razack Ebrahim
Abdul and Abraham Razack)

Aged 76, is an independent non-executive Director and also the
chairman of the nomination committee and a member of the
audit committee of the Company. Mr. Shek joined the Group
in December 2017. Mr. Shek obtained a bachelor’'s degree of
arts and a diploma in education in the University of Sydney
in May 1969 and March 1970, respectively. He became the
honorary fellow of Lingnan University, the Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology, the University of Hong Kong and
the Education University of Hong Kong in November 2008,
June 2014, September 2016 and March 2018, respectively. In
addition to his achievements in the academic field, Mr. Shek has
also earned certain honorary titles in various ambits. He was
appointed as Justice of the Peace in July 1995 and awarded
the Silver Bauhinia Star and Gold Bauhinia Star in the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region 2007 and 2013 Honours
Lists, respectively. He has also been a member of the Advisory
Committee Board of the Independent Commission Against
Corruption since January 2017 and appointed as the Honorary
Member of the Court of The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology since August 2020. Mr. Shek is currently the
member of the Court and the Council of The University of Hong
Kong.

Mr. Shek currently serves as an independent non-executive
director of the following listed companies and collective
investment schemes, all of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange: (a) Paliburg Holdings Limited (stock code: 0617)
since July 2002; (b) Lifestyle International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 1212) since March 2004; (c) Chuang’s Consortium
International Limited (stock code: 0367) since May 2004; (d)
NWS Holdings Limited (stock code: 0659) since September
2004; (e) Country Garden Holdings Company Limited (stock
code: 2007) since March 2007; (f) Chuang’s China Investments
Limited (stock code: 0298) since April 2008; (g) ITC Properties
Group Limited (stock code: 0199) since September 2010; (h)
China Resources Cement Holdings Limited (stock code: 1313)
since January 2011; (i) Lai Fung Holdings Limited (stock code:
1125) since December 2012; (j) Cosmopolitan International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 0120) since December 2013; (K)
Regal Portfolio Management Limited, the manager of Regal
Real Estate Investment Trust (stock code: 1881) since November
2006; () Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited, the manager
of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust (stock code: 2778)
since May 2006; (m) CSI Properties Limited (stock code: 0497)
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ESRkEREEBER(8)

since July 2018; (n) Far East Consortium International Limited
(stock code: 0035) since June 2019; (o) Landing International
Development Limited (stock code: 0582) since August 2020; (p)
Hao Tian International Construction Investment Group Limited
(stock code: 1341) since October 2020; and (q) International
Alliance Financial Leasing Co. Ltd (stock code: 1563) since July
2021.

Besides, Mr. Shek currently serves as the vice chairman and
executive director of Goldin Financial Holdings Limited (stock
code: 0530) since March 2021.

He previously served as an independent non-executive director
of the following listed companies, all of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange: (a) PT International Development Corporation
Limited (formerly known as “ITC Corporation Limited”) (stock
code: 0372) from June 2006 to March 2017; (b) Dorsett
Hospitality International Limited (previous stock code: 2266)
(withdrawn from listing on the Stock Exchange in October 2015)
from September 2010 to March 2016; (c) TUS International
Limited (stock code: 0872) from June 2015 to January 2017; (d)
Magnus Concordia Group Limited (formerly known as “Midas
International Holdings Limited”) (stock code: 1172) from August
2001 to January 2018; (e) MTR Corporation Limited (stock code:
0066) from December 2007 to May 2019; (f) Hop Hing Group
Holdings Limited (previous stock code: 0047) (withdrawn from
listing on the Stock Exchange in January 2022) from April 2008
to June 2020; (g) Goldin Financial Holdings Limited (stock code:
0530) from January 2017 to March 2021; and (h) SJM Holdings
Limited (stock code: 0880) from October 2007 to May 2021.
Mr. Shek had been a non-executive director and a member of
the audit committee of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation
Limited, a public company incorporated in Hong Kong, from
December 2004 to April 2016.

Mr. LEE Jor Hung

Aged 67, is an independent non-executive Director, the chairman
of the remuneration committee and a member of the nomination
committee, audit committee as well as investment committee of
the Company.
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ESREREEBEBER(8)

Mr. Lee is currently the chairman of DL Brokerage Limited,
in which he has been licensed as the dealing director and
responsible officer by the Securities and Futures Commission
(“SFC”) since August 1993 and October 2003, respectively,
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) to carry
on type 1 (i.e. dealing in securities) and type 4 (i.e. advising
on securities) regulated activities. He has also served as
the director and the permanent honorary president of Hong
Kong Securities Association Limited since August 1991 and
September 1999, respectively.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lee had served as a non-
executive director of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited (stock code: 0388), CIG Yangtze Ports PLC (previous
stock code: 8233) (listing of the shares transferred from the
GEM to the Main Board in January 2018) and Sinofortune
Financial Holdings Limited (formerly known as “Stockmartnet
Holdings Limited”) (stock code: 8123), all of which being
listed on the Stock Exchange, from April 2000 to April 2006,
September 2005 to November 2011, and May 2000 to May
2005, respectively. He had also served as a director of Hong
Kong Securities and Investment Institute from December 2003
to December 2008, and become a fellow member and senior
fellow since November 2012 and September 2014, respectively.

Mr. Lee had served as a member of the advisory committee and
a member of the process review panel to the SFC, from June
1999 to May 2001 and from November 2006 to October 2012,
respectively. In addition, he had also served as a member of
Disciplinary Panel A and Investigation Panel A of the HKICPA,
from February 2005 to January 2011 and from February 2011 to
January 2015, respectively. He had also been a member of the
Barrister Disciplinary Tribunal Panel from September 2005 to
August 2015.

Mr. Lee obtained a bachelor degree of commerce in the
University of Alberta, Canada in May 1977 and a master degree
of business administration in the University of East Asia, Macau
in October 1986. He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region 2000 Honors List.
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ESRkEREEBER(8)

Ms. YU Pauline Wah Ling

Aged 74, is an independent non-executive Director and also
a member of the remuneration committee and investment
committee of the Company.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Yu had served as the lettings
assistant and later as assistant manager of The Hongkong Land
Company Limited (formerly The Hongkong Land Investment &
Agency Co., Ltd.) from August 1971 to July 1981. She has also
worked in Hysan Development Company Limited (stock code:
0014), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, since 1981.
In November 1991, she was appointed as a director of Hysan
Development Company Limited and was responsible for the
strategic development of the company’s property business. Ms.
Yu retired as an executive director in May 2008.

Ms. Yu obtained a bachelor degree of arts in the University of
Hong Kong in October 1971.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. LIU Jia

Mr. Liu is the chairman of the Board, an executive Director,
also the chief executive officer, the chairman of the investment
committee and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Board. For details of his qualifications, see “Biographies of
Directors and Senior Management”.

Mr. MA Heming

Mr. Ma is an executive Director, the deputy general manager
and a member of the nomination committee and investment
committee of the Board. For details of his qualifications, see
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”.
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ESREREEBEBER(8)

Mr. LEE Wai Kwong

Mr. Lee is an assistant general manager of the Company. Mr.
Lee joined Capital Century in December 2007 and has been
responsible for the financial management in the group of Capital
Century since then. He currently serves as the director in
certain subsidiaries of the Company. He had also served as a
Director from November 2010 to June 2017. Mr. Lee obtained
a bachelor degree in business (major in accounting) in Edith
Cowan University in Perth, Australia in 2000. Mr. Lee has been a
certified public accountant of CPA Australia since October 2013.
He is responsible for the financial management and project
investment of the Company.

Ms. TANG Yuk Ha

Ms. Tang is the company secretary of the Company, she
joined the Group in May 2018. She is an associate member
of both The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and
The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) in United Kingdom.
She has over 15 years of experience in the fields of company
secretarial and compliance. Ms. Tang obtained a Bachelor of
Arts in Accountancy in The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
the change of Directors’ information of the Company since the
date of 2021 interim report are as follows:

Mr. SHEK Lai Him
Abraham

appointed as a non-executive director
(non-remunerated) of Chinese-ltalian
Cultural Society Limited with effect from 27
September 2021.

appointed as the first director of
Construction Charity Fund Integrated
Services Centre Limited (non-remunerated)
with effect from 24 September 2021.

his term as a member of Legislative Council
ended on 31 December 2021.

In respect of the changes in emoluments of Directors, please
refer to note 9 to the financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EXECRS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance standards. The Board believes that good corporate
governance standards are essential in providing a framework
for the Group to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders,
enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies
and policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.
The Group’s governance principles and practices are reviewed
and revised regularly as appropriate to reflect the ever
changing regulatory requirements and corporate governance
development.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has
adopted the Corporate Governance Code (version up to 31
December 2021) (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules as its own code of corporate governance.
The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions
of the CG Code set out therein, except for CG Code provision
A.21.

Pursuant to the CG Code provision A.2.1, the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive of the company should
be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual for a balance of power and authority. The division of
responsibilities between the chairman and the chief executive
of the company should be clearly established and set out in
writing.

Furthermore, the Board will adopt the new CG Code (version
with effective from 1 January 2022), the requirement under
which shall apply to the Company’s corporate governance
report in the forthcoming financial year ending 31 December
2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EXREBRS (&)

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer
(“CEOQ”) of the Company are not separated and are performed
by the same individual. Mr. Liu Jia (“Mr. Liu”) acts as both
the chairman and the CEO since the Listing Date. Since Mr.
Liu has a wealth of experience in real estate investment,
operations and investment projects, the Directors consider that
vesting the roles of the chairman of the Board and the CEO of
the Company in Mr. Liu is beneficial to the management and
business development of the Group and will provide strong and
consistent leadership to the Group. Moreover, decisions of the
Board are made by way of majority votes. The Board believes
that this structure is conducive to facilitates prompt response
to the fast changing business environment and enhances the
efficiency in the business process.

The Board also considers that the current Board composition
(where the independent non-executives Directors represent half
of the Board), the Directors are of the view that there is a fairly
strong independence element in the Board’s composition. The
Board shall nevertheless review the arrangement from time to
time.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Having
made specific enquiry with each of the Directors, the Company
has received confirmations from all Directors that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model
Code for the year ended 31 December 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group’s businesses, strategic decisions
and performance and should take decisions objectively in the
best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from
a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company,
and whether the Director is spending sufficient time performing
them.
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Board Composition

The Board of the Company comprises the following Directors
who held office during the year ended 31 December 2021 and
up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jia (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lin Zimin®
Mr. Ma Heming®@

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Yinzhong®

Ms. Tse Hang Mui®
Ms. Wang Yun®

Mr. Zhuang Minrong®

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Tsoi David

Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham
Mr. Lee Jor Hung

Ms. Yu Pauline Wah Ling

1 the resignation with effect from 15 April 2021

the appointment with effect from 15 April 2021
the resignation with effect from 26 August 2021
the appointment with effect from 26 August 2021

£ 5 B =

S

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 20 to 30 of the Annual Report for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

The Board possesses the skills, experience and expertise either
in the same industry or relevant to the management of the
business of the Group which brings a good balance of relevant
skills and experience to the Company. The independent non-
executive Directors also provide their independent professional
judgments on the assessment of the development, performance
and risk management of the Group.

There are no relationship (including financial, business, family
or other material/relevant relationship(s)) among members of the
Board.

EEE4AM

ARBEEZSRAUTES (RE E2021
FI2A3MBIEFEREEARAREHHTR)
MK

HITES

BmELE (T ERITHAEZ)
MEH LD
FHEBALLR

FHUTES

FRP KL
WAEERLe
FEL L@

HERELEE

BAYFBITES

B 5EE
RS
% M 5 2
FERLT

BT R2021F 4 A15H #E 4 3K
FAEMN2021FE 4150 # 4 3L
B E A 20219 8 H26 H B 4
ZER2021F8A26H B £ K

2 5 B =

2 8 B

EEMEFEERENE £2021F12 A31
HIEFFERNFRFEN0E0BE[EEN 54K
EIRERE|— -

EXEeABA-TERBREEAEEE
BHENRE ERLEEXZNZ /AN
RAENERRERERTRRFFE -
BIYFWTESTTRIGAREZEE
RALRBEBRBER 2B IFEEHE -

EZeREZRREEMNHER(BREMS -
X% RESHEMER MMBBER) -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3§

33



34

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EREORS (#)

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records

The Board meets regularly and, involving active participation,
either in person or through electronic means of communication,
of a majority of Directors. Under code provision A.1.1 of the CG
Code, the Board shall meet regularly and at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. During the reporting
period, 5 Board meetings and 1 general meeting were held.

The Directors’ attendance of the Board meetings and general
meetings during the reporting period is set out as follows:

Name of Directors

EEng

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Liu Jia Bzttt
Mr. Ma Heming® FERALE
Mr. Lin Zimin® MEBFELED
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ms. Wang Yun® FEL LW

Mr. Zhuang Minrong® HR&KTE®
Ms. Tse Hang Mui® HEEZL®
Mr. Li Yinzhong® FIRAPEEO
Independent Non-executive Directors B HITESE
Mr. Tsoi David BERNERE
Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham VEEL T &
Mr. Lee Jor Hung TEHEREE
Ms. Yu Pauline Wah Ling FER LT

The Company is obliged to comply with the CG Code and will
take appropriate arrangements for holding at least 4 regular
Board meetings as well as a meeting between the Chairman
and independent non-executive Directors annually (without the
presence of other directors).

the resignation with effect from 15 April 2021

the appointment with effect from 15 April 2021
the resignation with effect from 26 August 2021
the appointment with effect from 26 August 2021

2 5 ® =

ESRNC I
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

CG Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be
performed by the same individual. The Company does not
segregate the roles of chairman and chief executive officer and
Mr. Liu Jia currently holds both positions, as explained in the
paragraph headed “Corporate Governance” in this report.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors possess a wide
range of business and financial expertise, experiences and,
through participation in board meetings, offer independent
judgment on issues of strategy, policy, performance,
accountability, resources, key appointments and standard of
conducts. Through taking the lead where potential conflicts of
interests arise, serving on the Board committees, examining
the Company’s performance in achieving corporate goals
and objectives and monitoring performance reporting, the
independent non-executive Directors has become an integral
part of the healthy growth of the Company.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 December 2021,
the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors representing at least one-third of the
Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of
his/her independence in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company is of the view that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company
(the “Articles of Association”), all the Directors are subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
any new Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall submit himself for re-election by
the Shareholders at the first annual general meeting after
appointment.
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The non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) are appointed for a specific term of three
years, subject to renewal after the expiry of the current term.

Under the Articles of Association, at each annual general
meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-third shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. The retiring Directors
shall be eligible for re-election.

Responsibilities of the Board and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and
control of the Company; and is collectively responsible for
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads
and provides direction to management by laying down strategies
and overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s
operational and financial performance, and ensures that sound
internal control and risk management systems are in place.

The Board possesses the skills, experience and expertise either
in the same industry or relevant to the management of the
business of the Group which brings a good balance of relevant
skills and experience to the Company. The independent non-
executive Directors also provide their independent professional
judgments on the assessment of the development, performance
and risk management of the Group.

Every Director is entitled to have access to Board papers and
related materials, and the advice and services provided by
the company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) of the
Company, and has the liberty to seek independent professional
advice at the Company’s expense if so reasonably required. The
Directors will be continuously provided with the updates on the
major development of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and upkeep of
good corporate governance practices.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other
offices held by them.
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The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to
policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment
of directors and other significant operational matters of the
Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions
of the Board, directing and coordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to the management.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions
taken against Directors arising out of corporate activities. The
insurance coverage would be reviewed on an annual basis.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and
changes in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received induction on the
first occasion on his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors are encouraged to participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. All Directors confirmed that they
had complied with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code during
the reporting period, that they had participated in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills.

The Company has distributed materials and updated information
on the latest developments in the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements during the reporting period.

In addition, relevant reading materials (including legal and
regulatory updates) have been provided to the Directors for their
reference and studying.
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During the year, the training records of the Directors are
summarized as follows:

Name of Directors

AEE  EEHFICEHRBOT:

EEnE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. LIU Jia BzhE
Mr. MA Heming BERLE
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Ms. WANG Yun FEx L
Mr. ZHUANG Minrong HR&ERE
Independent Non-executive Directors BAUFHITESE
Mr. TSOI David BRERE
Mr. SHEK Lai Him Abraham YRR E i
Mr. LEE Jor Hung TR AE
Ms. YU Pauline Wah Ling TERLZ L
Notes: B 5
A: Attend seminars/symposia/meetings/forums on directors’ professional A:
and/or duties.
B: Attend training courses on directors’ professional and/or duties B:
arranged by the Company.
C: Read books, articles, journals and other materials in relation to C:

the economy, corporate governance, regulatory developments,
environmental businesses, directors’ duties or other related topics.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® KK EBR AT

Types of
Training/et
55 31 g B

> >
W
OO0

>

>
w O

> >
W ww >
OO0 00

HEABES EXR IBEZE LT

HE ERE/BERE

HERAATEHNEFIEER LB
B2 YR -

BEAMAE tXEh BEEER R
RED EFRELHECHAMZESNE

B ooxE - BT



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EXRECRS ()

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Investment Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company
are established with specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with their authority and duties. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee are posted on the Company’s
website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors.

1. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Tsoi
David, Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham, and Mr. Lee Jor Hung.
Mr. Tsoi David is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.
The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the
Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting
process, risk management and internal control systems,
effectiveness of the internal audit function, scope of audit
and appointment of external auditors, and arrangements to
enable employees of the Company to raise concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
or other matters of the Company.
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The Audit Committee has held 4 meetings during the
reporting period. The Audit Committee has reviewed the
interim and annual results and the interim and annual
reports; met with external auditor to ensure appropriate
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group;
assisted the Board in meeting its responsibilities for
maintaining an effective system of internal control; reviewed
the compliance of continuing connected transaction, the
internal audit report and the internal audit function of the
Group. The Audit Committee also met with the external
auditors 4 times during the year ended 31 December 2021.

RBEHE ERZEgE R THAE
F - ERZECDEMNTHREEES
ARFPERFERE  EINEZHBA S -
BRASEEFEMNBENSH R KT
MO EEERITHEAFERASELZR
SHORE BEHAEERERERSW
BTER - REERRERADEZB
BEIE R - RELE 2021412 A31B ILFE -
EZZEgEIINEZEMERTONAE

22
°

The committee members’ attendance of the Audit BEZEE@KERBREHEONLEF R
Committee during the reporting period is set out as T :
follows:
Attendance/Number of
meetings during
the reporting period
HERE  NBREHH
BITEBRRY
Mr. Tsoi David (Chairman) BEARMERE(FE) 4/4
Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham AEHEAE 4/4
Mr. Li Yinzhong TRFP A
(resigned on 26 August 2021) (PR2021 8 H26H & 1F) 2/4
Mr. Lee Jor Hung TEHREE
(appointed on 26 August 2021) (FA2021F 8 A26B £ 1) N/AT 75 F3
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Liu Jia, an executive Director, Mr. Lee Jor
Hung, an independent non-executive Director, and Ms. Yu
Pauline Wah Ling, an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Lee Jor Hung is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are of no less exacting terms than those
set out in the CG Code. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee include reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Directors and senior management,
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors
and senior management; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy
and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/
her associates will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration.

The Remuneration Committee has held 2 meetings during
the reporting period. The Remuneration Committee
has reviewed the remuneration packages of individual
Directors, and members of senior management. It has also
reviewed the remuneration packages and services contract
of the newly directors. The aforesaid approved matters and
review were reported and recommended to the Board.

The committee members’ attendance of the Remuneration
Committee during the reporting period is set out as
follows:

Mr. Lee Jor Hung (Chairman) TR E(ERE)
Mr. Liu Jia BE
Ms. Yu Pauline Wah Ling FERL L

FMESS

FHEZE SR =R EBEAKR  B#H
TEFZREE BIUIFATES
FHEHEERBYFRITESTTE
Bt -FEBEERFHEES
EE e

FHZEeNBEXBY N ER G
XEATRMEMGER - FHEZE
ENTEREBEISEZTLSR
EEENFMEE 2RBEFELS
REBBNHMBERERBETR
MYRMEFSREEH ALK Z
FHMBRRLEEHNEEERAEZ
B BRUIEBEEHETAMBE
AET2EBERSHH -

RBEHE FMEESEETW
ReZ-FHEZESCRERNE
ENEREEEKRENH TS -
ENBHFTEETNFMTBERE
BRTS& 4 o bt & #E = 18 Rt & 45
REAEFERERFLERZZ -

FMEEGRERBEHRMMEE
KEIMT :

Attendance/Number of meetings

during the reporting period
HERH AREDHHE
LHITEBRY

2/2

2/2

2/2
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of
the remuneration of the senior management by bands for
the year ended 31 December 2021 is as follows:

Exceeding RMB1,000,000
Not exceeding RMB1,000,000

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Mr. Ma Heming, an executive Director, Mr. Shek Lai
Him Abraham, an independent non-executive Director, and
Mr. Lee Jor Hung, an independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham is a chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
of no less exacting terms than those set out in the CG
Code. The principal duties of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the Board composition, developing and
formulating relevant procedures for the nomination and
appointment of Directors, making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment and succession planning of
Directors, and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee would take into account various aspects as
well as factors concerning Board diversity as set out in the
Company’s Board diversity policy, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience etc. The Nomination Committee
would discuss and agree on measurable objectives for
achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.
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The Nomination Committee has held 3 meetings during the
reporting period. The Nomination Committee reviewed the
structure, size and composition and diversity of the Board,
reviewed the board nomination policy, the board diversity
policy and it implementation, assessed the independence
of independent non-executive Directors, discussed and
made recommendation to the board of Directors on the
re-election of all retiring directors at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company. It has also
selected of individuals nominated for directorships. The
aforesaid approved matters and review were reported and
recommended to the Board.

The committee members’ attendance of the Nomination
Committee during the reporting period is set out as
follows:

Mr. Shek Lai Him Abraham AEREE(EE)
(Chairman)
Mr. Lee Jor Hung TR A
Mr. Lin Zimin MEG k&
(resigned on 15 April 2021) (742021564 A15H & f£)
Mr. Ma Heming FERLE
(appointed on 15 April 2021) (FR2021F 4158 £ 1)

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee consists of five members, two
executive Directors namely Mr. Liu Jia and Mr. Ma Heming
and three independent non-executive Directors namely Mr.
Lee Jor Hung, Mr. Tsoi David and Ms. Yu Pauline Wah Ling.
Mr. Liu Jia is the chairman of the Investment Committee.

The principal duties of the Investment Committee include
reviewing and evaluating any investment projects proposed
by the Company, making recommendations to the Board
on such investment project, and also reviewing the annual
investment plan of the Company.

The Investment Committee has held 1 meeting during the
reporting period. The Investment Committee reviewed
and evaluated the Company’s investment portfolio and its
performance.
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The committee members’ attendance of the Investment
Committee during the reporting period is set out as
follows:

Mr. Liu Jia (Chairman) Bzt (FE)

Mr. Lee Jor Hung T AE
Mr. Tsoi David BRKERE
Ms. Yu Pauline Wah Ling FEBLZL
Mr. Lin Zimin MEH L
(resigned on 15 April 2021) (FR202154 158 B 1)
Mr. Ma Heming FERLE
(appointed on 15 April 2021) (FR2021F 4158 £ 1)

Other than the 4 Board committees above, the Executives
Committee, being chaired by the CEO, is responsible for
handling day-to-day business activities and making collective
decisions on major matters relating to the Group’s daily
business operations, management and personnel matters, etc.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board had reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the
Company'’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model Code, and
the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EXRECRS ()

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for monitoring the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems, as well as conducting a review on an annual basis.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can
only provide reasonable (and not absolute) assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and
establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing their design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems
and reviews the internal audit report presented by the senior
management.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk
management procedures and guidelines with defined
authority for implementation by key business processes and
office functions, including project management, sales and
leasing, financial reporting, human resources and information
technology.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems
have been developed with the following principles, features and
processes:

All divisions/departments conduct internal control assessment
regularly to identify risks that potentially impact the business of
the Group and various aspects including key operational and
financial processes, regulatory compliance and information
security. Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm
that control policies are properly complied with by each division/
department.

The management, in coordination with division/department
heads, assesses the likelihood of risk occurrence, provides
treatment plans, monitors the risk management progress, as
well as reports to the Audit Committee and the Board on all the
findings and the effectiveness of the systems.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EXREBRS (&)

The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems for the period from the Listing Date and
up to the date of this report.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as
the management, reviewed the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group, including the financial, operational
and compliance controls, for the year ended 31 December 2021,
and considered that such systems are effective and adequate.
The annual review also covered the financial reporting and staff
qualifications, experiences and relevant resources. The findings
have been addressed. No significant areas of improvement
which are required to be brought to the attention of the Board
have been revealed.

Whistleblowing procedures are in place to facilitate employees
of the Company to raise, in confidential, concerns about
possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or
other matters of the Company.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which
provides a general guide to the Company’s Directors, officers,
senior management and relevant employees in handling
confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and
responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that

unauthorized access and use of inside information are strictly
prohibited.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EXRECRS ()

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 105 to
110.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the Company’s external auditors of
the Company in respect of audit services and review and other
services for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
RMB1.0 million and RMBO0.3 million respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for
ensuring that Board policy and procedures are followed and
Board activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. The
Company Secretary is a full-time employee of the Company.
Although the Company Secretary reports to the Chairman of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer, all the Directors may
call upon the Company Secretary for assistance and advice
at any time in respect to their duties so as to ensure effective
operation of the Board and the committees thereunder. The
Company Secretary advises the Board on governance matters
and facilitates the induction and professional development of
Directors. As at 31 December 2021, the Company Secretary of
the Company has undertaken 15 hours of relevant professional
training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EREORS (#)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted the following board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”).

The Board recognizes the benefit of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. A diverse Board
includes and makes good use of differences in the skills,
industry knowledge and experience, education, background and
other qualities of the Directors and does not discriminate on the
ground of race, age, gender, culture or religious belief.

The Nomination Committee has responsibility for reviewing and
reporting to the Board in relation to the Board diversity.

All the Board appointments will be considered by the Nomination
Committee and recommended to the Board for formal approval
based on the diversity perspectives.

Selection of candidates for Board appointment will be based
on a range of diversity perspectives including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural/educational and professional background,
skills and experience.

The ultimate decision will be based on merit against objective
criteria and contribution that the candidate will bring to the
Board.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the
diversity of the Board is sufficient.

The Board will review and monitor from time to time the
implementation of Board Diversity Policy to ensure its
effectiveness and will at appropriate time set measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EXRECRS ()

BOARD NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has adopted the following board nomination policy
(the “Board Nomination Policy”).

The factor listed below shall be considered by the Nomination
Committee in selecting the candidates for directors (“Selection
Criteria”):

° character and integrity;

° achievements and professional experience that is beneficial
to the development of the Company;

° professional experience in real estate operations and other
related fields;

° potential time commitment;

° board diversity in all aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age (18 years old or above), cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service;

° independence of the candidates (if applicable); and

° the term of service that the candidates have served for the
reappointment of the independent non-executive Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EXREBRS (&)

NOMINATION PROCEDURES

A.

Nomination by the Nomination Committee

° The Nomination Committee shall review the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, professional
qualification, knowledge and experience) of the Board
at least annually and make recommendation on any
proposed change to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy.

° The Nomination Committee can be assisted by
external agencies and/or consultants in identifying
potential candidates.

U The Nomination Committee may seek advice from
the Board members in recommending candidates or
nominate other candidates who are not nominated by
the Board members in appointing additional Directors
or filling Board vacancies.

U The Nomination Committee shall refer to the
Selection Criteria to determine whether the
proposed candidates are eligible and suitable to
become Directors of the Company and provide
advice to the Board in this regard for the Board
to consider approving the appointment of the
proposed candidates as the Company’s Directors or
recommending the proposed candidates to be elected
as the Company’s Directors in the general meeting.

Nomination by the Shareholders

Shareholders may nominate candidates for election of
the Company’s Directors in accordance to the applicable
rules of the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association
of the Company. The specific procedures are set out in
the “Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for
Election as a Director” as prepared and adopted by the
Company from time to time.

The Nomination Committee is authorized by the Board
to review this policy from time to time to ensure its
effectiveness and to give advice to the Board on the
proposed amendments for the Board’s approval as
necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EXRECRS ()

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted the following dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”).

The Board will consider the following factors when considering
the proposed dividend payment and determining its amount:

(1)  the current and future funding needs of the Company for
operations and business development;

(2) the market conditions from time to time;
(8) the Company’s liquidity and financial position;

(4) the requirement of the Company’s Articles of Association
and the relevant laws, regulations and rules applicable to
the Company;

(5) any banking or other funding covenants by which the
Company is bound;

(6) the solvency requirements of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong); and

(7) any other circumstances that the Board considers relevant.

The Board will review, discuss and revise the Dividend Policy
in accordance with the Company’s profit, financial needs and
other factors from time to time.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolution should be proposed for each substantially separate
issue at general meetings, including the election of individual
Director. All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be
voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results
will be posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock
Exchange after each general meeting.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)
EXREBRS (&)

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Shareholders of the Company should follow the requirements
and procedures as set out in the laws of the Cayman Islands
and where applicable, the Company’s Articles of Association,
for convening a general meeting.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Shareholders of the Company should follow the requirements
and procedures as set out in the laws of the Cayman Islands
and where applicable, the Company’s Articles of Association,
for circulating a resolution for annual general meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.
The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

Contact Details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:

Address: Room 1302, 13th Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour
View Centre, 56 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong

(852) 2545 5256

inquiry@ebgca.com.hk

Fax:
Email:

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and
send the original duly signed written requisition, notice or
statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address
and provide their full name, contact details and identification in
order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be
disclosed as required by law.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (Continued)

EXRECRS ()

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investor understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The annual general meeting provides an
opportunity for the Shareholders to communicate directly with
the Directors. The Chairman of the Company and the chairmen
of the Board Committees of the Company will attend the annual
general meeting to answer Shareholders’ questions. The Auditor
will also attend the annual general meeting to answer questions
about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and content
of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

The Company has in place a shareholder communication
policy to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are
appropriately addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to
ensure its effectiveness.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and
enhancing communication with the existing shareholders and
potential investors. It welcomes suggestions from investors,
stakeholders and the public. Enquiries to the Board or the
Company may be sent by post to the Company’s address.
The Company also maintains a website at www.ebgca.com.hk
where up-to-date information and updates of the Company’s
operations, performances and strategies are available to public
access.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

During the year, there were no changes made to the Company’s
constitutional documents.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT

RE  TBRELCRS

The Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report
2021 (the “Report”) of Everbright Grand China Assets Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, collectively
referred to as the “Group”) has been prepared in accordance to
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide set
out in Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

This is the fifth annual ESG report published by the Group,
covering the operations of our headquarters in Hong Kong and
property management services in Chengdu from 1 January to
31 December 2021 (the “reporting period”), which discloses
information on the Group’s management approach and
performance of relevant significant environmental and social
issues'?3, The Board has overall responsibility for the
sustainability progress of the Group, and guides and supervises
our environmental, social and governance policies and
strategies as well as reviewing and evaluating the performance
and progress of relevant indicators regularly. The Board has
reviewed and approved the Report.

In 2021, the Group has strived to collaborate with stakeholders
from all sectors to accelerate post-epidemic economic,
livelihood and industry recovery, continued to respond to the
call from local governments in epidemic prevention, as well
as strictly implementing multiple measures to reinforce anti-
epidemic defenses. Meanwhile, the Group has also adhered to
its sustainable development strategy, integrated the concept
of green development into corporate governance and business
planning, and continuously raised the environmental awareness
of internal and external stakeholders.

We welcome valuable comments and suggestions from all
sectors on this Report as well as our ESG performance.
If you have any comments, please contact us by email at
inquiry@ebgca.com.hk.

1 Data of contractors and tenants are not reflected in this Report;

2 Apart from integral numbers, all data in this Report are rounded to
two decimal places; and

3 All intensity data in this Report cover our property management
services in Chengdu only. All intensities are calculated per sg.m. of
managed gross floor area (“GFA”).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

BE MEBRELCRS(E)

ENVIRONMENT
Prioritised SDGs :

The Group takes environmental protection as its own
responsibility and regards sustainable development as the core
guidance of our business activities. We have formulated the
Green Office Guidelines and Water Resources management
Guidelines based on the nature of our business to manage
the environmental performance of our building management,
facility operations and maintenance operations, which includes
greenhouse gas emissions, energy use, water use and waste
disposal, etc. We also conduct environmental audits to achieve
the goal of minimising pollution through weekly safety and
sanitation inspections.

In addition, we value environmental protection training and are
committed to promoting environmental awareness inside and
outside the Group. We also regularly organise relevant trainings
and workshops. In the community, we promote environmental
protection activities and display relevant messages amongst our
tenants and stakeholders in our properties. Apart from that, we
provide various channels to encourage employees to show their
creativity, conceive corresponding environmental protection
measures in accordance with their own jobs, and take concrete
steps to build a green working environment.

During the reporting period, the Group did not violate any
relevant environmental regulations, nor was it subject to any
fines or charge.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

BE MERELCHRS(E)

Greenhouse Gas and Air Pollutants Emissions

Management

The Group is aware that the magnitude of climate change is
increasing, such as global warming, sea level rise and extreme
weather, which may have a significant impact on our business
and operations. In view of this, we strictly monitor and review
greenhouse gases (“GHG”) and air emissions data generated by
the business, advocate green office, and progressively formulate
and launch measures to improve energy efficiency. We continue
to explore and move forward on the way to achieve low-carbon
emission and emission reduction, helping to fight against the

threats brought by climate change.

To accurately record the GHG emissions during operation,
the Group adopts the calculation method listed in Guidelines
to Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions

and Removals for Buildings (Commercial,

Residential or

Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong (2010 Edition) compiled
by the Electrical and Mechanical Services Department and
Environmental Protection Department of Hong Kong, providing
stakeholders with comprehensive and reliable data concerning
the type, amount and scope of our greenhouse gas emissions.

GHG Emissions in 2021
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2021F RERBHENE

Emissions GHG Emissions Intensity
(tCO.e) (tCOze/sq m. of managed GFA)
EHE | RZERBHREE (M=-F1t
(M_FtmEE $Hﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ)
Direct GHG Emissions (Scope 1)
EEAZERBHME(HE—) 154.93
Indirect GHG Emissions (Scope 2)
REREZEAEREHERE (BB ) 1,094.76
0.03
Other Indirect GHG Emissions (Scope 3)
HiHEREREBENE (BKE=) 43.58
Total GHG Emissions
BERBHERAES 1,293.27

Notes: B 5E -

(1)  Emission factor for electricity purchased in Scope 2 is referenced to (1) %ﬁ B—-A ﬁﬁ“ NIHEREB T2 ER/H
the latest available emission data released by The Hongkong Electric BEERAGAMANSETHEREZSHRER X
Company Limited and the 2021 Average Grid Emission Factor in l%?‘ﬂi??"ﬁ‘ﬁﬂ’momiil@%ﬂii’ﬂ#
China issued by the National Development and Reform Commission WA T

(NDRC) of the PRGC;

(2)  The Scope 3 GHG emissions include paper waste disposal, water
consumption and air travel (the relevant GHG emissions were
calculated by the International Civil Aviation Organisation Carbon

Emissions Calculator).
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

BE MEBRELCRS(E)

Air Emissions in 2021

2021FZRFRYHNE

Emissions (g)
HEHE(R)
Particulate Matter (PM)
FE R 32.35
Sulphur Oxides (SO )
i 8L 7 (SO) 28.41
Nitrogen Oxides (NO )
AALHINO) 439.39
Notes: Bt 5 -
(1) Emissions include gasoline consumption of business vehicles; ) HRYBEAEEEH )T HIERE:

(2)  The calculation method and emission factor are referenced to the
Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs of the Stock Exchange.

Energy Use

The Group actively implements energy-saving measures
according to our Green Office Guidelines, including the
installation of energy metering systems to closely monitoring
energy consumption and improve energy efficiency. In the office,
we maximise the use of natural light and turn off unnecessary
lighting. As we believe that environmental protection
achievements need to be gathered from bits and pieces, we
encourage employees to start with the small things around them
and cultivate good energy-saving habits, such as switching
computers to energy saving mode, turning off computers and
other electrical appliances at the end of the day, and unplugging
electrical appliances before long holidays.

Direct Energy Consumption in 2021

@ FHEFERBREBDZ2REBIMCGRE
AR RERIES) -

BE R £ A

AEBERBMAZRRFREIDEREE
FIEMEERE BRLEKERTERS
NZ R RIBEE - e RE R
RRERIT - ERRERN - HPEBEFN
REAX AKX TLENEAFELH
e HMESBE TMEs 2/ FHE
BERINSMEERE NEHEHEKY
BmEHERRER THERBERTHE
EREEMESR  RERANKEESRE
BE - AREPBERERKHE BB
BEE 2% T X ©

20215 EEERERE

Consumption Intensity

B HE

Electricity (kWh) 39.82 (kWh/sg. m. of managed GFA)
BN (TEE) 1,871,163 (FE®/FHREBRELEEE)
Gasoline (L) 0.04 (L/sg. m. of managed GFA)
ol (71) 1,932.50 (A FERRERELEERE)
Natural Gas (tonne) 1.40 (tonne/sqg. m. of managed GFA)
KRR (HE) 65,789.00 (W FHAEREE@ME)
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

BE MERELCHRS(E)

Water Resources Management

We cherish water resources and are committed to reducing the
consumption of freshwater resources in our operations. The
Group’s Water Management Guidelines advocate sustainable
water usage principles such as the use of separate drainage
and sewerage systems and strict monitoring of emissions
to ensure that the discharged wastewater comply with local
emissions standards. The guidelines also include a series
of water conservation measures which are implemented
gradually, aiming at reducing water consumption and enhancing
employees’ awareness of saving water resources at the same
time. To ensure that reliable and high-quality drinking water are
provided to our users as well as preventing the wastage of water
resources, we conduct regular cleaning and water quality tests
of the water supply system under our properties in accordance
with the Repair and Maintenance Guidelines, as well as regular
maintenance of drainage system and timely repair when leakage
is found.

In addition, Chengdu Municipal Waterworks Co., Ltd. issues
specific water consumption targets to our projects in Chengdu
every year. During the reporting period, each operating unit has
balanced the planned water usage, implemented stringent water
conservation practices and successfully achieved all of the
water consumption targets. The Group will constantly review the
water usage and consumption in daily operation for continuous
optimization of water usage patterns and solutions.

During the reporting period, all wastewater was discharged to
designated sewers in accordance with local regulations and no

violations occurred.

Water Consumption in 2021

KEREE

BMEBKERELBMORBLELHY
HRIKE R EFE © $Elm@*§ﬁ%ﬁ
?ﬁWF@Tﬁ%%@m%K@W'a%
EREURE 5 5 B HE K R &t 0B % i i )
HERR Mflﬁﬂﬁﬂmﬁﬁﬁéﬁm
MEE - ZIESIEBRE —RIBEHLH
FKE bt ﬁiﬁﬁ'ﬁﬁyﬁm%m
ARERATEIHERKERNER
RERAAFPEREZE SN RKAR
DIEKERREE  RMBRB(EERERE
SDEHETYENERKREETERE
B ROKE R OBl - WA HEK R 1T E B
BEREERE - ?ﬁ%ﬁ&5$%°

Bt - KE T BERKEREE AR ETF
HeHRMELAKXBHNEE TELEN
AKIEZ - RREHR SELEMNA
TEETEHERKE  BITEK K
EKTAHEIMMAKERZ - NEB R
NEeFEYABELNANKERETHRE
THEF S ORAKNBEARAR -

BEHA - FABEISKEZE W ERFER
ERESKER  RAEBLEERTR -
20215 %K E

Consumption (L)

Water Consumption
Intensity (L/sq.m. of

managed GFA)
FEKEBE(H/FHXK

Water

FEKE(FH) EEEERERMSE)
Water
7K 52,124.00 1.11
Note: B 5

(1) Water usage in the Hong Kong headquarters is managed by the
building where the office is located. As the managerial department
cannot provide data or metered record on water use for individual
tenants, data of water consumption in our Hong Kong headquarters
is not included in this Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

BE MEBRELCRS(E)

Resources and Waste Management

The Group’s Green Office Guidelines outline concepts of
“reduce, reuse and recycle”. Therefore, we persist in keeping
systematic records on material usage to reduce unnecessary
consumption and purchase in order to continuously improve the
procurement procedures and promote resources utilisation. The
Group has posted tips and placed collection bags and boxes to
collect recyclables such as paper and plastic. General waste is
collected by the building management and handled by dedicated
waste collectors and recyclers to prevent illegal dumping of
waste. We will continue to improve the resource recovery
system and encourage employees to actively participate in the
recycling plan to ensure the efficiency of resource recycling.

Paper is the major resource consumption of the Group’s
daily operation and therefore paper conservation is our key
resource conservation goal. We have implemented paper-saving
measures in our offices, such as encouraging to replace printed
documents with electronic copies, reuse paper and double-
sided printing, etc. Moreover, we selected Forest Stewardship
Council (FSC) certified paper to print the Group’s annual report
and publications to avoid harvesting virgin forests. During the
reporting period, a total of 0.16 tonnes of papers were recycled.

Waste generation in 2021

ERNREYMER

AEBNC(HAERRIESDREMMEH
B-BEYANBERERERINERE  Hit
BREBEHSHEREHIERFEMRL S
AR TBBERHEEMEKE  READ
BT THERBREFRESERMA
AEBERMERENERRRMIRRK
B AEWE MR R RS [
EEY -FA-—REVHEAXNEEER
% UYHEENEYRERMEKREEE
UH@EERERY - RPBEETS
BEREW RS ZBETREGE2HERE K
A ERERBRMNBOEHIME -

PWAAKEAEEHEELENETEER
HE BRERLOBEERMEEREE
TEHMNEBZEZE - BMERACEHERT
ZEEHOPBEER WEBUEFHERE
B ED Rl 2 EE4E (B 4R oR K % [ 4T £/
Z o A - BRPIRABRMEEZ EE(FSC)
REMIRRERKNDUEBRFR LT Y -
B IEMREK R R e ERMEBHA - &
5 — 4L B Ux TO.16ME Ay 4K 3R ©

2021FEEYELEE

Waste Generation

Waste Generation Intensity
(tonne/sqg.m. of managed GFA)

(tonne) BEBEVELETE
BEYEL S (HE) (W, FHAREEEZEESE)

Non-hazardous Waste
mEREZEY 173.21 0.004

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3§

59



60

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

RE MBRELSRS (8)

SOCIAL
Prioritised SDGs :

Our Employees

Employees are our most precious asset and driving force for the
vigorous development of the Group. As of 31 December 2021,
the Group had a total of 141 employees, all of them were full-
time employees.

He
BANAIFEZERER:

A E B

BEITREMEBEEMNER BMBEE
TRAEEEDBEEND H - & =2021
F12A318 - AEBERBIMNEET FiE

Employee number as of 31 December 2021 B Z£2021F12A31EMNE T A
Iélale 85
By Gender
Z3ERh ) Female
56
z
Under 30 years old 2
30m AR
31-40 years old 40
By Age 31-405%
RFERED 41-50 years old 52
41-5073%
Above 50 years old 47
505 M £
gzh%egngdu 132
By Geological Location
BESR D Hong Kong 9
g8
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

BE MEBRELCRS(E)

Welfare and Safeguards

The Group upholds the people-oriented philosophy and is
committed to protecting the rights and interests of employees,
promoting their physical and mental health, and creating an
inclusive, fair and mutually trusting working environment. We
have formulated a series of management policies such as the
Personnel Management Regulation, the Chengdu Everbright
Property Handbook and the Chengdu Everbright Property
Owner Management Handbook to ensure our practice complies
with the laws and regulations including the Labour Contract
Law of the PRC and the Labour Law of the PRC. The relevant
management policies provided guidance and safeguard
on the working environment, compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods, other
benefits and welfare, training and development, occupational
health and safety and child labour and forced labour for
our employees. Moreover, we have formulated the Policy on
Preventing Discriminations, Harassments and Upholding Equal
Opportunities to provide equal and diverse career opportunities.
Such policy safeguards employees from discrimination,
harassment and vilification due to gender, disability, family
status, marital status, race, etc. Employees can express their
concerns related to any unwanted behavior through a dedicated
anonymous reporting email account and hotline.

The Group offers competitive remuneration packages to our
employees to attract and retain talents. We periodically review
policies on remuneration and welfare, adjustments are made
every year based on year-end assessment results of employees,
business performance of the Group and the salary level of the
industry. Other employee welfare includes medical insurance,
paid annual leave, maternity/paternity leave, examination leave,
overtime allowance, and red pocket for birthday, etc. The Group
also hosts various social activities to reinforce social interaction
and friendship amongst employees, thus reinforcing team
cohesion.

During the reporting period, there were no violations of laws or
regulations on labour standards, child labour or forced labour.

B RRE

REBRAITAABSKNINZOEEES
O REET#E  REEFORE
BlE—EBS 2F BEENIERE-
HAPIHE TCAFTE G E) - (ALK
MEFMRARBREAREETEETFMF
BB EAEREEET(PEARKLA
BEHaRE) (FPEARAXMES B
BYERRER - HAEEFERBELHE
THERE FWEEE BERET
TR RYP  HMFEMNEN - 5
FIMBER BERBEAZEZUARHILE
TRBESHET M T ESI RRE -
o PR TRBHEFERZITHORE
wemEI(hLERLRBEM TSRS
BE) BEEITSEMR  BK K
EREA - SRR ERFRXXIE
MEANEKSRE BREMBERHE BT
ANEBEMERMEZHRETIILTR
TRIFERSER -

AEBERBETREERF NN G NGB
WREEBEENBE THENFRIEAAR
SIFMEREAT - HME TR H MR
BHRDENREK  ARBEETINFR

TER SEEBRERTEFIMKF
BFEELEERNRAR HMWEIRMNE
RERRR BFFR ERIGER -
ZHR - MIDERE  AHAREE - AEH
NedEsRBELDY HEB TN
REFHMKE BSEEFREN -

R|EHRR  HPABEERELETRE
BETHRHISTHERBNERRLR -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

BE MERELCHRS(E)

Training and Development

We have always regarded human resources development as an
important foundation of our corporate strategic management to
improve with our employees. For a long time, we have attached
great importance to the career planning of employees, paid
attention to and responded to the needs of our employees in
training, promotion, internal transfer, remuneration and other
aspects to realise self-enhancement.

The Group’s Personnel Management Regulation, Chengdu
Everbright Property Handbook and Chengdu Everbright
Property Owner Management Handbook states our policies in
training, assessment and promotion, as well as the vocational
training requirements for employees at all levels. Each
department is also required to submit the Employee Training
Plan Form regularly to ensure employees have continuous
access to training opportunities. In 2021, all employees have
participated in training programmes.

The Group encourages employees in continuing learning by
investing resources and providing a wide range of vocational
training covering business management, information technology,
occupational safety, anti-corruption, first aid, etc., with an aim
to cultivate the habit of lifelong learning for employees and help
them develop deeper and wider fields of knowledge and skills.
In addition to unified training, various departments regularly
organise exchange meetings to learn from each other, improve
cross-departmental communication and understanding and
work more effectively. We also attach great importance to the
training plan for new employees. Through the three stages of
training — company, department and on-site, we help new
colleagues to familiarise and adapt to our company culture,
policies and code of conduct in the shortest possible time, and
establish their own life plan and development direction in the
company. Moreover, we encourage and sponsor our employees
to take part in external training and continuing education to
enrich their knowledge and skills. For employees who completed
any self-learning module or attained any qualification related to
the businesses of the Group, we will incorporate their copy of
proof as reference in year-end assessment, internal transfer and
promotion arrangements.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® KK EBR AT

BEIEBER
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MEEBNEEZER BHINREREITHE
AEBOHREDS - REUK KMAE
RETITHBESLERE  BITEES
TEEY B AR HFHESHE
MESX ARTERAREERMEE
ELZEfE] o

AEBROCASZEEFE)  (BHE X AY
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

BE MEBRELCRS(E)

During the reporting period, newly appointed directors of the
Group participated in the training about Director’s Responsibility
Memorandum hosted by an external party to understand the
latest corporate laws and regulatory requirements, and discuss
issues related to corporate governance, green operation and
social responsibility. Staff attend professional training courses
and seminars, including business development and strategy,
finance, legal, corporate governance, taxation, etc. The
latest applicable laws, rules and regulations are circulated to
employees and directors from time to time.

Health and Safety

The Group always puts the health and safety of employees
and the public as our top priority and abides by the principle
of “Safety First”. We strictly comply with the requirements of
relevant occupational health and safety legislation and follow the
requirements of the Group’s Occupational Health Management
Policy by regularly identifying, monitoring and reviewing the
potential safety risks of our workplaces. We provide monthly
vocational safety training for our employees, with topics covering
maintenance and repair of property equipment, power shortage
contingency measures, lift entrapment contingency measures,
flood control measures in summer, contingency measures in
car parks during flooding, etc. Moreover, we promote the safety
culture through various activities and internal communication
channels.

As a property management company and corporate citizen,
it is our responsibility to protect the safety of tenants and
the public. The Chengdu Everbright Property Handbook and
Chengdu Everbright Property Owner Management Handbook
cover detailed safety and health-related operating procedures in
property management, as well as emergency plans in response
to manufacturing accidents and to ensure operational safety.
The Group has also set up the Signage Management Guideline
that aims to enhance management of various signage, such as
control on fire safety, safety and guidance in public areas of the
buildings (e.g. corridors and exterior walls, etc.). The guideline
provides detailed stipulations on the use of signage in various
high-risk operations or workplaces. For instance, to prevent
and reduce the risk of industrial accidents, corresponding
safety signs should be placed during regular maintenance of
elevators, aloft work or other construction and maintenance
works while the dangerous area should be enclosed. In addition
to safe operations and emergency plans, we are also pledged
to prevent the daily life of tenants and the public from being
disturbed. Therefore, before arranging any maintenance work,
we will budget sufficient time for tenants and the public to make
alternative arrangements.

RBEESHMA AEEHRTEELRTH
SN BRBNERACEFTAETHRTHINIE
Al E—F TR TEEERGERBRN
REMBE MNTERALRER BB
BEMteETMWERZER - BT2N
EEXRJIREERTAT G BREBER
KBRS B ER EXER BB
o RMHERERE  RANERTE
METREEER -

RERZE

AEBBEREEIMARNREREREZ 2
MEBEMN  BTIZE2F—ERRE -
BPBRRETHEBOBR R AR LK
BEASBE(BERREEHNE)NER
EHBA - BEERRRSEXZSNE
EzzER TEAREBTIREBRER
2EI - AEBRDERBEENRE
FERSER EMRARSERE B
FRER KXRFESEEIE
BATEBIREHRABBERESS
BRAEHREX -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

BE MERELCHRS(E)

In addition, we have formulated the “Responsibility Pledge
on Property Security and Fire Safety Mechanism” to protect
the fire safety of our properties. The pledge requires the
relevant property users to strictly abide by the national laws
and regulations on fire safety management, and to establish
corresponding rules and regulations based on the tenant
characteristics. We also strive to provide a healthy environment
for employees, visitors and the public by promoting the
Smoke-free Workspace Policy at our offices and actively
encouraging tenants to implement such policy. In 2021, in order
to enhance the fire safety awareness of the employees and
building personnel, Chengdu Branch held practical drills on
evacuation and fire fighting in June and November respectively,
which greatly improved the fire safety knowledge in various
departments of the property service center and the emergency
response capability for similar emergencies.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® KK EBR AT
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

BE MEBRELCRS(E)

This year, the COVID-19 pandemic has been gradually brought
under control in mainland China. Yet, under the severe situation
of the global pandemic, the anti-epidemic work cannot be
relaxed. The Group pays close attention to the latest anti-
epidemic policies and instructions by the local government,
actively responds to and implements relevant prevention and
control measures and stick to the line of defense against the
coronavirus. The Group’s properties continue to implement
crowd control with some entrances and exits closed, and
conduct temperature measurement and identity information
registration at designated entrances. Apart from this, we also
regularly clean and disinfect our buildings, especially in public
spaces such as elevators and escalators. At the same time,
we implemented flexible working hours in the office to allow
employees to work in shifts and to lower the labor density in
the office. Together with actively encouraging employees to
vaccinate, these epidemic prevention approaches not only
reduce the risk of virus transmission and the probability of
indirect infection, but also effectively control the Group’s
operational risks.

During the reporting period, we had no violations of laws
or regulations pertaining to health and safety matters in the
workplace or related to our services.

Supplier Management

The Group’s suppliers primarily provide us with construction and
maintenance, as well as mechanical and electrical equipments,
etc.

In order to establish sustainable partnerships and reduce
procurement risks and costs, we have developed a systemic
supplier selection and management system. Our bidding and
tendering management regulations in the Chengdu Everbright
Property Handbook and the Chengdu Everbright Property
Owner Management Handbook detailed the process of bidding
and tendering, contract signing, as well as inspection and
supervision. The Group’s procurement team specialises in
setting up supplier profiles and to keep record of the supplies.
We aim to integrate green practices into our supply chain
by factoring in the supplier’s track records of social and
environmental compliance during the procurement process as
well as prioritizing the purchase of environmentally friendly and
energy saving materials.

45 COVID-19BRBEBRNE X 5 iE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

BE MERELCHRS(E)

To ensure the quality of our suppliers, our cost audit team,
finance department, engineering department and inventory team
also carry out regular reviews, inspections and assessments
for suppliers in accordance with the Group’s Management
Guidelines on Supplier Selection and Evaluation. We conduct an
overall evaluation to our suppliers annually by assessing areas
including product guality, environmental and social compliance
with reference to the Evaluation Form of Supplier Management.
Suppliers are classified into five grades, namely, A, B, C, D, and
E, based on their assessment result. Rewards or penalties are
given to suppliers of corresponding grades to ensure that we
always cooperate with the best suppliers.

Anti-Corruption

Maintaining integrity and fairness is the foundation of sustainable
development of enterprises. We strictly comply with the Anti-
unfair Competition Law of the PRC and the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance in Hong Kong, and clearly stated the Group’s moral
standards in our Code of Conduct, requiring all board members
and employees to uphold integrity and business ethics. We do
not tolerate any forms of corruption, fraud, bribery, extortion,
money laundering and any other unfair or unethical conducts
under any circumstances. The Group has set up an Anti-
Corruption and Reporting Mechanism led by the Board of
Directors that offers channels and guidance for employees to
report any misconducts. We also require our clients to sign the
Anti-Business Corruption Agreement as part of the property
management services agreement or leasing contract.

The Group also attaches great importance to the anti-corruption
laws and regulations and regularly conducts relevant trainings
for employees, such as inviting the Independent Commission
Against Corruption (ICAC) to provide seminars for our employees
to enhance the awareness and knowledge of anti-corruption
among staff at all levels.

During the reporting period, the Group had no experience in

any cases nor violations of laws and regulations related to anti-
corruption.
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RETIRBETHREMTETRIEL SR
MRE RIS - RPMEEREP
BIRBXBEEWZE) R EERE
REHAEXEHESRN—&D -

AEBNMERBETETREBNER
B EHRFAMBEEI - 0BG RR
REREINREEEBETEE BAS
MABHREBHNRMAL M E

RBERAR AEEYECELEFAER
HThERERESEBONEAREANGE
St e



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

BE MEBRELCRS(E)

Community Investment

We are committed to serving the community and giving back
to the people by working together with the community and
promoting community prosperity. We have formulated the
Community and Philanthropy Policy to take part in issues that
are of concerns through charitable donations and encouraging
our employees to devote to community services and
volunteering work. In the future, we will continue to reach out
to the communities, promote their material culture development
according to their needs, and contribute to the development of
livelihoods and social harmony.

The COVID-19 epidemic has had a tremendous impact on the
lives of the country and its people, and 2021 will be a year of
livelihood recovery as well as disease prevention and control.
The Group is committed to helping communities and people
emerge from the shadow of the epidemic, protecting public
health, and working together with local people to build a new
normal.

In 2021, the Group made a donation to the HKSKH Archbishop
World Relief Fund, dedicated to emergency relief, assisting
victims affected by major natural disasters and solve their
immediate problems.

HEEIER

HYtEERAR RELBREXERR
BFREtE OER zTAE’]IT’EEEE
BB ETEE,alER) BRAEES
TW&%@JEI&]\&/—\HE?‘ 281 E
FRTHESEA2ELBBRINEE - K
REMBEBRAMER  RELENHS
R EEME XL ER  REEHEHM S
WNBEERERI—MDNE -

COVID-19Z B H B R & A R &£ E & K
TEANEE  M021FRERLEH

HEBEHELIEN—F - AEBHAR
Bk RREHLHERBEY  REXQ
FOEmRE EEHMRIKBETFHEN
R o

20215 AEERAFBEAS AT HM
REDESELBF  BAOKZKRE
EOXERRXZENLR - HEHEM
FRRIRNIE 2 = o
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
RE MBRELSRS (8)

THE STOCK EXCHANGE’S ESG REPORTING GUIDE
BXA(RE HEREABRSEESIDABTRS

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosure and
KPls

TEHE - -BHE -
—REERERE
MEE

Descriptions
ot

A. Environment A. B &

Aspect A1: Emissions B HA1 : iYW

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
References/Explanations

BB E B E B A

General
Disclosure
—BREE

Information on:
(@) the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of
hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

BREERFORZERBHEN - MK &L e BE

HCAENEEEEDNELFN:

) BER: X

() BITHETABEAZENHBERK
RO E#

Environment

We do not hold relevant policy as
our operation would not cause
significant impact on air emissions,
discharges into land, and
generation of hazardous waste.

There are no laws and regulations
that have a significant impact
on the Group relating to air and
greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

B

HERASENEBEHEEL ISR E
AEBERBEWR ML g5 RA
EEEYVOES - BRI EH FEME
B RO BRER

AEEIEABERLORERED
Mo AKE A  BERE
EERERVNELESNHERAZERLR
PISEBRERATE -

KPI A1.1

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

BRI RE 2B SR AH R BE IR B -

Environment — Greenhouse Gas
and Air Emissions Management
RIE — BRERBRERSEMHE
wWE R

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® KK EBR AT




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

BE MBREGCHRS (E)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosure and
KPIs

FTEHE - -EBH -
—REEREREE
MER

Descriptions

i

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
References/Explanations

B E 8 H A

KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope | Environment — Greenhouse Gas
2) greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, | and Air Emissions Management
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of | 383 — BERERTERSEDE
production volume, per facility). W E R
BEER1) L REZ(BB2))8 =R 5
MEUREFE)R(MERZE(WASES
B BEEEHE)

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) | During the reporting period,
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per | the Group did not produce any
unit of production volume, per facility). hazardous waste.
FEXAEEEEDHEE UWHAE) R(ER) | REREHRN  AEBRBESEM
BEWMNEEESEM  BEXRETE) - ERESARENBRED -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in | Environment — Resources and
tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. | Waste Management
per unit of production volume, per facility). R — ERNEYER
EABEREEMRESE UEGE) R (ER)

ZE(WMAEGESEN  BHERHBETE) -
KPI A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and | Environment

steps taken to achieve them.
BRI VR EEERAEIELAR
FTEREX ) 20 B o

We will continue to record our
environmental data in detail, to
allow for meaningful comparisons of
data over time.

L

B E B L RIRBIRIERF RO ER -

FEHBABBERRAEEERNLE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
RE MBRELSRS (8)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosure and
KPIs

FTEHE - -EBH -
—REEREREE
MER

KPI A1.6

Descriptions
#aut

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, and a
description of reduction target(s) set and
steps taken to achieve them.

MR BEEREETEEYMN L LiEit
RO EEE IR R REDE LB EMEER
B 22 5 o

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
References/Explanations
EREE S H A3

Environment  — Resources and
Waste Management

Our daily office operations do not
involve generation of hazardous
waste. Therefore, no specific
reduction initiative is in place.

RE - BRLEDER

BPWBERRAZZETNILEE
BEEVONEL - At - HMARAE
YU REEEENER -

Aspect A2: Use of

Resources EHEA2: R £ A

General
Disclosure
—BEE

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw
materials.
EREAEREEFEERIR - KR HEAMRME)
B ISR o

Environment
BB

KPI A2.1

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption
by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total
(kWh in '000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
RERESHERER JHEEERWE -
Reom) BREE(UTETERRE) RBE (10
NEBESEM  BERETHE)

Environment — Energy Use
RIE — BERER

KPI A2.2

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).
BREKERTEWNESESEEN - BER
Mot &) -

Environment — Water Resources
Management

RiIE — KEREE

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® KK EBR AT




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

BE MBREGCHRS (E)

Subject Areas,

Aspects, General

Disclosure and
KPIs

FTEHE - -EBH -
—REEREREE
MER

Descriptions

i

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
References/Explanations

B E 8 H A

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) | Environment — Energy Use
set and steps taken to achieve them.
I FTE] S MEER(E AR B2 N AEH|E | The Group is committed to
LRI A AR actively exploring various energy-
saving solutions to continuously
improve the energy efficiency of its
operations.
RIE — BEIREMA
AEEHNEBRRERZHET R
NHBIRSELSHEIRME °
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in | Environment — Water Resources
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water | Management
efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them. Water for our office use is obtained
SR EGE B KR T BEMAEE - LR FT | from municipal water supplies.
SIVHAKSIRER L REDELBHIZFEK | There are no associated issues
By 5 o regarding water sourcing.
RIE — KERER
AN B P R e Y K 9 ER B T IR
HKER  HRMEESEBKRLE
RBEBREMARE -
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished | Our operations do not involve the

products (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with
reference to per unit produced.

SR mFAEEME R E (B E) & (0
BR)BEEBMLE -

use of packaging material.
BMOEBEET PR REMER
A -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
RE MBRELSRS (8)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosure and
KPIs

FTEHE - -EBH -
—REEREREE
MER

Descriptions

i

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources [E HA3 : &

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
References/Explanations

B = 8 H A
BRRXRER

General Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant

Disclosure impact on the environment and natural

—REE resources.
/mﬁﬁﬁéfﬁ/\ﬂiﬂ%&?&ﬁéff_ﬁ%%ﬁ?‘%
CONIZ g

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of

activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to manage
them.

M EBEHHRELAARERNEATLE
NERBREREHATENTY -

The Group’s business activities
mainly comprise office operations,
which would not cause significant
impact on the environment and
natural resources. Therefore, no
relevant policy is in place.

EREMOEBHEE KMV EB
REETEHRERRREREK
BARE - UL BPRAHEBR

poras

ﬁﬁo

Aspect A4: Climate Change EEA4 : RIZ#{t

issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken
to manage them.

MK RAEgHBETAELER
RIREBEEE  REXHITH -

CEMERX

General Policies on identification and mitigation of | Environment
Disclosure significant climate-related issues which have | &%
—BEE impacted, and those which may impact, the
issuer.
BRAIREHORMAIREHETAELERE
MERRIRBBEENHBR -
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related | Environment — Greenhouse Gas

and Air Emissions Management
RIE — RERBREREMER

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® KK EBR AT




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
BE MBREGCHRS (E)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosure and
KPIs

TEHE  EBHE- Relevant Chapter(s) or other
— R ENREBEREE | Descriptions References/Explanations
MiEEE # i EREMNHE MR

B. Social B. i+ &

Employment and Labour Practices EER & T ER

Aspect B1: Employment EEB1 : E &

General Information on: Social — Welfare and Safeguards
Disclosure
—RIEE (@) the policies; and The Group’s Personnel

Management Regulation, Chengdu
(b) compliance with relevant laws and | Everbright Property Handbook
regulations that have a significant impact | and Chengdu Everbright Property
on the issuer relating to compensation | Owner Management Handbook
and dismissal, recruitment and | ensure that the business complies
promotion, working hours, rest periods, | with the laws and regulations
equal opportunity, diversity, anti- | including Labour Contract Law of
discrimination, and other benefits and | the PRC, the Labour Law of the
welfare. PRC to safeguard the benefits and
EBTFNERE BELEF  TERKE - | welfare of the employees.
BRE - FEHKE Zbt REGEAREM | T — B ERE
SRRV
NEBMACASEEHE)  (RE K
(@ EE:R ARMEFM)RLABREAEEER
FM)EREBEF(REARLM
) EBFHETABEAZENRBEER BEgaRE) (PEARHAM
RBIE) B K BEE)EEEER REEED
HFBMBA -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type | Social — Our Employees
(for example, full-or part-time), age group and | & — & {FIHY B &
geographical region.

BT ERE(NERBRE) - Ficl
AR EE D HEESBE -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
RE MBRELSRS (8)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosure and
KPIs

FTEHE - -EBH -
—REEREREE
MER

KPI B1.2

Descriptions

#aut

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group
and geographical region.

mMR - FiRARRMEE SN EERKL

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
References/Explanations
EREE S H A3

By Gender
Male — 0%; Female — 7.14%

By Age

Under 30 years old — 85.71%;
31-40 years old — 2.41%;
41-50 years old — 0%;

Above 50 years old — 0%

By Region

Chengdu — 2.27%;
Hong Kong — 11.11%
M RIE o

B —0%: % — 714%

BEERE D

B0BR AT — 85.71% :
31-405% — 2.41%
41-505% — 0%
505% A £ — 0%

17 i (& &l 9
KE — 2.27% : &FE — 11.11%

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® KK EBR AT



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

BE MBREGCHRS (E)

Subject Areas,

Aspects, General

Disclosure and

KPls

FTEHE - -EBH -

— B ERBEEEE | Descriptions
MER # it

Aspect B2: Health and Safety EEB2: @ FEH % 2

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
References/Explanations
EREE S H A3

General Information on:
Disclosure
—BREE (a) the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact
on the issuer relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

ERRHZE2IFEREAREEE#H 2B E

EEER:

() BX: &

() BTHETABEAZENHBEIZK
RO E#

Social — Health and Safety

There are no laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the
Group relating to providing a safe
working environment and protecting
employees from occupational
hazards.

rEe —B#ERZD

AEBYEBEBERELE2TIFRR
RRIERE & 2B E N EENIEE
FREMBOIHEBRERTE -

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities
occurred in each of the past three years
including the reporting year.
BEZFEREERFE)BFAITHNA
R o

Social — Health and Safety

No work-related fatalities or injuries
were recorded by the Group in the
past three years.

e —-RBEREZR

BE=ZF AEELLBEETMAAET
TR ITEER -

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury.
ETEHBEEAIERS -

During the reporting period, there
was no lost days due to work injury
recorded by the Group.

wERARN AEBWRBERISRE
KO ITIERE -

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

R PTER A B E R R E T 256 - A M
BT RERTE -

Social — Health and Safety
e -RBEAZR
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
RE MBRELSRS (8)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosure and
KPIs

FTEHE - -EBH -
—REEREREE
MER

Descriptions
#aut

Aspect B3: Development and Training B EB3 : % & R &3

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
References/Explanations
EREE S H A3

gender and employee category (e.g. senior
management, middle management).
REMNEEEEN(MSREEE v RE
BEESPNXIEEBN L -

General Policies on improving employees’ knowledge | Social — Training and Development
Disclosure and skills for discharging duties at work. | & — E3IE3%RE
—REE Description of training activities.
FREREAREBITIEBRENMHE kR
BE - WuaFES -
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by | Social — Training and Development

HE - HlEER

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® KK EBR AT




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

BE MBREGCHRS (E)

Subject Areas,

Aspects, General

Disclosure and

KPls

FTEHE - -EBH -

— B ERBEEEE | Descriptions
MER # it

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per
employee by gender and employee category.
BrHEREERMNE Y  BEEETAXI
FORSSEES g

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
References/Explanations
EREE S H A3

The average training hours of the
employees in Hong Kong:

By Gender
Male — 15.91; Female — 18.31

By Employee Category
Senior Management — 18.25;
Middle Management — 18.33;
General Staff — 12.40

The average training hours of the
employees in Chengdu:

By Gender
Male — 18.20; Female — 19.05

By Employee Category

Senior Management — 35.33;
Middle Management — 20.00;
General Staff — 18.00
EEETHTHEIEHMOT

Z R85
5 — 1591 : & — 18.31

RHRE S
SREEE — 18.25 ;
PR EIEE — 18.33 ;
—fET — 12.40

FCERE T ey I8 I S B T

RIERIE 5
5 —18.20 : & — 19.05

RHRE S
=SREIEE — 35.33 ;
FAREIRE — 20.00 :
—fET — 18.00
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
RE MBRELSRS (8)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosure and
KPIs

FTEHE - -EBH -
—REEREREE
MER

Descriptions
#aut

Aspect B4: Labour Standards EHB4 : % T %8|

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
References/Explanations
EREE S H A3

practices when discovered.
300 7E B A1 0 B OB B R A SR BT IR R

General Information on: Social — Welfare and Safeguards
Disclosure
—REE (a) the policies; and The Group’'s Employee
Management Regulation clearly
(o) compliance with relevant laws and | stated the code of conduct for
regulations that have a significant impact | employees to follow, and strictly
on the issuer relating to preventing child | prohibit child and forced labour.
and forced labour. e — ENEERE
ERAMIEETSEHI S TH:
REENCAEZEIERSIE)ER S A
@ BE: K BTRERETHRERA®H HRBE
TRo&HIZBT -
) BTHETABEARATENHEBEER
RBIE) B R
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review | Social — Welfare and Safeguards
employment practices to avoid child and | & — & F|E{R[E
forced labour.
it 4 5T 48 BE 1B 01 & i e DA BB 2 B T K2 58
BT
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such | Social — Welfare and Safeguards

HE — BAERRE

Operating Practices & & & fjl

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management /& E B5 : it fE § & 12

General
Disclosure
—BEE

Policies on managing environmental and
social risks of the supply chain.
ERMHEENREMMERARBE -

Social — Supplier Management
e - HERERE

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® KK EBR AT




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

BE MBREGCHRS (E)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosure and
KPIs

FTEHE - -EBH -
—REEREREE
MER

Descriptions
#aut

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
References/Explanations
EREE S H A3

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. As of 31 December 2021, the
miEE S ENHE - Group had 12 suppliers, which were
all located in Mainland China and
Hong Kong.
B Z=2021F12A31H A& EH S
1218 fErg - 2 8062 70 B A 3l K2
BE
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging | Social — Supplier Management
suppliers, number of suppliers where the | & — HEFEE
practices are being implemented, and how
they are implemented and monitored.
Mo EEERAHREENED  MERTEH
BHOHEFEE  UERBERTRERS
VA o
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify | Social — Supplier Management
environmental and social risks along the | & — #fEREE &
supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored.
MBS EERGERGNRREREE
B EH - LARMBERITRERGE -
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote | Social — Supplier Management

environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored.

Mo EREHERSRESZBRRE AR
BB - LARMBERITRERTE -

He - HEBER

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3R

79



80

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
RE MBRELSRS (8)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosure and
KPIs

FTEHE - -EBH -
—REEREREE
MER

Descriptions
#aut

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility B EB6 : & @ = 1F

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
References/Explanations
EREE S H A3

General
Disclosure
—BREE

Information on:
(@) the policies; and

(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to health
and safety, advertising, labelling and
privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of
redress.

FHMREEERNRENERERZ S

BEELBEEARBR G EH

() BE: X

() BTHETABEAZENHBERZK
RO E#

Social — Health and Safety

The Group has not identified
material concerns in its operations
regarding advertising, labelling and
privacy matters in our operation,
thus a dedicated policy is not in
place.

There are no laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the
Group regarding health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to the products and
services provided by the Group.
e -RBEMZR

AEEWRERARERBHER
BEERALEEENEARHE - Bk
AP I 428 AE A BOSR ©

N5 B I A B PR M B G MR 7S
MEFEREZE2  RE FRERLLE
SEMNMERERRAHEEKE

By 48R
N2 o

KPI B6.1

Percentage of total products sold or shipped
subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.
EEXEEXEMRBTRLT T ERERIEH
MmARKKEDL

Not applicable
N iE A

KPI B6.2

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are dealt
with.
EEBARNERMBRBORFEEARELSR
& o

During the reporting period, the
Group did not receive any service
related complaints.

WEHA AEBERBEEEMNEA
IR B R FF e
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)

BE MBREGCHRS (E)

Subject Areas,

Aspects, General

Disclosure and
KPIs

FTEHE - -EBH -
—REEREREE
MER

Descriptions
#aut

Relevant Chapter(s) or other
References/Explanations
EREE S H A3

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing | Not applicable
and protecting intellectual property rights. 38 A
B EERRENREES@ANED -
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and | Social — Supplier Management
recall procedures. e - HEDER
MO ESERTRENREMOKREF
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection | The Group values the privacy of our

and privacy policies, and how they are
implemented and monitored.
HWHEEERRERALERE -
MITRERTE -

A K 18

customers, tenants and employees.
We require all employees to abide
by the Group’s policies including
the File Management Confidentiality
Agreement and Employment
Confidentiality Agreement. We will
also review the effectiveness of
related policies on a regular basis
and make amendments when
appropriate to protect the privacy of
personal data.

AEESEREF HFRPREINM
B RMEBRMEELIETAEH
BCHE =B R T 5 &) (o AR
ZWhaE) FEE - I E B R A
R AWM R BERELER - R
[EREPNE= =¥ N
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
RE MBRELSRS (8)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosure and
KPIs

FTEHE - -EBH -

Relevant Chapter(s) or other

— R EREHEE | Descriptions References/Explanations
MEE ot EREE S H A3
Aspect B7: Anti-corruption E®EB7 : K 55
General Information on: Social — Anti-Corruption
Disclosure e - RER
—BREE (a) the policies; and
(o) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant
impact on the issuer relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.

BEMIEHE R BFERLEER:

@ BE: K

) BTHETABEARATENHEBEER
RBIE) B R

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding | Social — Anti-Corruption
corrupt practices brought against the issuer | # & — R E &
or its employees during the reporting period
and the outcomes of the cases.
RERPANEETAXHEERITEELE
MESHFARENBERFRER -

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and | Social — Anti-Corruption
whistleblowing procedures, and how they are | £ & — K B/&
implemented and monitored.

P EEE R BREF LA RBBEHITR
BERNE-

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training | Social — Anti-Corruption
provided to directors and staff. Hte -REB
MlmMEEFRBEIRHOREZEI -

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® KK EBR AT




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE (ESG) REPORT (Continued)
BE MBREGCHRS (E)

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosure and
KPIs

TEHE  EBHE- Relevant Chapter(s) or other
— R ENREBEREE | Descriptions References/Explanations
MiEEE # i EREMNHE MR

Community # &

Aspect B8: Community Investment [E E B8 : i & B 1%

General Policies on community engagement to | Social — Community Investment
Disclosure understand the needs of the communities | #t & — @ E
— R E where the issuer operates and to ensure

its activities take in to consideration the
communities’ interests.
EANUE2ERTHREEMEHERTEM
BREEBIDGERTENEOBE -

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, | Social — Community Investment
environmental concerns, labour needs, | £ & — LR #E

health, culture, sport).

ETERSE(HE  BREE  BIFTK
fEpE b - BBA) -

KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to | Social — Community Investment
the focus area. He — dtEB=

EEIREMPIAER(MSEXEMR) -
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
SETRS

The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability on 2 August 2000 and transferred by way of
continuation into the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 15 September 2016 under the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands. The principal activities of the
Group are property leasing, provision of property management
services and sales of properties held for sale.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are
shown under note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. An
analysis of the Group’s revenue and operating profit for the year
by principal activities are set out on pages 8 to 19 in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual
report and note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has proposed to pay a final dividend of RMB0.99
cents (equivalent to HK1.22 cents) per share (2020: RMB1.92
cents) for the year ended 31 December 2021, payable to the
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company (the “Register of Members”) on Thursday,
30 June 2022. Together with the special dividend and interim
dividend of RMB1.5 cents and RMBO0.86 cents per share
respectively, the full year dividend amounts to RMB3.35 cents
per share (2020: RMB1.92 cents per share).

Subject to approval by the Shareholders of the payment of final
dividend at the forthcoming annual general meeting (“AGM?”)
of the Company to be held on Thursday, 16 June 2022, the
proposed final dividend will be paid to the Shareholders on or
about Friday, 15 July 2022.

The proposed final dividend will be paid in Hong Kong dollars.
The exchange rate for the dividend to be paid in Hong Kong
dollars is the central parity rate of Hong Kong dollars to RMB
as announced by the People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) on 23
March 2022.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the Shareholders’ eligibility
to attend and vote at the AGM and entitlement to the final
dividend, the Register of Members will be closed in accordance
with the following timetable:

()  For determining the Shareholders’ eligibility to attend and
vote at the AGM:

(@) Latest time to lodge
transfer documents
for registration

4:30 pm on Friday,
10 June 2022

(b) Closure of Register
of Members

Monday, 13 June 2022 to
Thursday, 16 June 2022
(both dates inclusive)

(i) For determining entitlement to the final dividend:

(@) Latest time to lodge
transfer documents
for registration

4:30 pm on Friday,
24 June 2022

(b) Closure of Register of
Members

Monday, 27 June 2022 to
Thursday, 30 June 2022
(both dates inclusive)

(c) Record date Thursday, 30 June 2022

During the above closure periods, no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM,
and to qualify for the proposed final dividend, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than the relevant
latest time set out above.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021 and the discussion on the Group’s future
business development are set out on pages 5 to 7 and pages
8 to 19 in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis”, respectively, in this
annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

To the best of the knowledge of the Board and the management,
the Group complied with the relevant laws and regulations which
constitutes material impact on the business and operation of the
Company and its subsidiaries in all material respects during the
year ended 31 December 2021.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporate environment that pays close attention to conserving
natural resources. The Group strives to minimise its impact on
the environment by reducing its electricity consumption and
encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. For
further details, please refer to the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report set out on pages 54 to 83 of this annual
report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES FACING
THE GROUP AND KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
INDICATORS

The Group’s financial position, results and business operations
may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties, some
of which are inherent to the Group’s business and some are
from external sources.

Industry Risk

The property management industry in the PRC is highly
competitive and fragmented. Competition becomes more
intense as the existing competitors may expand their products
and services or new competitors may enter the market. If the
Group fails to compete against the competitors, it may not be
able to renew the existing contracts or obtain new projects.
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Business Risk

The Group faces challenges from the rapidly changing business
environment. Any failure to response promptly to the market
trend may have a material adverse effect on the Group’s
financial position, results, and business operations.

Financial Risk

In the course of its business activities, the Group is exposed
to various financial risks, including market, liquidity and credit
risks.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 207 to 217 of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group believes that an effective management of
relationships with stakeholders is crucial to resolving issues
faced by the Group. Stakeholders hold the key to the
environment in which the Group operates and its subsequent
financial and operating performance. Thus the effective
management of stakeholder relations should be an essential
focus of the Group.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for

the past five financial years is set out on page 220 of this annual
report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 184 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements on page 197 of this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of
the Company during the year are set out on page 115 and in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements on page 219 of
this annual report, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s distributable reserves
were RMB77.6 million.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of movements in the bank and other borrowings of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in
note 21 to the consolidated financial statements on page 194 of
this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association, the laws of Cayman lIslands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is situated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the
Company'’s securities.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

For the year ended 31 December 2021, pursuant to the Articles
of Association, every Director and other officers shall be entitled
to be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they may incur or sustain in
or about the execution of the duty, or supposed duty in their
respective office or otherwise in relation thereto. The Company
has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of potential
legal actions against its Directors and officers.

A permitted indemnity provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors during the financial year ended 31 December 2021
and at the time when this Directors’ report is approved.

DIRECTORS

The Board consists of the following Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this report:

Executive Directors

Mr. LIU Jia (Chairman & CEQO)
Mr. LIN Zimin®
Mr. MA Heming®

Non-executive Directors

Mr. LI Yinzhong®

Ms. TSE Hang Mui®
Ms. WANG Yun®

Mr. ZHUANG Minrong®

1) the resignation with effect from 15 April 2021
) the appointment with effect from 15 April 2021
3)  the resignation with effect from 26 August 2021
) the appointment with effect from 26 August 2021
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. TSOI David

Mr. SHEK Lai Him Abraham
Mr. LEE Jor Hung

Ms. YU Pauline Wah Ling

In accordance with the Articles of Association, Ms. Wang Yun,
Mr. Zhuang Minrong, Mr. David Tsoi, Mr. Lee Jor Hung and Ms.
Yu Pauline Wah Ling shall retire at the AGM. All of the above
retiring Directors, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
of the Group as at the date of this annual report are set out on
pages 20 to 30 in the section headed “Biographies of Directors
and Senior Management” to this annual report.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a confirmation of his/her independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries, which is not terminable by

employing company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
REMUNERATION

Information regarding directors’ and chief executive officer’s
emoluments are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 171 to 174 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors or chief
executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions
which is taken or deemed to have under such provision of
the SFO), or which was required to be entered in the register
referred to therein pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which
was otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, to the knowledge of the Directors, the
interest or short positions of the following persons (which are
not Directors or chief executives of the Company) in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company, which were required to
disclose to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO or recorded in the register required to the kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as
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otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, & :
were as follows:
Approximate
Number of percentage of
ordinary the Company’s
shares issued share
Name Notes Capacity interested capital Mot 7)
SRR N
HEREREz CRITREAHD
=E MaE 514 ZERHE B o win
Lucky Link Investments Limited 2 Beneficial owner 297,900,000 67.49%
(“Lucky Link”)
FEREBRAR(FE] EREBA
Top Charm Investments Limited (“Top 2 Beneficial owner 33,100,000 7.50%
Charm”)
BEREARRARIEED EREBA
Capital Century 2 Interests in controlled 331,000,000 74.99%
corporation
B R ok 6 R EE =
CE Hong Kong 3 Interests in controlled 331,000,000 74.99%
corporation
B K (F ) R AEER
China Everbright Group 4 Interests in controlled 331,000,000 74.99%
corporation
O K & RiEAEER
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. 5 Interests in controlled 331,000,000 74.99%
(“Huijin”) corporation
hRESKRERRETARTESR]D RIEEE S
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Notes:

1) Based on 441,400,000 shares of the Company (“Shares”) in issue as
at 31 December 2021.

(2)  Lucky Link and Top Charm directly hold approximately 67.49% and
7.50% of the total issued shares, respectively. Capital Century holds
100% shares in Lucky Link and Top Charm and is therefore deemed
to be interested in 297,900,000 and 33,100,000 shares held by Lucky
Link and Top Charm, respectively.

(3) CE Hong Kong is an indirect controlling shareholder of Lucky Link
and Top Charm. CE Hong Kong directly holds 99.997% shares in
Capital Century, 0.3% of which is held on trust for the National
Administrative Bureau of State Owned Property, and indirectly holds
0.0083% shares in Capital Century through China Everbright Holdings
(Nominee) Limited. Therefore, CE Hong Kong is deemed to be
interested in 297,900,000 and 33,100,000 shares held by Lucky Link
and Top Charm, respectively.

(4)  China Everbright Group holds 100% shares in CE Hong Kong and is
therefore deemed to be interested in 297,900,000 and 33,100,000
shares held by Lucky Link and Top Charm, respectively.

(5)  Huijin is indirectly wholly-owned by the State Council of the PRC and
holds 63.16% equity interest in China Everbright Group. It is deemed
to be interested in 297,900,000 and 33,100,000 shares held by Lucky
Link and Top Charm, respectively.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, the
Company had not been notified by any persons (other than
the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares or
debentures of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to section 336
of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to therein.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Share Option
Scheme” below, at no time during the year was the Company,
its subsidiaries or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 15 December
2017 (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of
providing incentive or rewarding eligible persons (“Eligible
Persons”). Eligible Persons include director, employee, agent,
consultant, business partner, joint venture partner, supplier of
goods or services or any director or employee of such supplier,
customer or any director or employee of such customer,
and person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support or any advisory, consultancy or
professional services or any director or employee of such entity,
who has contributed or will contribute to the Group on the
basis of their contribution to the development and growth of
the Group. No share option has been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption by the Company.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on the date of
the Company’s Listing Date and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from the date of
adoption of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. 14 December 2027).

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme is 44,140,000 shares, representing 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue as at the Listing Date
and as at the date of this annual report. The maximum number
of shares issuable under share options granted to each Eligible
Persons in the Share Option Scheme (including both exercised
and outstanding options) within any 12-month period is limited
to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any grant or
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting. A grant of share
options under the Share Option Scheme to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any
of their associates, is subject to approval in advance by the
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independent non-executive directors (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the Share Option
Scheme). In addition, any share options granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, which would result in
the shares issued and to be issued, upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding), to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of the grant in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted on
or before the relevant acceptance date upon payment of a
nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determined by
the directors, save that such a period shall not be more than
10 years from the date of offer of the share options and subject
to the provisions for early termination as set out in the Share
Option Scheme. There is no requirement of a minimum period
for which an option must be held before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of the share options shall be not less than
the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of offer of the share options,
which must be a date on which the Stock Exchange is open for
business of dealing in securities; (ii) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately before the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value
of the Company’s share as at the date of offer.

No share options were granted during the year ended 31
December 2021 and no share options were outstanding under
the Scheme as at 31 December 2021.
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ESSRE(A)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into the following continuing connected
transactions during the year. The directors confirmed that
those transactions have been entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group, on normal commercial
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole. As one or more applicable percentage
ratios (other than the profits ratio) as defined in Rule 14.07 of
the Listing Rules in respect of the proposed annual caps for
those transactions are expected to be more than 5%, those
transactions are subject to reporting, announcement, annual
review and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The table below sets out the annual caps and the actual
transaction amounts of those continuing connected transactions
in 2021:

FREABEXS

FA RXEBETINTHERERS -
EERAZERG IR AEEBEER —
MEBBREFPEAFAEZLER XK
KAV AT ARRZERENE - R
ERRAFLOTERNEE  ZERXHZ
ERFELRO-—EAxXZEBEREDLL
(BN EXBRINFERSHE% - B L
MR FAGR  ZEXHBETER
ne - FEEHLBLBRRIAENRE

TREIZEFBEBEIHN2021F 2
FELRIMNERERZE:

Actual
Transaction
No. Connected Transaction Connected Persons Annual Cap Amount
me BAEXRS BEAL FELR ERXSEHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
1 Lease Framework Agreement  China Everbright Group 14,000 10,278
and its subsidiaries and
associates (other than the
Group) (“CEG Excluded
Group”)
MEERWZ PR RSB R EE AR
KB & R R (RN EEBRIN)
(HFEXARER(REE R
M1
2 Deposit Service Framework CEG Excluded Group 46,000 28,000
Agreement (note) (K7a%) (note) (B7 %)
17 5% R 7% 1E 2R 17 3% PR RSB (RER RN
3 Loan Service Framework CEG Excluded Group 350,000 Nil
Agreement
B R AR TS AE 2R % PR RSB (REBERIN i
Note: Represents the maximum daily closing balance of deposits [Kiz#: EEB&aFEREH (BREETFE)

(including interests accrued thereon)
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Leasing transactions

The Group entered into a lease framework agreement (the
“Lease Framework Agreement”) with China Everbright
Group on 2 November 2020 for a term of 10 years commencing
retrospectively from 1 January 2020 and ending on 31
December 2029. Under the Lease Framework Agreement, the
Company shall lease and procure members of the Group to
lease certain premises of the Group (the “Premises”) to CEG
Excluded Group, and China Everbright Group shall lease and
procure CEG Excluded Group to lease the Premises during
the term of the Lease Framework Agreement. The relevant
parties shall enter into separate lease agreements to set out the
specific provisions of the leasing of Premises, and the terms and
conditions of the lease agreements shall be determined by the
parties in accordance with the terms of the Lease Framework
Agreement. The term of each of the Lease Agreements shall not
exceed the term of the Lease Framework Agreement.

The rents and other fees payable by CEG Excluded Group to the
Group under the lease agreements shall (i) be determined based
on arm’s length negotiations between CEG Excluded Group and
the Group with reference to the prevailing market rents in the
places where the Premises are located; (i) not be lower than
the rents and other fees to be paid by other independent third
parties; and (iii) be in compliance with the rules and regulations
prescribed by the relevant rules and regulations within or
outside the PRC.

Pursuant to various lease agreements, the Group is currently
leasing certain premises in Everbright Financial Center and Ming
Chang Building to CE Bank, Everbright Securities Company
Limited (“CE Securities”) and Everbright Xinglong Trust Co.,
Ltd. respectively (“CE Trust”).

HEXS

AT R2020F 11 A2H E A B K £ &
A MEEEER(HEELEGE]
B E2020F1 818 £ 22029912 A31H
IEAB+F - RBEBEEEBZ  AQ
AIELHEYRERASEKEAGEEAR
SEETYE(EEPE]) THRE XK
SEKREERN MAREREEEHR
FA AP R AP B S K& B (R & B BN 1
HMEEEBENHRANEREEDE -
MEREEI 4 R BB & 15 5% A5 P
HESEEMENEBHE T RERGY
FREHEEEBZOGKARECHED
FEWEREGEE - SHEBBNEBRDT
SHBEAEERBZEOER -

R KEE(REERINREEE R
BEAAEBSINNHESREMERE:
(AFPBEEKRER(KEERINRAEER
KATFTHEBIT2BREEMEMEHNIR
THEALET (BTN EREEMS
VYEZAZIMNNBEE R EME A Kiii)
BTFHRBEASRIINEERAREE
R B R AR E ©
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Deposits services transactions

The Group entered into a deposit service framework agreement
(“Deposit Service Framework Agreement”) with China
Everbright Group on 2 November 2020 for a term of three years
commencing retrospectively from 1 January 2020 and ending
on 31 December 2022. Under the Deposit Service Framework
Agreement, China Everbright Group shall procure CE Bank to
provide the deposit services to members of the Group. The
relevant parties shall enter into separate deposit agreements
to set out the specific provisions of the deposit services, and
the terms and conditions of the deposit agreements shall be
determined by the relevant parties in accordance with the terms
of the Deposit Service Framework Agreement. The term of each
of the deposit agreements shall not exceed the term of the
Deposit Service Framework Agreement.

The interest rates payable by CE Bank to the Group in respect
of the deposit services shall (i) be determined based on arm’s
length negotiations between CE Bank and the Group with
reference to the prevailing interest rate for similar deposit
services which can be obtained by the Group from independent
third parties and on normal commercial terms; (ii) not be lower
than the interest rates to be paid by other independent third
parties; and (iii) be in compliance with the rules and regulations
prescribed by the PBOC and/or other relevant rules and
regulations within or outside the PRC.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® KK EBR AT
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
ESSHE(A)

Loan Services Agreement

The Group entered into a loan service framework agreement
(“Loan Service Framework Agreement”) with China
Everbright Group on 2 November 2020 for a term of five years
commencing retrospectively from 1 January 2020 and ending
on 31 December 2024. Under the Loan Service Framework
Agreement, China Everbright Group shall procure CE Bank
to provide the Loan Services to members of the Group. The
relevant parties shall enter into separate loan agreements to set
out the specific provisions of the loan services, and the terms
and conditions of the loan agreements shall be determined by
the parties in accordance with the terms of the Loan Service
Framework Agreement. The term of each of the loan agreements
shall not exceed the term of the Loan Service Framework
Agreement. Subject to the terms and conditions of the loan
agreements, security over the Group’s assets and rental income
received from its leasing business may be required for the loan
services. The Directors believe that it is important for the Group
to have more readily available funding for capturing suitable
investment opportunities which arise at any time, including
acquiring suitable commercial properties.

The interest rate payable by the Group to CE Bank in respect of
the Loan Services shall (i) be determined based on arm’s length
negotiations between CE Bank and the Group with reference to
the prevailing interest rate for similar loan services which can
be obtained by the Group from independent third parties and
on normal commercial terms; (ii) not be higher than the interest
rates to be charged by other independent third parties; and (iii)
be in compliance with the rules and regulations prescribed by
the PBOC and/or other relevant rules and regulations within or
outside the PRC.

China Everbright Group is a controlling shareholder of the
Company and therefore a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules. CE Bank, CE Securities and CE Trust
are subsidiaries of China Everbright Group and therefore
connected persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.

& R =
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (Continued)
ESSRE(A)

The independent non-executive Directors have, for the purpose
of Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed the continuing
connected transactions up to the financial year ended 31
December 2021 set out above and have confirmed that these
continuing connected transactions have been entered into by
the Group (i) in the ordinary and usual course of its business;
(i) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent third
parties; and (i) in accordance with the terms of the agreements
governing such transactions that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditors, Ernst & Young, were engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice
Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the HKICPA. Ernst
& Young has issued an unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of continuing connected transactions
set out above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the
Group during the year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 203 to 204 of this annual report.
The Company has complied with the applicable requirements
under the Listing Rules for those related party transactions
which constituted non-exempt connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions. Other related party
transactions either did not constitute connected transactions/
continuing connected transactions or constituted connected
transactions/continuing connected transactions but were
exempted from all disclosure and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” disclosed above and note 27 to
the consolidated financial statements on pages 203 to 204
of this annual report, no other transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company, its controlling
shareholders, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director or entity(ies) connected with
a Director have or had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

China Everbright Group, the controlling shareholder of the
Group, had provided a non-competition undertaking dated 28
June 2017 (the “Non-Competition Undertaking”) in favour
of the Company pursuant to which China Everbright Group has
undertaken that it will:

()  not carry on any business which directly competes with
the Group’s principal businesses;

(i)  through its internal control procedures, procure that its
existing or future wholly-owned subsidiaries, controlled
subsidiaries and other companies which China Everbright
Group has effective control do not directly or indirectly
carry on property investment, property leasing and
property management business in southwest region of the
PRC and in the U.K. which will substantially compete with
the Group’s principal businesses;

(iii)  give priority to the Group in any new business opportunities
in relation to property investment, property leasing and
property management business in southwest region of the
PRC that are presented to the CEG Excluded Group or by
any third parties, or in the event that CEG Excluded Group
proposes to transfer, sell or otherwise dispose of any
rights or interest in property holding, property investment,
property leasing and/or property management businesses
in various cities including but not limited to Beijing, Dalian,
Hong Kong, Shanghai and Shenzhen, shall be based on
equal terms; and
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(iv) take appropriate measures to eliminate any substantive
competition or prevent any such potential substantive
competition.

The Company has received an annual confirmation from China
Everbright Group that it had fully complied with the terms of the
Non-Competition Undertaking in the financial year ended 31
December 2021.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors are interested in any business apart from
the Group’s business which competes or is likely to compete,
directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group pursuant to
Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules during the year.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the
year had the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into
any contract of significance with the controlling shareholders
(defined under the Listing Rules) or any of their subsidiaries,
nor had any contract of significance been entered into for the
services provided by the controlling shareholders or any of their
subsidiaries to the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

EMPLOYEES/EMOLUMENT POLICY
Details of employees/emolument policy are set out in the section

headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on page 19 of
this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (Continued])
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group has joined a mandatory provident fund scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong.
The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Authority under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the MPF Scheme at rates specified in the rules. The employees
of the Company’s subsidiaries established in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement scheme operated
by the PRC government. No forfeited contribution under this
scheme is available to reduce the contribution payable in future
years.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board, as at the date
of this annual report, the Company has maintained the public
float as required under the Listing Rules.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY'’S
GLOBAL OFFERING

Details of use of net proceeds from the Company’s global
offering during the year are set out in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 17 to 19 of
this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of
conduct regarding dealings in the securities of the Company
by the Directors and the Group’s senior management who,
because of his/her office or employment, is likely to possess
inside information in relation to the Company’s securities.
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Upon specific enquiry, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code during the year under review. In
addition, the Company is not aware of any non-compliance of
the Model Code by the senior management of the Group during
the year under review.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board and management of the Company are committed
to maintaining good standards of corporate governance. The
Board believes that conducting business in a transparent
and responsible manner, as well as following good corporate
governance practices serve the long-term interests of the Group
and that of the Shareholders. The Company has adopted the
code provisions set out in the CG Code as its own code to
govern its corporate governance practices. The Board will
continue to review and monitor the practices of the Company
with an aim to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 31 to 53 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

KPMG retired as auditors of the Company and Ernst & Young
was appointed as the auditors of the Company at the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 18 June 2020 following
the retirement of KPMG. Save as disclosed above, there was no
other change in auditors of the Company during the past three
years.

Ernst & Young will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Ernst &
Young as the auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the
AGM.

On behalf of the Board

LIU Jia
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BB EIRS

EY:

Independent auditor’s report

To the shareholders of Everbright Grand China Assets Limited
(Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and
transferred by way of continuation into the Cayman Islands)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Everbright Grand China Assets Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 111 to 219, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

BYZBERE
BARKERRDAZBRER
(REBERREESEMKLLIAFES
AEFREHEEMNBERAR)

=R

EEDE R EINE2198 FF & & Kok F
BRAE(ERADEEKE R (5HE
[EEEDNGEEMFEREK  ZSWE®
= B IR R2021F12 A31H M 47 & B 75 Ak
ME URBEZBLEFENEAER
X mEAETHEHKRER HREEZEZHE
REABEEeRER URESHMBHRE
e BREEASHEEBME -

EERE RAVBRREBERBC
FRAe((EBSMAge)BHNE
B R A ER (B BT HREERD])
EEMAFHRE BHBEBER2021F124
SIEMEEYBRRIRE EEBEEZZ
HIEFENGEMBRERGAESRE -
WERBEARARKINEERELZR
fmaE o

RREE

EECRBETESAMAERMOEL
ZHEAN(BEZBRENDETEZ -
EERNZFEUBETHNREEIRES
HEMZEE T XR AP B RERAEN
AEl—fPE—FHFL - BEFERERE
SR AEEMIEXSHANBEERE
SATTADBZR BB FFHC
BRETARBTEMEBREE - FFHE
EEMESHNERRERRRESZ MR
EENERREHEE -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3§



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
BUZHEORS (8)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For the matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
BREXEHE

Estimation of fair values of investment properties

REYFERAABEMET
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R ERNFEMERNERF - BF
BERREFNERDEREATEENERF -

SESIEHNEAMBERENEXE
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t addressed the key audit matter

ow our audi
SETERRNMOEEZEE

Investment properties are stated at fair value. The
carrying amount of investment properties as at
31 December 2021 was approximately RMB954
million. Significant judgements and assumptions
are required to determine the fair values of the
investment properties. To support management’s
determination of the fair values, the Group engaged
external valuers to perform valuations on the
investment properties at the end of the reporting
period.

Related disclosures are included in notes 2.4, 3
and 14 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Our audit procedures included, among others,
involving our internal valuation specialists to assist us
to evaluate the assumptions and methodologies used
in the valuations. We also evaluated the objectivity,
independence and competency of the valuers, and the
reliability of other inputs adopted in the valuations. We
then assessed the Group’s disclosures of investment
properties.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

BUKEENRS (8)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
BUZHEORS (8)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

QOur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

BUKEENRS (8)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
BUZHEORS (8)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Wong Ka Wing.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay

Hong Kong

24 March 2022

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT

RBARBERGSUBBERARENER

(%)

EERERZESREBHDERE)ER
WS EENERAREREZERS -
HABEESZERZT @A E G
MERMERTR ZE °

EENMNBELZEGRREBH  KAF
FENGAEBELENREERERENR
VERESBARECERARSTES
EBYMENMABEEREMETHRNRE
HEENBRTRERBEMERNITE
BAVE SRR

HRERZEQBBNERT B

EREHHARHEGEAMBRRNERZ
RAEEMNER AMBEXBREZS
B BEEREMBETEEZSER
BIBERIRPITAFF AR B BEZFEE -
LEBHFELNBRT  EBHAMR
BEEZBREREAXEFRERNAMMRE
RBEEENARMzD  MBEFRED
EERSTERAZER °

HARBIRBABENEREAAY
NBERE -

RAKEEENEHAT
e

%5

8 =0/

& E BT

K dh— 2T
202243248



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in Renminbi (RMB))

O IRk

HE2021F12A31BILLEFE — (MARE(TARB]DHIR)

Notes 2021 2020
Bt 5 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
REVENUE W &= 5 52,678 51,734
Cost of services and sales PR 75 & 88 & A A (13,066) (12,415)
Gross profit EF 39,612 39,319
Valuation gains on investment "EMEDHBERK
properties 14 17,549 17,229
Other income, net H b Ug AR 6 5,858 12,363
Distribution costs 7§85 K A (1,788) (1,263)
Administrative expenses THRAX (16,595) (20,860)
Other operating expenses HAan e i (325) (13)
Profit from operations KEF 44,311 46,775
Finance costs B & K AN (669) (1,076)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX Bt A0 R E 43,642 45,699
Income tax Fris i 11 (10,969) (11,717)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRFE 32,673 33,982
Attributable to: LT&EERN:
Equity shareholders of the ZAYNCIE Xl
Company 32,673 33,982
EARNINGS PER SHARE BREF
Basic and diluted EXRR#E 13 RMBO0.07 RMB0.08
AR¥0.07t AR ¥0.087T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
moEENER

Year ended 31 December 2021 &, 2021412 A31H It F &

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRFHE 32,673 33,982
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ Hip2mh s~
(EXPENSE): (FAx) :
Other comprehensive expense that may be  H 1% Hi 8 A] £ 1 | #T »
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent (EZEEFHEME®E
periods: Flx
Exchange differences on translation of BmEREARKME ([H
financial statements of companies Bl J) 3% 50N R R B 7
outside the People’s Republic of China KWER Z5
(the “PRC”) (7,693) (16,888)
Other comprehensive income that will not HExBRETgREN
be reclassified to profit or loss in SHREEEENEMS
subsequent periods: [
Gain on property revaluation, net of tax Y% E M
kR B IR - 6,554
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE =~ # R E{ 2 E M % -
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX MR E (7,693) (10,334)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME £ g 2 T R 34 48 48
FOR THE YEAR 24,980 23,648
Attributable to: LA & 18 FE AL
Equity shareholders of the Company AAalEmRE 24,980 23,648
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
o MFB AR

2021412 HA31H

31 December 2021

Notes 2021 2020
B 3 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARKETF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Investment properties "EYE 14 953,700 933,300
Property, plant and equipment W mERZE 15 1,389 1,647
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 3,468 1,539
Deferred tax assets RIETRIBE = 22 1,530 1,448
Total non-current assets IEREBEEBTE 960,087 937,934
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Trade and other receivables and B 5 N H A E W RIE &
prepayments AT 3R IE 17 3,887 8,061
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkIREEEY 18 203,770 217,766
Total current assets ME)E E R 207,657 225,827
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 & H A R IE 19 23,797 23,240
Contract liabilities EHaE 20 1,461 1,066
Bank loan RITER 21 7,000 7,000
Lease liabilities HEaRE 16 1,100 1,363
Tax payable FE 1< % 18 1,265 5,397
Total current liabilities mEAE B 34,623 38,066
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFH 173,034 187,761
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEHERABER
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,133,121 1,125,695
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

fREMBRRE ()

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

Notes 2021 2020
B 5 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREF T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Bank loan RITEX 21 - 7,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 2,370 232
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEEE 22 190,020 183,820
Total non-current liabilities FERBEEESE 192,390 191,052
Net assets EEFH 940,731 934,643
EQUITY =
Share capital N 23 345,042 345,042
Reserves ffE 1 24 595,689 589,601
Total equity R 940,731 934,643
Liu Jia Ma Heming
2= BEH
Director Director
EE EE

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FEREEBR

Year ended 31 December 2021 &, Z£2021F12 A31H I F[E

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ANARERREL
PRC
Share Share  Capital statutory Exchange Fairvalue Retained Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  profits  equity
HEEE MAEE

kx RHEE E4RRE e HERR fiff RENE 48#
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AERTR ARBTR ARRTR ARMTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETR

At 1 January 2020 R2020%1R18 345,042 45,063 81,796 5,067 (30,260) - 473238 919,946
Profit for the year ERr7E - - - - - - 33982 33,982
Other comprehensive income/(expense) FREM2ERE /(F%):

for the year:

Exchange differences on translation B EHREEIMA A

of financial statements of BRNEAZR
companies outside the PRC - - - - (16,888) - - (16,888)
Gain on property revaluation, nEEHNG TRHE
net of tax - - - - - 6,554 - 6,554
Total comprehensive income/(expense) M2 AN/ (F%) 2%

for the year - - - - (16,888) 6,554 33,982 23,648
Final 2019 dividend PLESN: &S = = = = - - (8,%51) (8,951)
Transfer to reserve ERTHE = = = 1561 = = (1,561) =
At 31 December 2020 and R2020%12831A &

1 January 2021 2021£181R 345,042 45,063  81,796* 6,628  (47,148)*  6,554*  496,708* 934,643
Prolfit for the year ERFIE - - - - - - 32673 32673
Other comprehensive expense for EREMRERAY:

the year:

Exchange differences on translation & EHE A A

of financial statements of BROERZE
companies outside the PRC - - - - (7,693) - - (7,693)
Total comprehensive income/lexpense)  ER2EMNE /() L8

for the year - - - - (7,693) - 32,673 24,980
Specialdividend paid BftRIRE - - - - - - B2 (6620)
Final 2020 dividend NNEFERE - - - - - - [BATH  (847H)
Iterim 2021 dividend AER AR E - - - - - - (379  (3,7%)
Transfer fo reserve BRAERE - - - 1,503 - - (1,503) -
At 31 December 2021 2021512331 M50 45063 B9 813+ (54841 6554 508086 940,73t
# These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of ZERHERBIE2021F12A31BH 4R A B

RMB595,689,000 (2020: RMB589,601,000) in the consolidated RN KPS B A RES595,689,000
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021. 70 (20204 : A R #589,601,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
moRETMER

Year ended 31 December 2021 &, 2021412 A31H It F &

Notes 2021 2020
B o RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTL

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REZBHRERE

ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax 754 B 1| 43,642 45,699
Adjustments for: RUTEBELRE:
Fair value gains on investment properties ~ REMEN A A EBEYN S 14 (17,549) (17,229)
Depreciation of property, nE BERZENE
plant and equipment 8 148 253
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 8 1,286 1,404
Finance costs B & PR 7 669 1,076
Interest income 2 WA 6 (1,549) 2,811)
Net foreign exchange gains W E (4,025) (8,226)
Gain on disposal of investment HERE % s
properties 8 - (2,270)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BERHE
plant and equipment, net Wi F 5 8 (28) =
Write-off of property, plant and WEME BREREE
equipment 8 - 204
Reversal of listing expenses tHRZEE (551) =
Impairment of trade receivables Bo W IBRE 8 327 12
22,370 18,112
Decrease in trade and other receivables BoaRAMERFERER
and prepayments IR 3,847 1,607
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 R E A e FRIRE M 1,117 4,679
Increase in contract liabilities BHAEEM 395 132
Cash generated from operations BEMBRE 27,729 24,530
Taxes paid ENHE
PRC Corporate Income Tax (“CIT”) paid BB ERER
(M %mEH]D (8,983) (5,195)
PRC Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”) paid BB LS ER
(It EEHR]) - (1,818)
NET CASH FLOWS FROM RETHHRERETFE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 18,746 17,517
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
roREMNER(E)

Year ended 31 December 2021

HE2021F 12831 B ILEE

Notes 2021 2020
B o RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®ETTT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZBHBEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Payment for the purchase of property, BEME J%ﬂ%&
plant and equipment BRERERE: b (68) (46)
Payment for additions of investment REREMESL ﬁ E’J
properties (2,851) (3,152)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant ﬁ’ﬂ%% BB &
and equipment R ER TS RE 191 =
Proceeds from disposal of investment HEREMENRBTE
properties - 25,970
Interest received BUYF 8 1,549 2,811
NET CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) REZEME/ (AR
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RERHE (1,179) 25,583
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BETHRERE
ACTIVITIES
Capital element of lease rentals paid ENEERS éK*B’D‘ (1,340) (1,399)
Interest element of lease rentals paid BENEEREAH SIS (43) (98)
Repayment of a bank loan BERTER 25(b) (7,000) (6,500)
Interest paid BfFE 25(b) (635) (985)
Dividend paid BRI & (18,892) (8,951)
NET CASH FLOWS USED IN RETBHRARESRETHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (27,910) (17,933)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN HeRBRESEMEM/
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (BA)F8E (10,343) 25,167
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FHRERBLEEY
year 217,766 201,258
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, @ HNEEXSHNFETFE
net (3,653) (8,659)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERAERBESEEYD
END OF YEAR 203,770 217,766
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERBSEEBYLEHIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances as stated inthe ~ HRAMBARRRIIRH
consolidated statement of financial Re RBTHH
position 18 203,770 217,766
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S R TR &L

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”) and transferred by way of continuation
into the Cayman Islands. The registered address of
the Company is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman lIslands and the principal
place of business in Hong Kong is located at Room 1302,
13th Floor, Bank of East Asia Harbour View Centre, 56
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

During the year, the principal activities of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) were
property leasing, the provision of property management
services and the sale of properties held for sale.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company and the ultimate holding company of the
Company are Lucky Link Investments Limited and China
Investment Corporation, which are incorporated in the BVI
and the PRC, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(continued)

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

1.

RAREEER (F)

MELRNE SR
ARREEMBRABNFEBOT :

follows:
Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/  Percentage of
registration and paid-up share equity attributable Principal
Name business capital to the Company activities
EMEL/ ERTER/ ENR B
£ BV ES 3 MEREA REZEIE TEER
Direct Indirect
E# &
Growing China Limited BVI US$50,000 100 — Investment holding
Growing China Limited EBUERRES 50,000% T 100 - REER
Brighter Win Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100 Property leasing
KKBRAT BA 10,000 7T - 100 WEHE
Chengdu Everbright Finance Centre PRC/Mainland HK$39,250,000 — 100 Property leasing
Development Co., Ltd.* China
KBEAERPOEERBARDA B/ W 39,250,0007% 7. - 100 MEHRE
Chengdu Everbright International Mansion PRC/Mainland RMB75,310,900 — 100 Property leasing
Co., Ltd.# China and property
management
KB ABBRKEERAR" hE AR ¥75,310,9007T - 100 MEEER
NEER
Chengdu Everbright Property PRC/Mainland RMB1,023,972 — 100 Property
Management Co., Ltd* China management
RBARNEERBERANA" B/ A AR1,023 9727 - 100 MEER
Chengdu Sing Kong City Real Estate Co., PRC/Mainland RMB30,000,000 — 100 Property
Ltd.* China development
and property
leasing
KBHAREEBRAA" hE /A A K #30,000,0007T - 100 NERER
NEBRE
Everbright Grand China Assets Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100 Investment holding
Management Limited
RAKFEEERERAT Bk 10,000/ 7t - 100 REEK
Excel Harmony Investments Limited BVI US$10,000 — 100 Investment holding
Excel Harmony Investments Limited RERBARES 10,0003 1 - 100 HEEK
First Step Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 — 100 Investment holding
BERBBRAA BA 10,000 7T - 100 REZK
Metallic Field Limited BVI US$1 = 100 Investment holding
FENERERAA EEEBARES 1% - 100 REZK
Square Field Limited BVI US$50,000 — 100 Investment holding
EEL-1:ING RERBRES 50,000% 7T - 100 REZR
# These companies were registered as wholly foreign-owned ZEATRBREEEZMAING

enterprises under the law of the PRC.

BEME -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 REEE

120

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for investment properties which have been measured at
fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded to the nearest
thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2021. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in
assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

fm R E 2 ()
REEE(E)

b) HEMENLHIMELNER:

X

© AEENBREERLRBERE
1 o

Y /B8 = B B9 B 75 i 3k B2 K R EY R
HYEMAR AERER—BNE
ARRGHE - MBARNEEAR
SEESEGIZARNERA AR
T—EHEHAAREEZEEHERER
IFEBBLE -

B M EA2E RS A& AKED
BERAEESARERANIFERE
Ptz BIMEEEEHIFERER
EEXEBERGE FIAKERRRME
MEELAR #xm WA HX
ANEEAEEXRERARZEARSH
AHREREDNESAREEH
i e

W= E MBI RBR £ Pt =R
HENEZET-BLZHEAE Al
REBSELRGNARTIRES
R-MEAREAEEDNES (XL
KRR AE) BN BR B DI &R
RS-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

21

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent

Concessions

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

I F R & (#8)

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs are
described below:

(@)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 address issues not dealt
with in the previous amendments which affect
financial reporting when an existing interest rate
benchmark is replaced with an alternative risk-free
rate (“RFR”). The amendments provide a practical
expedient to allow the effective interest rate to be
updated without adjusting the carrying amount of
financial assets and liabilities when accounting for
changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the
change is a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent
to the previous basis immediately preceding the
change. In addition, the amendments permit changes
required by the interest rate benchmark reform
to be made to hedge designations and hedge
documentation without the hedging relationship
being discontinued. Any gains or losses that could
arise on transition are dealt with through the normal
requirements of HKFRS 9 to measure and recognise
hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments also provide
a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the
separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is
designated as a risk component. The relief allows
an entity, upon designation of the hedge, to assume
that the separately identifiable requirement is met,
provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk
component to become separately identifiable within
the next 24 months. Furthermore, the amendments
require an entity to disclose additional information to
enable users of financial statements to understand the
effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s
financial instruments and risk management strategy.

22 EMBRRBEENE D (H)

4
ne

L

P53

(@)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

(@) (continued)

The Group had interest-bearing bank borrowings
denominated in RMB based on the RMB Benchmark
Lending Rates for Financial Institutions by the
People’s Bank of China as at 31 December 2021. The
Group expects that the RMB Benchmark Lending
Rates for Financial Institutions by the People’s Bank
of China will continue to exist and the interest rate
benchmark reform has not had an impact on the
Group’s borrowings. If the interest rates of these
borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a future period,
the Group will apply the above-mentioned practical
expedient upon the modification of these instruments
provided that the “economically equivalent” criterion

is met.

(b) Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply lease
modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19
pandemic. The practical expedient applies only to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence
of the pandemic and only if (i) the change in lease
payments results in revised consideration for the lease
that is substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the
change; (ii) any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and (iii) there is no substantive change to other
terms and conditions of the lease. The amendment
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 June 2020 with earlier application permitted and
shall be applied retrospectively. The amendment did
not have any impact on the financial position and

performance of the Group.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG 2.3 EEMEMKRERNEBY KRS
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS Z Al

The Group has not applied the following new and revised AEERARZSET B mMK AN
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in TEMBMERHRERDIF RLE

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
(BB B RELER)EIF (BT A)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011)
(BB BREER)E105% &
(BB ERD)FE285 (2011F)(E T A)
Amendment to HKFRS 16

(BB B WwELER)E1658 (EFTA)
HKFRS 17
(BEBVBRELED)FEIT5H
Amendments to HKFRS 17

(BB BRELEREI7HRUEETA)
Amendment to HKFRS 17

(BREMBHRELEADFATHR(EFTA)

Amendments to HKAS 1

(BB GFERD)EIR (BT

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2

ERGHENFIRREEVBREENE
W EFE25 (BT A)

Amendments to HKAS 8

BB G ERESH (BT A)

Amendments to HKAS 12

B S ERFE125(BETA)
Amendments to HKAS 16

BB G ERE165% (BT 4
Amendments to HKAS 37
BB EREI7H (IBFT )
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020
(BB &£ R)) 20184F Z20204F 7Y
FE N

RIEEMBREER -

Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

B2 HESE 15 52

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

KEEZHRBENARE S F 2 FHEE L& HE

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 June
20217

20219 6H30H.2 t 19 Covid-1916 5 7 & Z %'

Insurance Contracts?®

IR B & 49°

Insurance Contracts?® ¢

IR B & 495 6

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 —
Compatrative Information?

B AXERAE B B EERDE 1759 RAEF B #H & 2EA)
FEIW — HEKE

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current® ®

HEESERB LB EIETE 5

Disclosure of Accounting Policies?®
B 5T IR A9 K FES

Definition of Accounting Estimates?®

=518 5 B E S

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction?®

BHE-—XGEFLIEEREEE BHEL P IE

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended
Use?

Y FE - BB R - #EE FH A F AT E A R?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract?

EEER — [BITE AL A2

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 412

(BEEVBRELIDFEIR (BEMBREERDFEINR

(BEAMBREEIDFIHAEEESRF R(EA G
BRI E 415 (BRI A)2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 2 e B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in October 2020 to
align the corresponding wording with no change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in
October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary
exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than
HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a
reference to the previous Framework for the Preparation
and Presentation of Financial Statements with a reference
to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting
issued in June 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an
exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to
the Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes
an asset or a liability. The exception specifies that, for
liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be within
the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were
incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to
HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since the
amendments apply prospectively to business combinations
for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of
first application, the Group will not be affected by these
amendments on the date of transition.

23 CEMEEMKRERNEEMBRSE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint
venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a
gain or loss resulting from a downstream transaction when
the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business.
For a transaction involving assets that do not constitute a
business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is
recognised in the investor’s profit or loss only to the extent
of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or joint
venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the
HKICPA in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective
date will be determined after the completion of a broader
review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic
by 12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient
applies to rent concessions for which any reduction in
lease payments affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2022, provided the other conditions for
applying the practical expedient are met. The amendment
is effective retrospectively for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 April 2021 with any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendment recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning
of the current accounting period. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendment is not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current. The
amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying
with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting
period if it complies with those conditions at that date.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of
the liability. The amendments also clarify the situations that
are considered a settlement of a liability. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively.
Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies
require entities to disclose their material accounting
policy information rather than their significant accounting
policies. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in
an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. Amendments to HKFRS
Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory guidance
on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023 and earlier application is permitted. Since the
guidance provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments on the Group’s
accounting policy disclosures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments
are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting
policies and changes in accounting estimates that occur
on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the
initial recognition exception so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred
tax liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits or other component of equity as
appropriate at that date. In addition, the amendments shall
be applied prospectively to transactions other than leases
and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

I F R & (#8)

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting
from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items,
in profit or loss. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and shall be
applied retrospectively only to items of property, plant and
equipment made available for use on or after the beginning
of the earliest period presented in the financial statements
in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of
assessing whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37,
the cost of fulfilling the contract comprises the costs that
relate directly to the contract. Costs that relate directly to a
contract include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an allocation
of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract
as well as contract management and supervision costs).
General and administrative costs do not relate directly
to a contract and are excluded unless they are explicitly
chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts
for which an entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at
the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first
applies the amendments. Earlier application is permitted.
Any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening
equity at the date of initial application without restating
the comparative information. The amendments are not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.3

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out
amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41. Details of the
amendments that are expected to be applicable to the
Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees
that an entity includes when assessing whether
the terms of a new or modified financial liability are
substantially different from the terms of the original
financial liability. These fees include only those paid
or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower
or lender on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the
amendment to financial liabilities that are modified
or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendment is not
expected to have a significant impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements in Illustrative Example 13
accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives
when applying HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

I F R & (#8)

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment
properties), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s
or cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In
testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion of the
carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a headquarters
building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating unit if
it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or of a parent of the Group.

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the

other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (continued)

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replace at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4

POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment
to its residual value over its estimated useful life as follows:

EXEHBRERBEE)

ME BERRERFTEE)

FENERZEFE HEBEYE

TR 55 Ko 2% 5 O fib & AT (R AR F A SR

HEHRAZERNBKEBENT

Over the shorter of

the lease terms and their estimated useful lives, being no more

Buildings situated on leasehold land

HELHZ EONET

than 50 years after the date of completion

HEHEEGAAERFHIREE - THEBTHKAHEFS0F

Equipment and others
& R A

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

I F R & (#8)

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use
asset which would otherwise meet the definition of an
investment property) held to earn rental income and/or for
capital appreciation, rather than for use in the production
or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the statement of
profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties or inventories, the deemed cost of
a property for subsequent accounting is its fair value
at the date of change in use. If a property occupied by
the Group as an owner-occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Group accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” for owned property
and/or accounts for such property in accordance with
the policy stated under “Right-of-use assets” for property
held as a right-of-use asset up to the date of change in
use, and any difference at that date between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for
as a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment and depreciation” above.
For a transfer from properties held for sale to investment
properties, any difference between the fair value of the
property at that date and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
I F AR & (#8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

@)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount
of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Building 3 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in
leasehold land held as properties held for sale, they
are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and
net realisable value in accordance with the Group’s
policy for “properties held for sale”. When a right-
of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property, it is included in investment properties. The
corresponding right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost, and subsequently measured at fair value, in
accordance with the Group’s policy for “investment
properties”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessee (continued)

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that
do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised
as an expense in the period in which the event or

condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to

purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less
from the commencement date and do not contain
a purchase option). It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an
asset are classified as operating leases. When a contract
contains lease and non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each
component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis.
Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement
of profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
cost incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue
in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component,
the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under
HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”)
on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

I F R & (#8)

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within a
business model with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which
are not held within the aforementioned business models
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt
instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

° the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT

24 EXSFTHEHE(HE)

RIEBRAESHMEE

SREERMER —HEeREE
S HREMEEN B EE
TSI R TR LR R (B A S
MR AR EER)

s BRENMRTCARENEFNEE
e

e AKBECDHBEEEWRERE
MENEN  KEREEF
RHAEETHEEE KNTERT
ERATHRAUBMHNESRES

MEENTE=ZT R@AE
lEﬁ“ﬁ%%%K%%@ﬁ
Ko B ¥R : 3% (o) A &% B I & AR
IREEENBRALD AR K
Bl - BB HEEERITHE o

EAEBECEHZEBEERDMBE R
EMREANKEITZEFLHR K
SEeTARAREBEEMAEN
R E R RREEE - RAEER
THEEZEIREEENBASD A
B N[Ol - JREE R E E RO TIAE
REEBRBRUAEEFBE2EEER
BEA%%EEEDE\EH:} ﬁﬁ% E/\\n%%;ﬁ
TOAREETNEREBAEE - FTH
EEENMEBREEERAEEMRE
BREMNEEENEETE -

NERTAEEL2EELEEE
REEREROEEASEHAX
MHESRESBOREETE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group.

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based
on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as
its accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in
calculating ECLs with policies as described above.
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
loans and borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in the
statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

U when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

U in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, when the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model in accordance with
HKAS 40 Investment Property, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered through
sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The presumption
is rebutted when the investment property is depreciable
and is held within a business model of the Group whose
business objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for
such investment properties are measured in accordance
with the above general principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e.,
based on the expected manner as to how the properties
will be recovered).

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are
expensed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

I F R & (#8)

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods and services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group a significant financial benefit for more
than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer
and the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the
effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(a)  Property management services

Revenue from the provision of property management
services is recognised over the scheduled period
on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfer
control of the related goods or services to the customer).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing
of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits
Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary which operates
in Mainland China are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of its payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those

benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB, which
is the Company’s presentation currency. The functional
currency of the Company is the Hong Kong dollar which
is the currency of the primary environment in which the
Company operates. Since the Company does not conduct
any substantive operations of its own and conducts its
primary business operations through its subsidiaries
in Mainland China, the Company adopts RMB as the
presentation currency of the Group. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Differences on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss with the
exception of monetary items that are designated as part
of the hedge of the Group’s net investment of a foreign
operation. These are recognised in other comprehensive
income until the net investment is disposed of, at which
time the cumulative amount is reclassified to the statement
of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to
exchange differences on those monetary items are also
recorded in other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.

The functional currencies of the Company and certain
subsidiaries operating outside Mainland China are
currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of
profit or loss are translated into RMB at the exchange rates
that approximate to those prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of an operation outside Mainland
China, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
the statement of profit of loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of the Company and its subsidiaries
operating outside Mainland China are translated into RMB
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of the Company and its
subsidiaries operating outside Mainland China which
arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Property lease classification — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term
not constituting a major part of the economic life of
the commercial property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially
all the fair value of the commercial property, that it retains
substantially all the significant risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of these properties which are leased out and
accounts for the contracts as operating leases.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Provision for ECLs on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
days past due. The provision matrix is initially based on
the Group’s historical observed default rates. The Group
will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss
experience with forward-looking information. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

I F R & (#8)

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for ECLs on trade receivables
(continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs
is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also
not be representative of a customer’s actual default in the
future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s
trade receivables is disclosed in note 17 to the financial
statements.

Estimation of fair values of investment properties

As described in note 14 to the financial statements, the
Group’s investment properties were revalued at the end
of the reporting period based on the appraised market
value provided by independent firms of valuers. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainty and might materially differ from
the actual results. In making the estimation, the Group
considers information from (i) independent valuations;
(i) current prices in an active market for properties of
a different nature, condition or location by reference to
available market information; (iii) recent prices of similar
properties in less active markets, with adjustments to
reflect any changes in economic conditions since the
dates of transactions that occurred at those prices; and
(iv) discounted cash flow projections, based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts, and from
external evidence such as current market rates for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and using
discount rates that reflect current market assessments of
the uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash flows.
The carrying amount and the details of the fair value
measurement of investment properties at 31 December
2021 were disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates the tax implications of transactions and
tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment
of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to take
into account of all changes in tax legislation. Deferred
tax assets are recognised for temporary deductible
differences. As those deferred tax assets can only be
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the unused
tax credits can be utilised, management’s judgement is
required to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management reassesses these estimates at the end of
each reporting period. Additional deferred tax assets are
recognised if it becomes probable that future taxable
profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.
The carrying values of deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities at 31 December 2021 were RMB1,530,000
(2020: RMB1,448,000) and RMB190,020,000 (2020:
RMB183,820,000), respectively. Further details are included
in note 22 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The directors of the Company have been identified as the
Group’s most senior executive management. Operating
segments are identified on the basis of internal reports that
the Group’s most senior executive management reviews
regularly in allocating resources to segments and in
assessing their performance.

The Group’s most senior executive management
makes resource allocation decisions based on internal
management functions and assesses the Group’s
business performance as one integrated business instead
of by separate business lines or geographical regions.
Accordingly, the Group has only one operating segment
and therefore, no segment information is presented.

The Group primarily operates in the PRC and accordingly,
no geographical information is presented.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenues of
approximately RMB9,261,000 and RMB7,141,000, which
represented 17.6% and 13.6% of the Group’s total revenue,
respectively, were derived from two separate single
customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, revenues
of approximately RMB7,044,000, RMB6,187,000,
RMB5,676,000 and RMB5,534,000, which represented
13.6%, 12.0%, 11.0% and 10.7% of the Group’s total
revenue, respectively, were derived from four separate
single customers.
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H 22021F12A31B IEFE - W%
4 A R #9,261,0007T & A R
7,141,0007T © 7 BG4 & B B 0 =
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H £2020F12A31B It F & W =
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6,187,0007T * A R #5,676,0007C &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 2 e B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

5. REVENUE 5.

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

2020
2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Revenue from contracts with EFEAA BN 7
customers
Provision of property management REMEEERS
services 15,419 14,997
Revenue from other sources 2K B E il 2 )55 848 7
Gross rentals from investment REKREDHED
properties He B 37,259 36,737
52,678 51,734
Revenue from contracts with customers EFE A MK
(i) Disaggregation revenue information (i) WEERSE
For the year ended 31 December 2021 B Z2021F12831HILFEE
Provision
of property
management
services
RBHYE
R
RMB’000
AR T
Timing of revenue recognition W R
Services transferred over time BE B P 85 7% AR 75 15,419
Total revenue from contracts with customers BEAHBW 15,419
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(i) Disaggregation revenue information
(continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

5. W= (&)

EFEHAH R (HE)

(i) WwEERDSE(E)

B E2020F12A31H IEEE

Provision

of property
management
services
REME
BB RE
RMB’000
AREEF T

Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred over time

Wy 55 SR B B

BE B ] 83 7% AR 75 14,997

Total revenue from contracts with customers

BE AR 14,997

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were
included in the contract liabilities at the beginning of

the reporting period:

TRETIRBEHINFAEGLK
BETHIA/AREHANNK
HmER

Provision of property management
services

he W) 5 B 12 AR A%

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT R ARBTR
1,066 934
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

5. REVENUE (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(ii) Performance obligations

Information about the Group’s performance obligation
is summarised below:

Provision of property management services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time
as services are rendered and short-term advances
are normally required before rendering the services.
Management service contracts are for periods of
one to five years, and are billed based on the time
incurred.

The Group elected to apply the practical expedient
under HKFRS 15 and does not disclose the amount
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
obligations for the provision of property management
services for which the Group bills a fixed amount
for each month of service provided and recognises
revenue in the amount to which the Group has a right
to invoice.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021

2021412 HA31H

OTHER INCOME, NET

6. Hfttlr AFHE

2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
Interest income from bank deposits RITHE A H B WA 1,549 2,811
Net foreign exchange gain HNIE I 25 5 58 4,008 6,786
Government grants* I T 48 Bh > - 446
Gain on disposal of investment HEREYERE
properties*™ - 2,270
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEME  BER
and equipment Bl g 28 —
Others H 273 50
5,858 12,363
* During the year ended 31 December 2020, government grants * H Z=2020F12A318 It F & BT

of HK$432,000 (approximately RMB384,000) and RMB62,000,
which represented subsidies for stabilising employment, were
received from the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region under the “Anti-epidemic Fund” and
government authorities in the PRC, respectively. There were no
unfulfilled conditions and contingencies related to these grants.

- In September and October 2020, the Group entered into >

separate sale and purchase agreements with three independent
third parties and disposed of three residential properties
located at Dufu Garden, 10 Zu, 11 Zu, Long Zhua Cun, Wu Hou
District, Chengdu, Sichuan Province in the PRC with a carrying
value of RMB23,700,000 in aggregate, which were classified as
investment properties at the time of disposal. The aggregate
consideration before tax was approximately RMB27,268,000.

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3§

8 81432,000/% 7t (49 A R #384,000
7T) & A R#62,0007T 5 Bl A& W BLE
BEAINTREBRNPERZEES]
KRB R BT EBPTE R E B
B o % 55 1 B) 3 & 1F 7] R 52 AR K 14
R BEEFHE -

20209F9A R10A A &£ B BH = £
BYE=HIILBIYEE W
B AR P B I R E TR E
& B NA104E - MM BFEE N =
HEEME EEHEAEAARE
23,700,000t E M HEER S E A K
BEME -BRARBEROAARE
27,268,0007T °

LA

169



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 2 e B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BMERAK
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BMEK RS T :
2021 2020
202145 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Interest on a bank loan RITE 8 626 978
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNE 43 98
669 1,076
8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. F®AEIF B
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBBAFBEE OB GEA) AR
(crediting): NIER:
Notes 2021 2020
Bt & 202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
INGL-B A ARET T
Cost of services rendered* B e AR 7% &9 A AN 13,066 12,415
Depreciation of property, plant and #1%¥ - BMERREITE
equipment 15 148 253
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  fFFAEEENE 16 1,286 1,404
Impairment of trade receivables** B 5 W SR IE R E 17 327 12
Write-off of items of property, plant  #% - BE K& & EAH
and equipment B B 55 15 - 204
Gain on disposal of items of property, L E W% - BE N &
plant and equipment, net HA W FE (28) —
Gain on disposal of investment HEREYHERE
properties — (2,270)
Auditor’s remuneration Z A B 2 1,043 1,155
Employee benefit expense (including EER AR (BIEE
directors’ remuneration (note 9)): =2 (M 5E9)) :
Salaries and other benefits TE R E AL F 14,747 14,686
Pension scheme contributions R BI R 1,005 196
15,752 14,882
* The employee benefit expense included in cost of services * AAERHBRE K AN ESRAFA
rendered was RMB5,328,000 (2020: RMB4,506,000). % A A R #5,328,0007T (20204 : A

R #4,506,0007T) °
> The impairment of trade receivables for the years are included
in “Other operating expenses” in the consolidated statement of o Z% if’ BB 5 FEWRIERMEEA

profit or loss. REBEmRIEMLEERT] -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 9.

REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive officer’'s remuneration for
the year, disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”), section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

ESRTHRART M

FARBHBHIAMESR MR E
R B - & E R A K 55383(1)
@ ® " ) EOHEARAR(BEEE
EMZERROFBEBENES
RITBRBERFMMET :

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T AREF T

Fees ke 752 768

Other emoluments: HEi e

Salaries, allowances and benefits in ¥ & - ZBI R E WA 25

kind 1,817 1,932

Discretionary bonuses ) 15 7€ 4L 1,502 1,608

Pension scheme contributions RIKE 5T B 5K 15 16

3,334 3,556

Total @t 4,086 4,324
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 2 e B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 9. EERITHARTM(A)
REMUNERATION (continued)

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits Discretionary scheme
Fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
B4 2HR BAReE
e ENAE RERA fit 5 @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARWMTr ARBTr ARETR AR¥TR
(note i)
(Bt i)
2021 20215
Executive Directors HiTEE
Liu Jia (note ii 25 (W 3xiii) - 1,104 814 15 1,933
Lin Zimin (note v) WA (M 3E) - 208 172 - 380
Ma Heming (note v) SEHA (K — 449 516 — 965
- 1,761 1,502 15 3,278
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Tse Hang Mui (note vi) A5 1 (M i) - - - - -
Li Yinzhong (note vi) 5 (Wit - = - - -
Wang Yun (note vi) TE (M zhvii) - - - - -
Zhuang Minrong (note Vi HEER 5 (W &Evil) - - - - -
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Tsoi David (note vii) X 48 (I 3vii) 188 14 - — 202
Shek Lai Him, Abraham (note vii) A& (M sHvi) 188 16 - - 204
Lee Jor Hung (note i) 21 18 (Bt SFviii) 188 15 - — 203
Yu Pauling Wah Ling (note vii) TEI2 (W &vii) 188 11 - = 199
752 56 - - 808
752 1,817 1,502 15 4,086
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
REMUNERATION (continued)

9. EEBERITHAHRTMHE)

Salaries, Pension
allowances and  Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits in kind bonuses  contributions Total
g2 RER RfE5T2
e ENila MERLL 3% @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRT  AR%TR ARETT ARETR AR%ET:
(note i)
(Wt i)
2020 2020F
Executive Directors HIEE
Liu Jia (note ii) G — 1,189 872 16 2,077
Lin Zimin (note iv) & & (i &Fiv) - 677 736 - 1413
- 1,860 1,608 16 3,490
Non-executive Directors FHGEE
Tse Hang Mui (note vi) B4 (B i) - = - - -
Li Yinzhong (note vi) FHRP (W eEv) = > - - -
Independent Non-executive BUHHTEE
Directors
Tsoi David (note vii) 2K 48 (W 3vii) 192 17 = = 209
Shek Lai Him, Abraham (note viil Rg Rk (R wvii) 192 16 - - 208
Lee Jor Hung (note vii) 24 18 (B i) 192 17 = = 209
Yu Pauling Wah Ling (note vii) T2 (K wvii) 192 16 - - 208
768 66 - - 834
768 1,932 1,608 16 4,324
Notes: P 3 -

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors or any of the five highest paid individuals set out
in note 10 below as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office. No remuneration
was paid to the four non-executive Directors during the year.

Discretionary bonuses are determined by reference to the
performance of individuals and the Group.

Mr. Liu Jia was appointed as a Director on 1 September 2000
and re-designated as an executive Director and the chairman
of the Company on 16 January 2018 for a specific term of three
years. Subsequent to 31 December 2020, his service contract
was renewed as an executive Director and the chairman of
the Company on 16 January 2021 for a specific term of three
years. He was also the chief executive officer of the Company
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

(i)

(i)

RAFER AEBEHERESRKT
B FE10RT H A Al 7L & & = B A
TXNMEEAMNAMAREE
BRRBSIEABBREE - FAM
ZIEITE B T

BMBETEA2ERBARANEERBRR
EE e

2 5 5 £ R2000F9A1HE R T A
ARFEE - WHR2018F1H16H &
NRZEABARRNITESRERE
EETHA=F - K2020F12A31H
B BECARRNITESRIE
BRI & A R202141 B16 HE&EH -
EEMTHAB=ZF - #NE E20214F
202012 A31B It FE IR A AR A
THREE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S

REMUNERATION (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

Mr. Lin Zimin was appointed as an executive Director on 25
November 2010 and re-designated as an executive Director of
the Company on 16 January 2018 for a specific term of three
years. Subsequent to 31 December 2020, his service contract
as an executive Director of the Company was renewed on 16
January 2021 for a specific term of three years. Mr Lin Zimin
had resigned as an executive Director with effect from 15 April
2021.

Mr. Ma Heming was appointed as an executive Director on 15
April 2021 for a specific term of three years.

Ms. Tse Hang Mui and Mr. Li Yinzhong were appointed as
Directors on 7 June 2017 and re-designated as non-executive
Directors on 16 January 2018. The non-executive Directors of
the Company are appointed for a specific term of three years.
Subsequent to 31 December 2020, their service contracts as
non-executive Directors were renewed on 16 January 2021 for
a specific term of three years. Ms. Tse Hang Mui and Mr. Li
Yinzhong had resigned as non-executive Directors with effect
from 26 August 2021.

Ms. Wang Yun and Mr. Zhuang Minrong were appointed on 26
August 2021 as non-executive Directors. The non-executive
Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific term of
three years.

Mr. Tsoi David, Mr. Shek Lai Him, Abraham, Mr. Lee Jor Hung
and Ms. Yu Pauline Wah Ling were appointed as independent
non-executive Directors with effect from 16 January 2018.
The independent non-executive Directors of the Company are
appointed for a specific term of three years. Subsequent to 31
December 2020, their letters of appointment as independent
non-executive Directors were renewed on 16 January 2021 for
a specific term of three years.

There was no arrangement under which a director or
the chief executive officer waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10.

The five highest paid employees during the year included
two directors (2020: two directors), details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2020:
three) highest paid employees who are neither a director
nor chief executive officer of the Company are as follows:

TEEEHFMESR

FRN hemadWEEBEMA
B E(020F: W BHEE) HEHMN
HBEHREXHFEI - FAEB=F
(2020 : =H) &= & B2 B (3 3F
ARAREBHITHAR)WETMFS
T

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in & &  EZEEREWH R
kind 1,516 1,589
Discretionary bonuses 15 T 4T 414 434
Pension scheme contributions RIREET 87 R 45 48
1,975 2,071

The number of non-director and non-chief executive officer
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following band is as follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = £1,000,0007% 7T

e FTIIBENIFES RIFT
BESEESHFHEEOABDT:

Number of employees

BEAE
2021 20204
3 3
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 2 e B ()

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

11.

INCOME TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
the Group did not generate any assessable profits arising
in Hong Kong during the year (2020: Nil). Taxes on profits
assessable elsewhere have been calculated at the rates
of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

1.

Fi 8

A S8 4 7 3 4 0 T 0 E A AT
(8 3R 0 LB - e S 4 5
7118 Bt 1 18 (20207 : ) - R A3t
5 8 3R Bt 9 #0078 AR 08 K 9K
{8 3 76 A A% BB B TR 17 B
e

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T

Current tax — the PRC BNEAFR I8 —
CIT REREH 4,560 7,252
LAT T I E R - 1,818
Deferred tax iR JE 71 18 6,118 2,259
Withholding tax TR 291 388
10,969 11,717

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rates for the jurisdictions in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as

(ERN/NCTD @ =il = NI
£ RAHE B 9 0A E T R ET E M B AT
AE Y E B TR B e IR B IR R
AAEMH AR BRI

follows:

2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T
Profit before tax 75t Bl A B 43,642 45,699
Tax at the statutory tax rates BEAEBEFTENTIE 11,430 11,829
Preferential tax rates BEME (439) (375)
Expenses not deductible for tax IRk AT 1,128 1,092
Deductible temporary differences not 7 & 32 7] #1J5 & bs = &
recognised (1,261) (2,703)
Effect of withholding tax on the N B B A R Al
distributed profits of the Group’s 2R FEENF A
PRC subsidiaries A 291 388
Provision for LAT T b 1 E B B - 1,818
Tax effect on provision for LAT T 3B A T B
M - (455)
Other H Aty (180) 123
Tax expense at the Group’s effective 1% K &£ B B B i X
rate FFE AR IERR X 10,969 11,717
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

I F R & (#8)

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

11.

INCOME TAX (continued)

All subsidiaries of the Company established and operating
in the PRC are subject to the PRC CIT at an applicable rate
of 25%.

Pursuant to “Notice on Implementation of Inclusive Tax
Relief Policy for Small Low-profit Enterprises Cai Shui
(2019) No. 13” and the “Announcement on Implementing
the Preferential Income Tax Policies for Micro and Small
Enterprises and Individual Industrial and Commercial
Households (Announcement No. 12 [2021])”, Chengdu
Everbright Property Management Co., Ltd. falls within
the eligible industry category and is eligible to enjoy
the preferential income tax rates of 2.5% (a reduced
rate of 12.5% of the taxable income amount, and be
subject to corporate income tax at a 20% tax rate when
income does not exceed RMB1,000,000) and 10% (a
reduced rate of 50% of the taxable income amount,
and be subject to corporate income tax at a 20% tax
rate when income exceeds RMB1,000,000 but does not
exceed RMB3,000,000) for the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: 5% when taxable income does not exceed
RMB1,000,000 and 10% when taxable income exceeds
RMB1,000,000 but does not exceed RMB3,000,000).

Tax for other entities of the Group is charged at their
respective applicable income tax rates ruling in the relevant
jurisdictions.

LAT is levied on properties developed by the Group for
sale, at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, which under the applicable
regulations is calculated based on the proceeds from sale
of properties less deductible expenditures including lease
charges of land use rights, borrowing costs and relevant
property development expenditures.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s
investment properties were charged on the contract
revenue of properties sold at 7% according to local tax
regulations published by the Chengdu local tax bureau.

11.

Fr &%t (8)

YNBSS e VA E S ol R = N ]
J& R 7] 19 78 1225% K i B B R B
FEREERMAEHR -

BEIERERE N M EELTEER
WO %0 B SR /Y 3@ &0 (BF B (2019)13
) RBEBXRREBRERE B/
MEEMERIEmFAMEHERK
R D E([2021] F F125%) ] ~ B #
HKAMEEBRERATBEERD
EFXER  EitBEREE E2021
F12A318 It F B = X2.5% (& &
49 FT 15 B 5B 1 B 38 A R #51,000,000
TC ' X EE R R12.5% ¢+ E20% H Bt K
AN 1 P 1S ) R10% (& FE 4% B
S EBIB A R1,0000005TET
BB A R #3,000,0007T ' ZEE E %
50% ' IL20% M B KM EME
BB EHRERE - (2020F :
5%) (BEEMBASETBBARE
1,000,0007T) &10% (& F& 44 & F7 15
%8B A R #1,000,0007C1B SR i@
A R #3,000,0007T) °

AEBEEMEENORAREBADA
REAERESEBNERMREHK

AEBRBEARLENY R AL L
b, (B {8 15 18 LAB0% E60% K R & T
KRG LB EH  REBEREMA
THIEERSDEEEMEMSRE
AR (B ERERE
X BERARBEYEFREF)

B E2020F12A31B IEF & » R &
P EB 3 73 W A5 R B e B 3 T AR RS OR
BOAEBENREDERZLED
XA T% BB
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
I F AR & (#8)

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

12. DIVIDENDS 12. KRB
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBT T
Final dividend paid in respect of the & Z£2020F 12 A31H IEF
year ended 31 December 2020 — ERNHRERE —
RMB1.92 cents (2019: 2.03 cents) BEREERAKK1.92
per ordinary share 7 (20194 : 2.03%) 8,475 8,960
Special dividend paid — RMB1.50 EREFRRE — 3K
cents (2019: Nil) per ordinary share L@ ARE1.500
(20195 : &) 6,621 —
15,096 —
Interim dividend — RMBO0.86 cents THIRE — BREBER
(2020: Nil) per ordinary share A R#0.86%
(20204 : &) 3,796 —
Proposed final dividend — RMB0.99 E#AHRE — 8K
cents (2020: RMB1.92 cents) per TERAREK099D
ordinary share (2020%F : AR ¥1.92
) 4,370 8,475
Proposed special dividend — Nil EZEEIRE —
(2020: RMB1.50 cents) per ordinary (20204 : & i% & i f%
share A R¥1.509) - 6,621
4,370 15,096
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the FREERBREEFARARARRE
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming RENIGRITHR R A FERE LHE -
annual general meeting. The final dividend proposed after FAIEE o & B R A2 & K 5
the end of the reporting period has not been recognised BRETERBMERARERREE -
as liabilities at the end of the reporting period. The special BRI BB R2021F1H28B 5 K -
dividend was declared on 28 January 2021 and had not M R2020F12A31B AR A B
been recognised as liabilities as at 31 December 2020. f& o
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BREF

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts
is based on the profit for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB32,673,000 (2020:
RMB33,982,000), and the weighted average number of
ordinary shares of 441,400,000 (2020: 441,400,000) in
issue during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.
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FR BEREXRZFTDEARQA
BB REHRFAFNBAREK
32,673,0007C (2020 : A R #&
33,982,0007T) & E. % 17 &9 0 4 £33
38 A% A% B1441,400,0000% (20204 :
441,400,0000% ) 5t & -

H E2021F K2020%F12A318 |F F
B AEBUVETMBEHZDE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. BEYE
2021 2020
202145 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
Carrying amount at 1 January M1A1EMEREEE 933,300 922,400
Additions, at cost NE AR 2,851 3,152

Transfer from property, plant and EEME  WERKHE"

equipment* — 10,500
Transfer from properties held for sale** & & 5 1 ) & ¥y %+ - 3,719
Disposal k== - (23,700)
Net gain from fair value adjustments 2 7t & E # 2F W =5 17,549 17,229
Carrying amount at end of year FAREME 953,700 933,300

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a certain portion
of a property with a net carrying value of RMB1,761,000 was
transferred from property, plant and equipment to investment
properties. The difference between the fair value of the
property and the carrying value at the date of transfer of
RMB8,739,000, and the deferred tax of RMB2,185,000 thereon
were recognised in fair value reserve.

- During the year ended 31 December 2020, properties with
a total carrying value of RMB3,719,000 were transferred
from properties held for sale to investment properties. The
difference between the fair values of the properties and the
carrying values at the date of transfer of RMB11,481,000, and
the deferred tax of RMB2,870,000 thereon were recognised in
profit or loss.

* ke

B Z2020F12A31B L EE - K@
FEARB1,761,000t W ES T
HroEWE BEAIBEERE
ME-MERBEABEONAALEE
AR E(E 2 M =5 A R 8,739,000
7 MR B IR JE B 18 A R #2,185,000
TERAAEBERKERR -

B Z 202012 A31B IEFE - RE#
8 A R #3,719,0007T #) ¥) 3 B #5 1E
HENEEEREYE -VERE
EAMNAREEEREEZHD
7 A K #11,481,0007T & 18 B I 3
TIE AR®2,870,000 TN ER R ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group’s investment properties consist of three
commercial properties in the PRC. The directors of the
Company have determined that the investment properties
were commercial properties based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of each property. The Group’s
investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2021 based on valuations performed by Landscope
Christie’s International Real Estate, independent
professionally qualified valuers, at RMB953,700,000 (2020:
RMB933,300,000). Each year, the Group’s management
decides to appoint which external valuer to be responsible
for the external valuations of the Group’s properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards are
maintained. The Group’s management has discussions
with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results twice a year when the valuation is performed for
interim and annual financial reporting.

Most of the investment properties of the Group are leased
to third parties under operating leases, further summary
details of which are included in note 16 to the financial
statements.

At 31 December 2021, certain investment properties of the
Group with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
RMB366,481,000 (2020: RMB361,441,000) were pledged
to a bank to secure a banking facility granted to the Group.
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14.

REME(A)

AEBBEEMERBRURFHD
“EEENE - ADAEETRE
AERNEZEMENEELS - FREER
R BREVMEBREDE - KR
&7 & & 1% F % {4 13 Al Landscope
Christie’s International Real Estate
ETNHE AEENREMER
2021F12A3IB K EFHEAAR
#953,700,0007C (20204F : A R &
933,300,0007T) ° A & &F & =
FAEZEIINEGHEMEBEEHAS
B EETIHIDGE BEZER
EmiGMmE - B2 BUUEEES
RFEERE - RAHABPRFE B
BEETHER AEEEEES
FHEAEM R AHERSKRME
B4

AEBRBOREMERBLER
ERTHF=Z AHEZFAML
BB 5 R M RE16 e

R2021F12A31H » A& B R | &
B % A AN R #366,481,0007T (2020
F AN R ¥361,441,0007T) B & TR
EMEREBTRERTEALAEEE
RIRITREMER -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

14. REY X ()

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group’s investment properties:

2021

TRHEAREBBE MK DA
HESE

JE‘ N

Fair value measurement using

MABEFERRA
Quoted prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
ERTEN EATEE EAFUEE
5 2% 2%
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(£-FE) (£=F) (5=FE) @zt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR
Recurring fair value measurement for. ~ TEHARBEME:
Commercial properties HENE - - 953,700 953,700
2020 20204
Fair value measurement using
NrBEHERA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
ERMSEN  EAUAE BASIEER
HE 28 2%
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(%-F) (5-F) (£=FE) @5t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTR AREFT AREFT AREFT
Recurring fair value measurement for. ~ EHAREENE:
Commercial properties BENE - - 933,300 933,300

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil).

RER F-—EBEEF-_EBzMITE
AREBEFAEER EFE-ZEBNERQ
AEE 28 A & 1 (20204 :
) o

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3R

181



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
I F AR & (#8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REWF (&)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised F-BRAAEBEIESENAAE
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: BEFf =R
RMB’000
AR®T T
Carrying amount at 1 January 2020 R2020F1 A1EH M ERE (A 922,400
Addition NE 3,152
Transfer from properties held for sale EAREHEDE 3,719
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EEME  WERKE 10,500
Disposal k= (23,700)
Net gain from fair value adjustments RERBERAAEBERAE
recognised in profit or loss U = 17,229
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 R2020%F12 A31H &
and 1 January 2021 20211 B1HM R EE 933,300
Addition NE 2,851
Net gain from fair value adjustments REZERALEBEAR
recognised in profit or loss F U = 17,549
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 2021F12 A31H K R B 953,700
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

I F R & (#8)

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques
used and the key inputs to the valuation of investment
properties:

REME(A)
ATHINFABEEDTZMERKE
MEBEIEHAE:

Relationship of
Range of unobservable inputs

Description Valuation technique Unobservable inputs  unobservable inputs to fair value
TTBRERAER
#t B EE L% FOBRGAE TBEERAEEGE AAEENER
Investment properties  Market comparison Adjustment of -45% t0 4% The higher the sales value
REME approach comparables (2020: -66% to 14%)  of comparables, the
% L B for difference of -45%%4%  higher the fair value

transaction time and
physical attributes
between the subject
property

BONENRHIHRESR
BEMZEZENHY
ERE

Term and reversion
method
FHREHZE

Capitalisation rate

B

Certain investment properties located in the PRC are
partially owner-occupied and partially subject to existing
tenancies as at the date of valuation. In this connection,
for the property interests in vacant possession, the fair
value has been determined, assuming vacant possession
could be immediately available as at the date of valuation,
using the market comparison approach by reference to
recent sales price of comparable properties, adjusted to
the difference of transaction time and physical attributes
between the subject property. For the tenanted property
interests, the fair value has been determined on the
basis of capitalisation of the net income derived from the
existing tenancies with due allowance for reversionary
income potential of the respective properties and where
appropriate, also made reference to the comparable
market transactions.

(2020: 6.0% to 6.5%)

(20204 : -66% 214%) AILLHERM S -

RRBELER

6.0% to 6.5% The higher the
capitalisation rate, the

6.0%%£6.5% lower the fair value

(2020% : 6.0%%6.5%) BARLE#E

R BEBE

ETHURPENREYNE  KEE
B BOoREEER MoEE
BAHEONKRR - Bt HREE
EANYMERERD  HAREBEERTE
REXEEEARRXGAEAMAY
BEG  EAMBLEESLERAL
MENTHETELR TN R
SRBEYEREZENEREL
HE - -HREEMEERD ANE
BNAEMEANEE ZFRENE
MM BERETE TERBINZYWE
MEBKANED  UR(EE)2
ZAELBMISERS °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% -BERRE
Buildings
held for own Equipment
use and others Total
BFFEAEF RERHM Bt

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE AR®BTR AR¥TxR

Cost: B AR

At 1 January 2020 720201 H1H 3,404 4,865 8,269
Additions NE = 46 46
Write-off 4 3 - (280) (280)
Transfer to investment properties EZE & &4 %

(note 14) (B 5E14) (3,161) — (3,161)
Exchange realignment ME 5 58 & — (47) (47)
At 31 December 2020 72020412 5318

and 1 January 2021 % 2021F1H1H8 243 4,584 4,827
Additions NE - 68 68
Disposals k= (122) (526) (648)
Exchange realignment bE 0 38 2 - (21) (21)
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12 A31H 121 4,105 4,226

Accumulated depreciation Bt ERRE:
and impairment:

At 1 January 2020 R2020F1A1H 1,345 3,067 4,412
Charge during the year F AR 75 178 253
Write-off H 25 — (76) (76)
Transfer to investment properties EE R &Y%

(note 14) (Bff 5E14) (1,400) — (1,400)
Exchange realignment BE 5, 58 B = 9) ©)
At 31 December 2020 and R2020612 A31H

1 January 2021 K 202141 A1H 20 3,160 3,180
Charge during the year F AR 8 140 148
Disposals k= (12) (473) (485)
Exchange realignment PE H A - (6) (6)
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12 A31H 16 2,821 2,837
Net carrying amount: BREEE:

At 31 December 2021 7202112 A31H 105 1,284 1,389
At 31 December 2020 R 2020912 H31H 223 1,424 1,647
All of the Group’s ownership interests in buildings held for AEEREFEREFOMBEREER
own use are located in the PRC. BRRFE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

16. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

16.

The Group has a lease contract for an office premises in
Hong Kong used in its operations. The lease of the office
premises has a lease term of 3 years (2020: 3 years).
Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and

subleasing the leased asset.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use
assets and the movements during the year are as

HE

AEBEREAEA
AEBREENRAE BN ASATE
EHREAD - Pt A5 M4 A 58
B=F(R020F =F) AEBBEE
TBEZENOHBEEEE -

(a) EFRAEEE

AREERREEREERST
NEEENIAT -

follows:

RMB’000
AR®T R
As at 1 January 2020 K 2020%1A1H 3,042
Depreciation charge TEER (1,404)
Exchange realignment bE 5, 8 B (99)

As at 31 December 2020 R2020F12 A31H &
and 1 January 2021 2021F1A1H 1,539
Modification E 3,239
Depreciation charge HEEHR (1,286)
Exchange realignment PE 5 5 & (24)
As at 31 December 2021 R2021%F12 H31H 3,468
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 2 e B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

16. LEASES (continued) 16. #HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBERAMEAGE)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEESE
The carrying amount of the Group’s lease liabilities AEEHEAGEREELRER
and the movements during the year are as follows: BEmT
RMB’000
AR®B T
As at 1 January 2020 1K 2020%F1 A1H 3,093
Accretion of interest recognised FARERF SN

during the year 98
Payments E-N (1,497)
Exchange realignment b 5 8 & (99)
As at 31 December 2020 and R2020F12 A31H &

1 January 2021 2021F1/1H 1,595
Modification EP 3,239
Accretion of interest recognised during 4 A # 32 F & & 0

the year 43
Payments DB (1,383)
Exchange realignment BE 34, 58 B (24)
As at 31 December 2021 7K2021%F12 H31H 3,470

2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®B T ARBTT
Analysed into: SaR) =
Current portion BN AR &6 75 1,100 1,363
Non-current portion JEBNHA &F 2,370 232
3,470 1,595
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in HMEAGEINHIWRP B RE
note 30(d) to the financial statements. B 5E30(d) # 57
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

16. LEASES (continued) 16. #HE (&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBERAMEAGE)
() The amounts recognised in profit or loss in (c) BEEREBERIANSHEN
relation to leases are as follows: T
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR T
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEME 43 98
Depreciation charge of EREEENEER
right-of-use assets 1,286 1,404
Total amount recognised in REZERESH
profit or loss 1,329 1,502
(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed (d HENBRESREBEERMBER
in notes 25(c) to the financial statements. KM E25(c) W E -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 2 e B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

16. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14)
consisting of three commercial properties in the PRC under
operating lease arrangements. The terms of the leases
generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised
by the Group during the year was RMB37,259,000 (2020:
RMB36,737,000), details of which are included in note 5 to
the financial statements.

At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments
receivable by the Group in future periods under non-
cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

16. HE (&)
AEBEREAA

AEERBECEHETHEHEER
EMEM T4 EPBEZHEM
RAENEEYE - BB -—RKEX
HAPYXNERRZEEBREERMR
RERBPHEAR - AEBFRE
BREL WA AR K37,259,0007T
(20204 : A R #36,737,0007T) * #f
15 B 70 B 7% R R BT 55 o

R2021FE12H31H © KN % & B & &
HMPITUM A HEGEHMER K
REAEEU R BIRFEEMN R T

2021 2020

20214F 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ART R AR T T

Within one year —F R 34,839 28,005
After one year but within two years —FREMEN 23,098 26,267
After two years but within three years M %18 =F K 20,659 17,954
After three years but within four years =4 14 {8 /04 X 17,776 14,745
After four years but within five years PO %18 AF XN 17,184 10,470
After five years hF & 59,175 38,121
172,731 135,562
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

17. ESREMEBRURERBANRE

PREPAYMENTS

Notes 2021 2020
B 5 20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
INGL-B A ARET T
Trade receivables 25 EINEIE 2,954 6,591
Impairment A (529) (202)
(@) 2,425 6,389

Other receivables and prepayments £ th & U 3¢ I8 K
iCENE (o) 1,462 1,672
3,887 8,061

(@) Trade receivables are due for payment pursuant to the
terms of the agreements. Normally, the Group does
not obtain collateral from customers.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the payment
schedule and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

(@ WREHZEGER  EHEKKA
AWM -AEEBAEITE W
MEPH TR

ERNRERER & EBEGTF
B HREHRNE S EWRFHIE
BRE DM T -

2021 2020

202145 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET R ARBFT

Within 1 month 118 B A 6,042
1 to 2 months 122@ A - 159
2 to 3 months 2%231E A - 188
2,425 6,389
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
I F AR & (#8)

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

@)

(continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment
of trade receivables are as follows:

17. B3

(&)

@)

REMEBERRERENKE

(&)

B 5 I8 WK IR AR (B S 18 R
BT

2021 2020

20214 20204F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARET T

At beginning of year F ) 202 190
Impairment losses, net (note 8) BB &1 F R (M 5E8) 327 12
At end of year FR 529 202

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting
date using a provision matrix to measure ECLs. As
the Group’s historical credit loss experience does
not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance
based on past due status is not further distinguished
between the Group’s different customer bases.
The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions. Trade
receivables are written off (either partially or in full)
to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of
recovery. This is generally the case when the Group
determines that the customer does not have assets or
sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

@)

(continued)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk
exposure on the Group’s trade receivables using a

provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2021

17. ESREMBRRERANKE
(&)

@)

(&)

PAT #1518 R (£ 7R 13 i 2B e
AEBEZRUEFREERAR
M & #

R2021512A31H

Past due Past due
within 90 over

Current days 90 days
N8  AHM0AR BEHEAWA
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBEX 0.6% = 100% 17.9%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) FHABENRETT) 2,440 = 514 2,954
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEEBRARETT) 15 — 514 529
As at 31 December 2020 2020612 A31H
Past due Past due
within over
Current 90 days 90 days Total
BH @H0AR BHEENA @5t
Expected credit loss rate BHEEBEX 11% 14.7% 100% 31%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) FHAENRETT) 6,109 407 75 6,591
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEEBRARETT) 67 60 75 202
The financial assets included in the balances relate by #HEANEMEERTHEE

to receivables for which there was no recent history
of default and past due amounts. As at 31 December
2021 and 2020, the loss allowance was assessed to
be minimal.

N hBEBRSBENER
RIE A B o 720214 K20204F
12A31H BERBGIHAE
?%&/J\o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
I F AR & (#8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18. WERBEELEEY
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Deposits with banks RITFER 203,723 217,726
Cash on hand EFIRe 47 40
Cash and cash equivalents HekIREEEY 203,770 217,766

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB82,634,000 (2020: RMB82,014,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits, of
which the original maturity was three months or less, are
made depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short term
time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19. ESREMESRIE
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
Trade payables 2 5 RIA 1,439 1,321
Interest payable JE - F) B 22 31
Other taxes and charges payable HENHBERER 245 555
Deposits received B UWiE e 5,204 5,594
Accrued payroll and other benefits FEsTH & & E & 7 2,896 3,157
Listing expenses payable FEAS B A SE - 551
Rental receipt-in-advance TEWAEE KT 12,302 9,773
Other payables H b fE 1~ 518 1,689 2,258
23,797 23,240
Included in the balance are trade payables with the BEEEHRTHNE FENMN KB RR
following ageing analysis based on the invoice date as at %%ﬁﬂi M ZE B A R E 2 AT 0
the end of the reporting period: D
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
Within 3 months 31E AR 235 972
Over 3 months 31E A+ 1,204 349
1,439 1,321
20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 20. EHEE

<R oYM 31 December 1 January
2021 2020 2020

20214 20204 20204
12A31H 12H31H 1H1H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBETIT ARBTT

Short-term advances received E W& F A2 B8 5
from customers
Provision of property management 1g it ¥ % & 12 iR %

services 1,461 1,066 934
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received EHNEGEEEEWREDNETER
to render property management services. The increase in BHEEB R - 58 BENR2021F
contract liabilities in 2021 and 2020 was mainly due to the K2020F #MEFEZMMNFRE WTE
increase in billing in short-term advances received from W P 5 HABR SR 3E pNFT BR o

customers at the end of the years.
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31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 2 e B ()

BANK LOAN MITER
2020
2000%
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
per annum per annum
(%) Maturity RMB’000 (%) Maturity RMB'000
ERERZ ERERE
(%) IR ARETR (%) %R ARETR
Current N
Current portion of a long REBOEZNDADS 5,05% 2022 7,000 5.05% to 2001 7,000
term bank loan — secured - BER 5,05% 2022 5.15% 2021F
5.05%%
5.15%
Non-current 2
Non-current portion of along term ~ REAFTERMFDHHAH - 5.05% to 2022 7,000
bank loan — secured - RER 5.15% 202F
5.05%%
5.15%
7,000 14,000
2021 2020
202145 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Analysed into: DR
Bank loan repayable: ARUATHEEESR
RITER:
Within one year or on demand —FRHIREK 7,000 7,000
In the second year F_F - 7,000
7,000 14,000

As at 31 December 2021, a bank loan with a carrying value
of RMB7,000,000 (2020: RMB14,000,000) was secured by
investment properties with an aggregate carrying amount
of RMB366,481,000 (2020: RMB361,441,000) owned by

the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
I F R & (#8)

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

22. DEFERRED TAX 22, EEBE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during FREEHREAGEREENEE W
the year are as follows: ™

Revaluation ~ Withholding

Provision of tax on

for interest Credit Provision for  investment interest

payment losses depreciation  properties receivables Others Total
HERR EffRE  EKAS

BF REER  HERR % RiH At st
RMB'000  RMB'00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR®TR AR®TR AR¥Tr ARETR ARMTR ARMTn ARET:R

At 1 January 2020 202051 A1H 1,39 47 (63,683) (115,557) - (133) (177,928)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to FREHZABERHA/

the consolidated statement of  (¥1%)EVET KA

profit or loss during the year - 3 (1,067) (356) (391) 458) (2,259
Deferred tax charged to the ENEGEEENGR

consolidated statement of NhREETRE

comprehensive income during

the year - - (350) (1,839) - - (2,185)
At 31 December 2020 and R2020%F12R318 &

1 January 2021 202151 A1A 1,308 50 (65000  (117,749) (391) (591)  (182,372)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to FREHZABERHA/

the consolidated statement of (1B B EITRE

profit or loss during the year - 82 (1,996) (4,387) - 183 (6,118)
At 31 December 2021 o021 5128318 1,398 192 (6708) (122,13 (391) w8 (188,490)

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3§

195



196

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 2 e B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

22. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

22, I fE B E (%)

2021 2020
202145 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARET T
Deferred tax assets recognised in ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁiiﬂi’%
the consolidated statement of ﬁ@ REVELEHRIEE E
financial position 1,530 1,448
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in R 4R & B # #k 0 &
the consolidated statement of BRHELEHIEAG
financial position (190,020) (183,820)
(188,490) (182,372)
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect THIBEEREREEHIBEE:
of the following items:
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T
Deductible temporary differences AT R E R 12,278 12,278

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of the above items as it is not considered probable that
taxable profits will be available against which the above
items can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to
foreign investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in Mainland China. The requirement is effective
from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China
and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 5% or 10% (2020: 5% or 10%). The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland
China in respect of earnings generated from 1 January
2008.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

22. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

At 31 December 2021, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be payable
on the unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland
China. In the opinion of the directors, it is not probable
that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries in
Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not
been recognised totalled approximately RMB1,930,000 at
31 December 2021 (2020: RMB1,533,000).

23. SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital as at 31 December 2021 and 31
December 2020 represented the issued capital of the
Company and a summary of the authorised and issued
share capital of the Company is as follows:

22, I fE B E (%)

R2021F12A31H » A & B IF £ 5
T A B b BR ST B9 B BB R R B B
TE 0 &9 K B 1 & ) B FE A5 A T8 40
HERELCH B BEERE %S
Bt B A B A Al B A% 2R I~ K 7] B 9 Ik
BBEH - H2021F12A31H - @
FREAMHBARMKEER B M
ERLERELEHEAENT R =
BB EH B ARE1,930,0007T (2020
& A R#%1,533,0007T) °

23. K&
2021912 A31H K& 2020512 A31H

MR AEARARREBETRA AR
FUEERBETRABENT

2021 2020
20214 20204F
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FET
Authorised: JETE
4,000,000,000 (2020: FRmECIETH
4,000,000,000) ordinary 4,000,000,000 /%
shares of US$0.1 each (20204 : 4,000,000,000/%)
T A 400,000 400,000
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR T
Issued and fully paid: BEERITIRHBE:
441,400,000 (2020: 441,400,0000%
441,400,000) ordinary 38 A% (2020 -
shares 441,400,000/%) 345,042 345,042

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and each of
them is entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to
the Company’s residual assets.

EBRFBEARREBRAEE IR
KELREBERRARBIEZ L
BERBOHKR-—F -MAEEBEKAEAR
REEMEEZ AR FHA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

24. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. Under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of
the Company are distributable to shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of the business.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve consisted of (i) merger reserve of
RMB26,800,000 which was resulted from a business
combination involving entities under common control
in 2010; (i) reserve of RMB44,685,000 due to share
repurchase of Chengdu Everbright International
Mansion Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, in 2014; and (iii) a waiver of an amount due
to Capital Century Company Limited, an intermediate
holding company of the Company, of RMB10,311,000
in 2016.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of companies outside the PRC.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 2.4 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

24. RESERVES (continued)

(iv) PRC statutory reserve

24, f#% (&)

(iv) PEBEEER B

(v)

According to the PRC Company Law, the PRC
subsidiaries of the Group are required to transfer 10%
of their profit after taxation (after offsetting the losses
in the preceding years), as determined under the
PRC Accounting Regulations, to the statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of their
registered capital.

The transfer to this reserve must be made before
distribution of a dividend to shareholders.

Statutory reserve fund can be used to cover previous
years’ losses, if any, and may be converted into share
capital by the issue of new shares to shareholders
in proportion to their existing shareholdings or by
increasing the par value of the shares currently held
by them, provided that the balance after such issue is
not less than 25% of the registered capital.

Fair value reserve

A certain portion of a property previously occupied
by the Group as owner-occupied property was
transferred to investment properties in 2020 and a
revaluation surplus was credited to fair value reserve
to account for the difference between the carrying
amount and the fair value of the property at the date
of change in use, determined by using the market
comparison approach by independent firms of
valuers.

The fair value reserve of the Group was not
distributable as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

(v)

REFERBE  AEEHH
5 Bt 8 B 28 S EL AR AR DB (R
HHBEEFEREE)M10% (M
TEEHIEREBEE)BAZEE
BHRHE BEEuWMEERE
EHFEMEARHS0% °

HZFEROEADBAERRRR
DR B ZBIETT ©

EREABECURERMBAASF
EHMEEAE) LaERE
BREENFR LA RERETT
TR MERSFFEZ RN
EEMNSNELABRA ELE
MEBEITENEHTEREME
R H)25% o

DREERE

R20204F S BT A AN & B {5 A
ERBERMENYMESR TS
BEBEZIREYE ME-R
BEAAARDRBEBE  AAR
ERYMERBEZ2E EAHMNE
HAEEALBEEZIEANEZE
ZEBRRBUGEMKABTS
LEEBOEEE ©

R20214 202012 A31H » A
EENAREBERETAIDIK -

ANNUAL REPORT 2021 3§

199



200

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

25. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a)

Major non-cash transactions

(i)

(il

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group had a non-cash transfer of a certain
portion of a property with a net carrying
value of RMB1,761,000 from property, plant
and equipment to investment properties. The
difference between the fair value of the property
and the carrying value at the date of transfer
of RMB8,739,000, and the deferred tax of
RMB2,185,000 thereon were recognised in the
fair value reserve.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group had a non-cash transfer of properties
with a total carrying value of RMB3,719,000 from
properties held for sale to investment properties.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group had non-cash modifications to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities of RMB3,239,000
and RMBS3,239,000, respectively, in respect of
lease arrangements for the office premises.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT

25. GEBREREBERWEE

(a)

TRHBREXRS

(i)

(il

#H £2020%12A31H 1k F
E-AEBE-HIIERS
X5 BEEREREFEAEA
R #1,761,000t 9 ¥ 5
FTHLAYE  BEKK
HEAREME - ZD
¥REZHHPNRAAERE
HEEHBENEEARK
8,739,000 T & & & i 1A
A R#2185,0007t A A 1t
BERBEPER -

#H £2020%12A31H 1k F
E-AEBE-HIIERS
RS HEEBBEASA
R #3,719,0007T B9 ¥ % &
BEHNEMH*ERBIEEY
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H E20215F12 318 1k 5
B B B EE
ZHEME A& B ¥ F
BREEENHEESEDN
FREERDINABAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

25. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 25. GREREREBRM =T (F)

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) MEEZHELENEEED

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities
Listing Interest
expenses payable
included included
in trade in trade
and other  and other Lease
Bank loan payables payables liabilities
FAESRE HAEEZRE
M FEN B REN
RITER i 53 ERFE HEG®E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AR®Tn AR®Tn AR%Txn
At 1 January 2020 12020F1A1H 20,500 586 38 3,093
Changes from financing cash flows HERERELR (6,500) - (985) (1,497
Finance costs BEKA - - 978 98
Foreign exchange movement HME# - (35) —~ (99)
At 31 December 2020 and 202012 431 &

1 January 2021 20211 A1H 14,000 551 31 1,595
Modification X = - - 3,239
Reversal B - (551) - -
Changes from financing cash flows BERENEZY (7,000) - (635) (1,383)
Finance costs BEKA - - 626 43
Foreign exchange movement SNEE - - = (24)
At 31 December 2021 12021512 A31H 7,000 - 22 3,470
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 2 e B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

25. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the

25, GEBRERERMWE(E)

(c) HERSRHAR

BenERFANEERESR

statement of cash flows is as follows: MmN -
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR T
Within operating activities REEEEA - =
Within financing activities REtEEEA 1,383 1,497
1,383 1,497

26. COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the
end of the reporting period:

26. EiE

AREBERKERREATEARNALE :

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETTT

Contracted, but not provided for EETA B REBEHE
Additions to investment properties NEREYHE

771 744
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27. BBARS
(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere @ KBZEVYHRREMEHFMR
in these financial statements, the Group had the RSB REBRERNEE
following transactions with related parties during the G BENANTRS :
year:
2021 2020
2021%F 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBFT
Related parties: R
Property leasing income Y EMEE WA 10,278 7,070
Placement of deposits T E R 112,696 70,597
Withdrawal of deposits REAF 3K 106,077 73,665
(o) Other transactions with related parties: (o) HEEBAHEMRS:
During last year, the Group has entered into a loan EF AEEEAFENKREE
service framework agreement with China Everbright B R AFR2020F11 H2H % 5]
Group Limited dated 2 November 2020 (the ERRBIEZRTZ &z ] -
“Agreement”) for a term of five years commencing 3B ¥ 520201 A1H £ £2024
retrospectively from 1 January 2020 and ending on F12ABMB LR AF - B
31 December 2024, details of which are set out in B HEH S R AR R BH A2020
the Company’s announcement dated 2 November FH2EH R E o REE2021
2020. During the years ended 31 December 2021 and F Kk20205F12A318 It F [E -
2020, the Group has not utilised any facilities of the REEWKRERZBEDEM
Agreement. A& o
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties: ) HEBFHRERES:

2021 2020
2021%F 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARET T

Cash and cash equivalents placed 17 A BA B8R 1T HY

with a related bank ReMBeEEY 25,559 18,940
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk HMENKIE 7,099 6,870
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 2 e B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 27.

(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the

BBL X5 (&)

(d AEEXTEZEEEABHME:

Group:
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Directors’ fees EEme 752 768
Salaries, allowances and benefits in ¥ 4% « 85 &
kind B A &= 2,896 3,076
Discretionary bonuses ) 15 16 41 1,783 1,910
Pension scheme contributions BRIREET BT R 45 48
Total compensation paid to key TRFEEEEAEN
management personnel 42 B & 5,476 5,802

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive
officer’s emoluments are included in note 9 to the
financial statements.

The related party transactions in respect of property
leasing income from Everbright Securities Company
Limited, Everbright Xinglong Trust Co., Ltd. and China
Everbright Bank Co., Ltd. and deposits service from China
Everbright Bank Co., Ltd. constitute continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are provided in the section headed “Continuing
Connected Transactions” of the Directors’ Report.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT
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HEEAEEREEATARPEEX
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

28. REHEBSINEMTRA

RBEHRZEN SR ITANER

instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as BT
follows:
Financial assets ctREE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
amortised cost amortised cost
12 8 85 R A REHK AR
STENERMEE EELEA T
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Financial assets included in trade and other 5t A & 5 I H fth F& U 75 18 [
receivables and prepayments BNREBENEREE 3,273 7,070
Cash and cash equivalents BekReEEY 203,770 217,766
207,043 004,836
Financial liabilities ol =K
2021 2020
20214 20204
Financial Financial
liabilities at liabilities at
amortised cost amortised cost
128 85 B AN 17 2 55 BK AN
HTENERERS ATENERAs
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARET T
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk H AR RIE 8,354 9,755
Bank loan RITER 7,000 14,000
15,354 23,755
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and cash equivalents, financial assets included in trade
and other receivables and prepayments, financial liabilities
included in trade and other payables and the current
portion of a bank loan approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group’s finance department is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting
date, the finance department analyses the movements
in the values of financial instruments and determines
the major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation
is reviewed and approved by the management of the
Company. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and
annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The fair value of the non-current portion of a bank loan,
which approximates to its carrying amount, has been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The change in
fair value as a result of the Group’s own non-performance
risk for the above financial instrument as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 was assessed to be insignificant.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT
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AE- AEBARREEEER
EZZEEeBFMANWAEERRF
RER  NEELTHRFERH

HE -

TREENBENRREBEIIIRZ
TERBRRS (M EkE R
HE)EMRXS TZARZEBEAR °

RITERFENBABLI>INAAEE
HEKEMEMRSE  HDBEBFERAS
MUK EERREFEEAE
2 THEZEr 7] AR EEEIREH K
RFBERMEFERS D - R2021F &
2020%F12H31H * A& B R L it &
BMTEBSFHIERLRERMERD
AREBEEZEERRBTEK -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise a
bank loan, and cash and cash equivalents. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade and other
receivables, trade and other payables and lease liabilities,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group monitors its interest rate exposure regularly
to ensure that the underlying risk is monitored
within an acceptable range. The Group’s interest
rate risk arises primarily from the Group’s cash and
cash equivalents and a bank loan. The Group is not
exposed to significant interest rate risk for cash and
cash equivalents because the interest rates of cash at
banks are not expected to change significantly.

30.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 2 e B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(@) Interest rate risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s net interest-bearing
financial liabilities (being interest-bearing financial
liabilities less interest-bearing assets, bank
deposits, and cash and cash equivalents) at the
end of the reporting period.

30. KEKEEEERBE(E)

(a) FEmEb(HE)
(i) FEAARR

FREAREEHHF &
ey E-E TG
BEMBRATEEE
ROFRARAS KA S
% 8 1) % $ A0 7 K 1R
SELE

2021 2020
2021% 2020
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRAZ BERAE
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
% ARETR % ARBTT
Bank loan RITER 5.05 7,000 5.05-5.15 14,000
5.05 5052515
Less: deposits with banks 3 : 17775 0.01-1.15 (203,723) 0.01-1.15 (217,726)
0.0121.15 0.0121.15
Total net interest-bearing BHEAETH
liabilities (196,723) (203,726)

Note: As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all of the
Group’s borrowings were arranged on a variable
rate basis of LPR+0.395% and were denominated
in RMB.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

(b)

Interest rate risk (continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2021, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would increase/decrease the Group’s
profit before tax by approximately RMB1,967,000
(2020: increase/decrease the Group’s profit
before tax by approximately RMB2,037,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
before tax that would arise assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to
floating rate non-derivative instruments which
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
The impact on the Group’s profit before tax is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest
expense or income of such a change in interest
rates. The analysis is performed on the same
basis for 2020.

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Mainland China
with most of the transactions settled in RMB. The
Group’s exposure to foreign exchange risk primarily
stems from holdings of cash and cash equivalents
denominated in HK$. The Group does not use
derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign
currency risk. The Group reviews its foreign currency
exposures regularly and considers no significant
exposure to foreign exchange risk.

30. BKEKREREBEREX(E)

(a)

(b)

M=k (E)
(i) BREDSH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 2 e B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
end of the reporting period to a reasonably possible
change in the HK$ exchange rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
tax and retained profits.

Hong Kong dollars BT

30. KEKEEEERBE(E)

(b) shs =B (M)

TRIIFREER K - ARE
B4 81 F B 4R 8 0 4 % B
A T2 A B B B A B AL

1T o
2021 2020
2021 2020

Increase/ Effect on Increase/ Effect on
(decrease) profit before (decrease)  profit before
in foreign tax and in foreign tax and
exchange retained exchange retained
rate profits rate profits
HEARER B AER
A VAl EXLA REFEN
(TR) 2 (TF) 2
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT
5% 4,470 5% 5,016
(5)% (4,470) (5)% (5,016)

The above analysis assumes the change in foreign
exchange rate had occurred at the end of the
reporting period and had been applied to each of the
group entities’ exposure to currency risk in existence
at that date while all other variables remain constant.
The stated changes also represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rate until the next annual reporting period.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2020.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents. Trade and other receivables mainly
arise from the Group’s revenue from the rental and
property management business.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer rather than the industry or country in which
the customers operate, and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure to individual
customers. At the end of the reporting period, 20%
(2020: 35%) and 52% (2020: 83%) of the trade and
other receivables were due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers, respectively.

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract such as a default or past
due event;

— it is probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

To manage credit risk arising from debtors, the
credit quality of the debtors is assessed, taking into
account their financial position, historical settlement
records, past experience and other factors. The
Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use
of lifetime expected loss provision for all debtors. The
ECLs also incorporate forward-looking information.

30.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

The Group has established a policy to perform an
assessment of whether a financial instrument’s
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, by considering the change in the risk
of default occurring over the remaining life of the
financial instrument. The Group classifies its other
receivables into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3, as
described below:

Stage 1 When other receivables are first
recognised, the Group recognised an
allowance based on 12-month ECLs.

Stage 2 When other receivables have shown
a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the Group records an
allowance for the lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 When other receivables are considered
credit-impaired, the Group records an
allowance for the lifetime ECLs.

Management also makes periodic collective
assessments for other receivables as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement records,
past experience and other factors.

All deposits with banks with a maturity period over
three months and cash and cash equivalents were
deposited with creditworthy financial institutions
without significant credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 831 H

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 30. ¥ EAKBEEEEZREE(E)
POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued) (c) EERMK(E)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging BAEBRERRKER
The tables below show the credit quality and the TREINEREAEBFEEBXR
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the (EDEZEERBHER B
Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on past FEMERBENETILER
due information unless other information is available MAKZHENARB)NEE
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging BEREEEARE  AERR
classification as at 31 December. The amounts 12A3IEBMERBEE - 2
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial MBI ACHEENERE
assets. BiE -
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12831H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12§68 A
BHEEER 2HRBEERR

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-E& E-RE BEZRE B @it
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR  AR%Tn AR¥Tn AR¥Tn  AR%T:n

Trade receivables* BoRMIE - - - 2,954 2,954
Financial assets included in other 3t A Efth eI 38 &
recelvables and prepayments BN FEHLBEE

- Normal** —ER™ 848 - - - 848

Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESEN
- Not yet past due —REBH 203,770 - - - 203,770
204,618 - - 2,954 207,572
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7 2 e B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

30. EEKEREBSERBEK(E)

(c) FERRE)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging BABEBRFEREER(E)
(continued)
At 31 December 2020 202012 A31H
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A
BAEEES FHRBEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
£-RE E-R& E-R& BiLE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
Trade receivables® BHRUNNE - - - 6,591 6,591
Financial assets included in other it A £ ft UL FIE R
receivables and prepayments ~ BENZEMSREE
- Normal** ~-EE™ 681 - - - 681
Cash and cash equivalents RERFEEEN
- Not yet past due -HAGH 217,766 = = = 217,766
218447 - - 6,591 225,038
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the * RAEBERGLESE2RE

simplified approach for impairment, information based
on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 17 to the

financial statements.

> The credit quality of the financial assets included in
other receivables and prepayments is considered to be
“normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is

considered to be “doubtful”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

78 2 b B ()

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short-term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the respective parent
company’s board when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

For subsidiaries with statutory liquidity requirements,
the Group monitors closely their liquidity position.
To ensure strict compliance, the Group maintains
adequate cash reserves to prepare for immediate fund
injection if required. If there is a medium-to-long term
operation need, management would also consider
adjusting those subsidiaries’ capital structure.
Subsidiaries with external equity stakeholders
are generally responsible for their own liquidity
management.

30.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 2 e B ()

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 30. ¥ EAKBEEEEZREE(E)
POLICIES (continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d RBELSRRGE)

2021
2021%

Total
contractual More than More than
Carrying undiscounted Within 1 year 1yearbut  2years but

amount  cash flows or ondemand within2years within 5 years
AER

fHEE  MERT 1548 2E4fE

RAfE REAE REX P 5%k

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

AR®TR  ARBTR AR%TR ARRTR  AR%T:n

Trade and other payables BAREMENTA 8,354 8,354 8,354 - =
Bank loan gt 7,000 7175 7475 = =
Lease lbllties BEEE 3470 3,582 1,159 1,118 1,305
18,824 19,111 16,688 1,118 1,305
2020
20206
Total
contractual More than More than

Carrying  undiscounted ~ Within 1 year 1 year but 2 years but

amount cash flows  orondemand  within 2 years  within 5 years
AER

alfe MERT 1518 pE

RAE RELR REX pE S

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR  ARETR ARETR  AR¥TR  ARETR

Trade and other payables BAREMERTA 9,755 9,755 9,755 = =
Bank loan gt 14,000 14,789 7614 7175 =
Lease liabilties fEag 159 1,636 1402 234 =

25,350 26,180 18,771 7,409 =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
M B W R M EE (8)

31 December 2021 2021512 H31H

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

30. BKEREEREBEREX(E)

EXER

(e) Capital management (e)

The Group’s primary objectives for managing capital
are to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and to safeguard the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Group manages its capital structure and make
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. The Group reviews the capital structure
on a regular basis and considers the cost of capital
and the associated risks. The Group will balance its
overall capital structure through payment of dividends,
new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debts. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes during
the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its
debt position. The Group’s strategy was to maintain
the Group’s gearing ratio, being the Group’s total
liabilities over its total assets. The gearing ratio as at
31 December 2021 was 19% (2020: 20%).

The Company was not subject to externally imposed
capital requirements during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.

AEEEEEANEIERNR
HE RSB 2 B0 A A LE A S35
XU RARAEEFAELLN

ab,
BE °©

AEBRERELERANESHE
BERNERBUEHFARE - A&E
ErTHmRagEr N ERTZERE
KA K AR R B o AN & B G
BRBREIMN FRBEITUAR
FERTHRELREES T E
HEREENRNGERE - 5220214
&2020F12A31H It F & » B
2 CBRERIEFBEED -

AEBREHBEHRMRRNERE
N REEBNRBEERIZTAE
EEABELLRBEIAEHR
BEBRUBEE) - R2021F12
A3IEmMEARAREL X AB19%
(20204 : 20%) °

RN T B B20214F K 2020F12
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
7 2 e B ()

31 December 2021

2021412 A31H

31.

Everbright Grand China Assets Limited ® XK EBR AT

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

31. ARFHBMRR R

COMPANY
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR ARET T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BREREE 502 586
Right-of-use assets EREEE 3,468 1,539
Interests in subsidiaries NN E 111,461 124,409
115,431 126,534
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries J/E U BT B A B 3R IR 122,890 123,653
Other receivables and prepayments £ th & Ug 3k 18 K&
TEN FRIE 683 770
Cash and cash equivalents BeRIREEEY 120,956 135,552
244,529 259,975
CURRENT LIABILITIES REEE
Amount due to a subsidiary JE A< Bt BB A B 5K 18 179 201
Other payables H Ath FE T 518 2,303 2,816
Lease liabilities HERARE 1,100 1,363
3,582 4,380
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 240,947 255,595
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT (¥ E#ZEBERBABER
LIABILITIES 356,378 382,129
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERE
Lease liabilities HERE 2,370 232
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAE 134 138
2,504 370
NET ASSETS EEFH 353,874 381,759
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARR#EE
Share capital fi% 2 345,042 345,042
Reserves (note) &8 8 (BT 53) 8,832 36,717
TOTAL EQUITY ERARHE 353,874 381,759




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
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31 December 2021

2021412 HA31H

31.

32.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY (continued)

AT B RO & ()

Note: B 5
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RABMFEEREZNT
Share Capital  Exchange Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
R 19 % B BEXRE ERfE REFE @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%Tn AR¥Tr AR®Tn AR%Tx
At 1 January 2020 1202041818 45,063 10,311 (34,049) 30,895 52,000
Profit for the year ERFE - - - 17,705 17,705
Other comprehensive expense for the year:  FREMZEHT:
Exchange differences on BENBERRNELEZS
translation of financial statements - - (24,257) - (24,257)
Final 2019 dividend 20195 KR & - - - (8,951) (8,951)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 R2020%12 A318 k2021F1A18 45,063 10,311 (58,306) 39,649 36,717
Profit for the year FRFE - = = 1,519 1,519
Other comprehensive expense for the year:  FREM2E T
Exchange differences on BEMBRRNELER
translation of financial statements - - (10,512) - (10,512)
Special dividend paid BT R 5IRR & - - - (6,621) (6,621)
Final 2020 dividend 2020 K EH & = - - (8,475) (8,475)
Interim 2021 dividend 2021 R B - = = (3,796) (3,796)
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12A31R 45,063 10,311 (68,818) 22,276 8,832

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 24 March 2022.

32. #EMBHRE

EEE I N2022F3A248 L E R ®

BT B HRE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBRE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 — (Expressed in RMB) #; 220214128318 It FE — (A AR®EF|R)

A summary of the result and of the assets and liabilities of the AEBBERETRFENELEARE
Group for the last five financial years as extracted from the ERBE(JHEBE DA M EE X% R
published audited financial statements is set out below: RN EmELT

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS REXEE&

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20215 20204 20194 20184 20174
{0008 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000
INCL- B\ T ARBTT ARBETT ARETR

Revenue W 28 52,678 51,734 71,274 61,742 66,657
Profit before tax AT F 43,642 45,699 54,049 53,269 38,075
Income tax expense PR B R % (10,969) 11,717 (16,768) (16,715) (13,809)
Profit for the year AEEZHE 32,673 33,982 37,281 36,554 24,266
Attributable to: ATA L&

Owners of the Company iN/NIEZZ N 32,673 33,982 37,281 36,554 24,266
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HEBEERERE

At 31 December
K12H31H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20215 20204 20194 20184 20174
KON RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB’000
INGL B A KRBT ARETT ARETT ARETR

Total assets BEE 1,167,744 1,163,761 1,145,401 1,109,498 936,333
Total liabilities BEE (227,013)  (229,118)  (225,455)  (230,443)  (217,068)
Net assets FEE 940,731 934,643 919,946 879,055 719,265
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